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Diirectors” report

The dirocrors submat their report on the audited consolidated financial stmtements for the year ended
31 December X021,

Incorporation and registered offices

Dar Al Takaful PISC (the Company) was incorperated as a public joint stock company. The Company
carries out general takaful, retskaful and investments in accordance with the teachings of Islamic Shard's
and within the provisions of LLALE. Federal Law no. 6 of 2007 cclating ©o sababul companies and takaful
ngents and the Memomndum and Articles of Association of the Company. The address of the Company
is P.O). Box 235353, Dubal, United Assb Ersirates.

Principal activities

The Company wish its subsidiaries is eollectively referred 1o a8 the “Group™. The Group mainly spoes lang
termm and short term takaful contracts in connection with Efe and non-life rakaful such a5 motor, masine,
fire, enginsaring, medical and general scaident risks (collectively known s geneeal takaful), The Group alse
invesss its funds in nvestrment securitivs,

Financial position and resulia

The financial position and resulrs of the Group for de year ended 31 December 2021 are set cut in the
accompanying consolidared fnancal smtemen,

Dhitectorns

The Fﬂlﬂ'ﬂ.’iﬂgm thie Directors uFﬂqu;pﬁuﬁ:ym ended 31 December 2021 :

Mr. Matar Famdan Sobtan Hamad Al Ames Chairman
bfr. Shahab Ahmed Luifl All Harmoosi Vice Chairman
. Khataf Solan Reshed Saeed AlDhaben Members
Ms. Metha Mohamed Al Shanif Yousif A Hashmi blembets
b, Salab Theahim Saved Mohammad Sharaf Members
Mr. Mahomed Akoaoh Members
Me. Abdallah Maleh Cheaeiran fembers
Anditors '

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Grane
Thormton UAE and, being cligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By arder of the Board of Direcrors on 16 March 2022,
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o GrantThornton

Grant Thamton Audit
and Accounting Limited
{Dubai Branch)

The Offices 5

Lewel 3

Office 303

One Centrel, DWTC
Dunal, LAE

PO Box 1620
T#4871 4 IRE 9025

F +971 4 388 9915

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Report on the andit of the consolidated financial statements

Ouii

We have sudited the consoliduted Sreamclal stmtemenss of Dar Al Takaful PJSC {the “Company™) and s
subgidiaries (together referred to as the "Geoup™), which comprise the consolidated smtement of financil
position as at 31 December 2021, and the copsolidated smrement of income, sonsolidared statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity end consoBidated smatement of cash Dows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consobidated Snancial statements, including 8 surmmary of significent
accounting policies and other explanasory information.

In our opmion, the accompanying consolidated fnancial smements present faidy, in all material respecis, the
consolidated fnancial position of the Group a5 at 3 December 2021, and ity consolidated fnancial
performance and its consolidated cash flows fior the pear then ended in sceoedance with International Finaneial
B sng Standards.

Bagds for oplnion

We conducted oor andit in accordance with Internationsl Standards on Aundidng (“15As™. Owur
teaponsibilities under those standards are forther described in the Awditor's responsibiliies for the mdit of
the consofidated Anancial stavements section of our report, We sre independent of the Group in accordance
with the Internaconal Bthics Standasds Bosrd for Accounmnts’ Code of BEthics for Peofessianal
Actountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requiremenrs thar are televant w oor medit of
the Group's consolidated financial starements in the United Amb Emitates and we have folfilled our other
ethical Tﬂpmm'ﬁ]iﬁ:am’mmhamndmuniﬂirhmmqmm th and the TESBA Code We
hdltﬂl' that the sudit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basia for our
npanian.

Eey audit matiers

Key audit matters are those mamers thar, in our perofiessional judgment, were of most significanes in our
sisdie of the consolidated financial statements of the carrent year. These matters were addressed in che
context of our sudit of the consolidated financial sitements sz o whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, end we do not provide a separate opinion on thess maetiess.
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Q Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements {continued)
Eey audit manters (continued)

i)

Valoation of takafiul conteact labdlides and retakafiol cantract agsets

The estimation of abiktes arising from mkaful contracts such a5 outsranding claime, incursed bue
net reported claims, unallocated boss adjustment expenses and uncsrned preminm eeserve, as
disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, involves a significant degeee of
jadgement. These Habdisies are based on the best-estimared ultimate eose of all caims incumred but
not gettled at o ven date, whether reposted or not, mgether with the related claims handling costs
and the pattesn of dek distrbution over the coversge period. Acmarial compuradons have heen used
to determine these provisions. Undeslying these computations are a number of explichh or implicit
ussumptions relating to the expected semdement amount and sestlement patterns of claims. Since the
determination of such a provision requires the expertise of an external valuadon expert who
incorporates significant sssumptions, judgements and estimations, the valvation of these lisbilites
was significant o our sudit,

We amessed management's caleularions of the tekaful conteact lishilies and remkafol conmaet assets
by performing the following proceduses:

*  Undemstood the governance process in place to desermine the insurance contesct lishilides;
*  Tested the undedying Group data to source dorumentstion on sample basis;
*  EBvaluated the competence, cbjectivity and independence of the management sppainted scnary;

®  Using our actuarial specislist team members, we applied oot industry knowledge and experience,
and compared the methodelogy, models and sssumptions used against recognised actuarial
practces; and

* Using our actogral specialist team membess, we checked the mathematical accuracy of the
methodology applied on selecred classes of bosiness, particularly focusing on the larges: and
MONE UnNCErtgin reserves,

Valuation of investment properties

Group holds investment properties under the fair value model a5 at 31 December 2021 amounting
to AED 39,68 million (2020 AED 36.07 million), a5 detailled in note 11. The fair vahe cstimate
tequires significant judgement and estimates by management and independent external valuers. The
Grmuap has involved independent external valoers in order to valoe the imvestment properties for the
purpose of derermining the fair value for inclosion in the cansolidated financial statements, The
existenee of significant estimation and judgement coupled with change in valuation stsamptons used
could result in material change Therefore, the valuation of these investment peoperties was
significent to our aadit,

Crur audit procedwres, among othees, included:

*  Discussion with the mdependent valuer to understand he basls of vabuation for esch propesty
and other judgements used in performing the valoation;

*  Assessing the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of external valuers; and
*  Assessing the appropristeness of the key stsumptions and methodologies used.



Q Grant Thornton

Independent Auditor's Report
Tao the Shareholders of Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Report on the audit of the consolidated fAinancial statements (continued)
Eey audit matters (continued)
i} Impairment losscs on takaful receivables including third party recoveries

The Group hae takaful receivables that are overdue and not impaired (as disclosed in note 8 o these
consolidated financial satements). The key wssoclired dsk i the recovemsbility of recebvabiles.
Manegement's related provision is subjective and is influenced by sssumptions conceming the
probability of defsale end probable losses in the event of defaalt.

The work that we pesformed to address this key midit mamer inchided the following procedures:

® We compared the historieal provision for bad debts o the actual amounts written off, to
determine whether management’s estimation techalgues were reasonahle;

*  We considered the adequacy of provisions for bad debis for significant customers, mldng into
wcconnt specific eredit tik astessments for each customer based on time past due, the existence
ﬁfmyd:u]:rum:wu the balanee outstanding, the history of sertement of recefrables and the
existence of any labilities with the same counterparties which reduee the net exposure; and

* We discussed with management and reviewed correspondence, where relevant, to identify any
dispures and assessed whethers appropriately considered in the bad debt provision,

Other information

Munagement & responsible for the other informagon. The other information comprises the information
inchaded in the Directors” Report, bur does not nclode the consolidated financal starements and our
suditors’ pepart thereon,

Our epinion on the consclidated financial smatements does not cover the other information and sccordingly
we dio not express any form of assurance conchasion therson,

In eonnection with our audit of the consolidated financial starements, our responaibifity is v tead the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whesher the other infosmation is maredally
inconsistent with the consoBdared Ansneial statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudis, or otherwize
appewss to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have pesformed, we condude that there is a
material missmrernent of this other information, we are required to report that face. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and These Charged with Govermnance for the consolidated
Financial Staremients

Mnu.igr_mmt is responsible for the prepacstion and faie presentstion of the consalidared finandal
statements in accondance with International Financial Reporting Standasds and their preparsstion in

compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (1) of 2015 {as amended), and for
such infernal control as mansgement determines ia necessary 1o enable the peeparation of consolidsred

financial ststerments that are free from materal misstatement, whethes due 1w frand of emoe

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated
Financial Statements

In preparing the comolidated financial statements, management is responaible for assessing the Group's
ahility to continue as a going concem, disclesing, a5 appiicable, matters relaced to going concern and using
the going concern basis of sccounting unless management either ntends to lguidase the Group or 1o cease
operations, of has no realisoc alternatve but 1o do so,

Thaose charged with governance are responsible fior oversesing the Group's financial seporting process,



Q GrantThornton

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Sharcholders of Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Report on the audit of the consolidated fnancial statements (continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the Consalidated Financial Statements

Char ohjectives are to obtain ressonnble sssurance shour whether the consolidated Anancial statemenss as a
whole azre free from materal misstatement, whether doe o franed or ervor, and to issme an suditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assarance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with T5As will shways detect @ marerial missratement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from frand or eror and are considered materal if, individually or in the

they could rezsonshly be expected to influence the sconomic decizions of users tmken on the basis of these
consolidated financial starements,

As part of an aadic in aceondance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and mafntain professional
skepticism throughour the andit. We also:

*  Idenify and nssess the cisks of material missatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive w those risks, and obtan andir
evidence that is suffickent and sppropriste o provide 2 basis for our opinion. The tisk of not detecting
& material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ersor, &5 fraud may
involve collusion, forgeey, Intentional emissions, misrcpresentations, or the override of lnternal control.

*  Obtain an undesstanding of internal contsol selevant to the sudi in order o design audit procedures
that ate appropoate in the droumstances, bt not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Groap's internal consrol.

* Ewvaluate the sppropristencss of accounting pelicdes used and she reasonsblencss of accountng
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Condude on the appropristeness of management's use of the poing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obmined, whether a matedal uncermainty exists related ™ events or
conditions that may cast significent doubt on the Group's ability to continne as a going concem, [f we
conclude thar 2 maverial oneertaingy exides, we sre required to draw arention in our suditor's repast 1o
the relzted disclosures in the consclidated financial statements or, if sech disclosares arc inadequare, o
mndify our opinion. Our conclugions sre based on the andic evidence obtxined up w0 the daré of gue
auditor's report. However, foture events of eondiions may cause the Group to cease to continue a5 2

[poing concesn.
® Ewaluate the overall presentation, strucrure and content of the consolidaved Anancial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financlal statements represent the underdying
trangactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentarion.

*  Obtan sufficlent sppropriste audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Group and
business activities within the Group to express an opinlon on the consolidated fnancial statements,
We are responsible for the dirscton, sepervision and performance of the group sudit. We remsin soledy
responsible for ous audit opmion.

We communicate with those charged wish governance regarding, among other mattess, the planoed scope

and timing of the audic and sdgnificant audic fndings, mchading any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identfy during our audie

We also provide those chasged with governance with & statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all reladonships and other

matters that may ressonably be thoupght to bear on our independence, and where applicable, redsted
safegmards,



Q GrantThornton

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Sharcholders of Dar Al Takaful PJSC
Report on the andit of the consolidated financial statements {continued)
Auditar’s Respansibilities for the audix of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matiess communicated with those charged with governance, we detesrmine those mavers that
were of most significance in the sudic of the consolidated financial statements of the current yesr and are
&uﬁm&&qﬂ:mm.ﬁ:@m‘hedmmhmmmm%mwm law or repulation
prechedes public disclosure shous the matter or when, In extremely mre circumstances, we determine thas
a matter should not be communicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so woald
reasonably be expected tm oorweigh the public intensst benefits of such communicaton.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements
As requited by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 {2s amended), we report that:

we have obtined all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

the consolidsted fnancial statements have been prepased and comply, in all metesial respects, with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (Z) of 2015 {as amended);

the Group has maintsined peoper books of account;
the financial information inchaded in the report of the Dirsctors is consistent with the books of
accounts of the Group;

a4 disclosed in note & w the eonsolidated financial statcments, the Group has Investment In shares
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021:

Nete 33 to the consolidated Bnancial starements redflects material related party transactions, and the
terms under which they were conducted:

based on the information that has been made aveilable to us nothing has come to our attension which
causes us to believe that the Group has contravensd during the finandal yesr ended 31 December 2021
any of the applicable provisions of the UAE. Federal Law No, (2) of 2015 (15 ameaded), the TIAR
Federal Law No. {8) of 2007 concerning the Financisl Regulstions of Insurance Companits issaed by
the Central Bank of United Arab Emirates (formerdy, the UAE Insuanes Authotity) and Organisation
of its operation o of fts Aricles of Aseociarion which would materally affect its sctivities ot its finsncial
positon a5 at 31 December 2021; and

Note 42 to the consolidared financial sratements reflects the social contributions made dusing the peas,

Further, as required by the UAE Fedezal Law No. (6} of 2007, as imended, we report that we have ohrsined
all the information and explanation we consideted necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2021
Maotes 2021 2020
AED ABD
ABRETS
Takaful operations’ ussets
Aorailable-for-sale byvesnnents 5 - L 000,000
Investments at fair valae theough profit or loss 5 AR, 903,030 420 B85 226
Held to maturity investments K 7,463,927 11,390, 0fq
Diue from shaseholdess B 22177, 660 25.786.5%
Rerakaful eontiact nssers:
Unearmed comeibution 7 93,538,098 51, 250635
Claims reported wnsettled 7 132,730,624 F41.143,7 71
Claims incorred but not teported 7 16,730,904 16,827 992
Contobution deficiency reserve 7 - 20430
Mathermaeical reserve 7 9,677, TED B.a02 8.0
Taknfa and nther receivables B 274,984,447  Z242797.94B
Prepayments and other peceivables 9 3,961,933 3744919
Wikala deposies 0 188,699,947 127,731,667
lavesment propertes i1 = 15,768,081
Cash and eash equdvalents 12 15,772,579 TO0ME TR
Total takaful operatons’ assers 1,206,631,990 1,158 258 B32
Sharcholders’ asseis
Properry and cquipmsnt i3 16,029, 244 21 BiT.0ET
Intangible assets I4 B9, 137,673 93115327
Investment properties 11 39,681,950 20,208776
Dieferred policy oost 14 22145067 12,50 (el
Avatlable-for-sale mvestments 5 1,943,000 5543000
Tnvestments at falr valoe through profic or loss 5 50,932,661 -
Held o manrity invesiments 5 14,550,835 BI22 840
Restricred deponit 15 16,000,000 16,000,000
Walala deposits 10 81,609,404 259336170
Prepayments and other receivables o 11,422,822 13574452
Cash and cash equivalents 12 18,065,918 52374 868
Toral sharcholders® asaets 366,418,578 504,268,676
Total assets 1,583,050,488 | 662,527 508

The accompanying nows | to 44 form an integral part of these consobidared financial statements.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

TARAFUL OPERATIONS LIABILITIES AND
DEFICIT
Takeful operations® Habilities
Deferred discount
Takaful contract HabiStine
Unezmed contribution
Claims repored unserded
Claims incurred but not reported
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses
Unexpired itk recerve
MMarthematical reserre
Takaful and remlcaful payables
Tadeaful and investment contracts Eabiities
Total takaful opesations® Babilitics
Takaful operatons” deficit
Card Haesan against deficit in policyhaldess fand
[.tf:::‘mﬁmn agrinst Qard Flassan to policyholders’
Total deficit from takaful operations
Toral takaful operations’ liabilities and deficit

SHAREHOLDERS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Shareholders' liabilitics

Othes lahilit

Bonis peserves, net

De to policyholders

hussbaha payable

Total sharehokiers? liahilites

Shareholders’ equity

Share eapital

SIROUCOTY reserve

Retakaful reserves

Accurmlated beases

Total sharcholders' equiny

Total sharcholders” Liabilities and equity

Total liabilities, policyholders' fund and equity

Motes

il R R RE (N R I

L

1%

B

B R

201 2020
AED AED
7,532,033 4093 442
229,240,775 214512341
226225810 263416413
31,350,752 54579 356
5,563,010 5,730,083
o ]I-m‘l'riﬁ
1,506,941 1915187
12,719,254 10916125
250,250,306 197,302,000
450,903,939 470 ARG 224
1,215,318,529 1,164,281 440
(229,137,864}  (213,740,695)
229,137,864 213,740,895
1,215,318,529 1,1&1-_@91,1145
TOATAS02 106,905,102
4,589,623 5,263,519
22,177,560 25,786,530
109,260,000 214855 660
215,496,785 353 210,820
150,000,000 130,000,000
7,640,367 5482374
2,073,083 42,503

T 1,688
174 145 435 245
3477 Gl g
1,583,050,488 1 662 527 508

These consobidated financial stavements were spproved by the Board of Direcrors on 16 March 2002 and

The accompanying notes 1 to 44 form an in

patt of these comoliduted Brancial statcments,
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Arreibatable 1o policyholders

Talealnl income

Gross contriboton written
Accepted bosiness

Eetakaful share of ceded business
et talaful contribution

[Net tranefer o unearned contribotions ceserve
et takiafiol concributions earned

[¥iscount exrned

Policy Fes

Total takaful income

Takaful expenses

Zross claims paid

Retakaful share of ceded business paid
Met tikaful claims paid

Change in provision for outstanding claims

Change in retakaful share of outstanding claims
Change in net incurred but not reported claims

Change in unallocated loss adjustment expenses reserve

Changes in conmbution defigency reserve

Change in investment contracts and mathematical reserves
Mer gain on assets held ar fair value through profit or loss

pet claims incurred

Excess of loss of takaful conmibugon
Crther mkabul expenses
Toral takalul income

Walssln fesy

Muodarily's fee

Invesmment and other inoome

Met loss from takaful operation for the year

Motes

HEE

27
20

2021 2120
AED AED
705,985,570 433,046,800
144,172 5,539,833
(286,105,994) (128,500,605
420,023,748 310,086,118
26,834,782 99,243 (48
446,858,530 409,328 168
23,021,901 2,136,268
* 23 584
469,800,431 418490118
(421,928, 408) (342,411,913
137,206,868 120453552
(284,721,540) (212,058 361)
3790803 (51,B63,608)
(8,423,078) 1AT9,673
3,205,540 1,572,286
147,072 (1,842 356)
2,038,570 (950, 485)
(L12,734,080) (56,504,255,
68,918,419 40,741,508
{294,357,774) (20,225 5538)
(11,631,919) (3,056,309
4 24
159,058,661 116,683,360
(176,080,714) (123,754 852)
(468,637 (1,271 443)
2,003,721 B11.187
(15,396, 965) (7 33L,730)

The accompanying notes 1 w 44 form an integral part of these eonsolidated BEnancial statetnents.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of income (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to sharcholdess

Income

Wakaln fees from pobicyholdars
Mudarily’s fee

Investment and other incoms

Expenss

Generaf and administratve cxpenses
Paolicy scoquisition cost

Acquisition cost of subsidiasies
Frnance cost

Chasgres i bonus reserve

Oither undepwriting expenses

Gain on bargain parchase

Prodfit for the petiod before Oacd Hassan
Provision agaimst Crard Hassan o polieyholders
MNet profit for the vear atsibutable vo shareholders

Earnings per share

Motes

ERY

16
30

19

11

2021 2020

AED AED
176,080,714 123754852
468 637 1,271,443
27,465,180 179,657
204,014,531 125205952
(73,189,850)  (59,806,359)
(83,003,406)  (56,915,886)
= (15645478
(5,156,174) [1,684,178)
(2,281,532) 624,771
(3,396,674) (1,977,333
- 50,186,596

(167,087 636) (95230363
36,976,895 20,975,580
(15,396,96%) (7,331, 739%
21,579,926 22 641 RED
0,144 f1s1

The H?E_ﬂijﬂn}'h'lg nobes 1 to 44 form an integral pert of these consolidated finaneial SENRETEIE.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
AED AED
Agributable ro policyholders
MNer loss from rakafol operatdon for the pear (15,396,969 7,331,730
Oher comprehengive loss
frems that maybe reclassiffed subseguendy to profic or logs
Reclassification adjmsmments relatng 1o available-for-sale fnancial
asscts disposed off duning the year = HE 25T
Other comprehensive income for the year - 98,257
Toal comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
policyholders 15 7233
Attributable o shareholders
Met profit for the year 21,579,926 22543 450
Total comprehensive inceme for the year atributable w
sharcholders 21,579,926 22 643,850

"The sccompanying nores 1 1o 44 form an integrsl part of these conselidared financial stements,




Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Btarutody  Accumulated Betakaful

capital rESEMVE losses TEEETve Tatal

AED AED AED AED AED

Balance at 1 Janwary 2020 15000000 3217989 (25,521,591 127,606 3938
Met profit for the year - - 22643850 228435 8350
Oither comprehensive [oss for the year E : :
Total comprehensive income for the year = = 22 643,850 22643 250
Drividend paid during the year {(note 22) - {#,905,0040) {4.905,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve {pote 23 = 2 2654, 365 (2.264,385) . =
Tranafior wo retakaful reserve {note 23 - - {642 50%) 642,503 -
Balanee at 31 Diecember 2020 150,000,000 5ARZ3T4  (10,680,620) 642303 145435248
Mes profit for the year - - 21.579,926 - 21,579,926
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - -
Total eomprehensive income for the year - - 21,570,926 = 21,579,926
Dividend paid during the year {note 22} - = (13,800,000) = (13,500,000)
Board renumeragon fees - - {0,000y - {980, 00}
Transfer to statutory reserve {rore 23) - 2,157,993 (2,157 ,993) - -
Transfer to tetzkabiil ceserve (aote 23) - - (1,430,530 1,430,530 -
Balance at 31 December 2021 L, DI, (100 7,040,367 (T, 478.226) 2,073,033 152,235,174

The aceompanying notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these consolidared financial starements.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Motes 2021 2020
AED AED
Cash flows from opetating activities
Profit for the year 21,579,926 23643 B50
Admestments foe:
Depreciation of property and equipment i3 4,601,733 308t AT
Amorasaton of intangible asssts 14 8,563,000 7192975
(Reversal)/provision for doubeful receivables {1,430,071) 6,50k 758
Wite-off of amsets 13 181,513 "
Impairnent of property and equipment 13 . 4,007,282
Change in fair valoe of investment properties 11 {3,614,093) 10,374,543
RenBsed gain on sale of financial assets ac FYTPL (2,082,541} -
Unrealised gain on sale of Arancial assers at FVTPL (1,164 363) -
Impairment boss on Goancial asses ar AFS 2 - 1575870
Healised bost on sale of finsncial assets at AFS > a 208,245
Income from wakala deposies x (2,479,730 (6,126,931}
Income from debt secantes 2 (1,265 986) {1,089 547,
MHvidend income on seonrides 24 (225,354 (304286,
Bentl income L (1,002,933) (1,120.801)
Finance cost 5,156,174 1,056,178
Amortisation of murabaha faciliy - (144,340
Gain on bargain porchase of subsdiaries 3n - (50,186,5946)
Provision for employees” end of service benefiss an 1,552,533 430,799
28,370,407 (L.077 515)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating
assets and lisbilities
Change in takaful and other receivables (3, 756,428) TEZAG1614
Change in prepayments and other receivables 2,424,789 (5,260 5066)
ﬂung: in drl'l:-m:d p::-ﬁ:]l = s {9,1.5',“1} ﬁ,ﬁ'ﬁ,lﬂﬂ
Change in eetakaful sssets (34,041, 8400 26,782,910
Change in defecred discoun: received 3,438,590 1,841,545
Ehmnge in honus reserve {ﬂﬂam 5263510
Change in takaful contract Eabilities (2B,171,551) (1548773523
Change 10 gross mathemancal ceserves 1,803,129 10.916,1 25
Chamyre in teleaful payahles 52 048 M7 25,154,000
Change i other lishilides (24,422, 965) 3RAETS 435
Cash (used in} /generated from operations (38,632,682) 12623530
End of service bencfits paid 7 (L198,570) (1,415,685
Met cash (used in) /gencrated from operating activities {39,831,2220) 11,207 854
Cash flovws from investing actvities
Putchase of property and equipinent 13 (3,447,741) (3,558,B56)
Acquisition of intangible assets 14 [4Z,551) {272 B51)
Parchase of investment securices (90,560,442) (11,588,775
Proceeds from mle of meestment securties 42 874,445 2,350, 308
Income seccived on Wakala deposits 2,205,894 026,931
Met cash ourflow on acquisition of subsidiatics 30 = (110,106,500
Amormsaton of HTM discoonr 08,004 =
Income teccived foom debe securdtien 1,149,879 1,089 542
Dividend income received 225,394 304,286
Wakala deposics made during the year - net 116,758,486 11081972
Renral incomme 1,002, 32 1120490
Finance cost paid (5,156,174)  (1,69,178)
Investment resticted deposits during the year- net - (L0000 00,
Met cash generated from [/ (used in) investing sethvitles 65,108,366  (115040,333)

The accompanying nows 1 10 44 form an integral parc of these consolidared financial staremenis
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 20021

Motes

Cash flows from fAnancing activitics

Payment of lease Habiliges

Dividend pasd

BOLY remuneration Fees paid

(Payment)) proceeds from musabaha Facility obrabned

Met cash (used in) [ generared from Anancing
activities

Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eoquivalents

At the beginning of year
Included in the subsidiary classified 25 held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12

2021 220
AED AED
{3,356,593) (1,336,971)
(13,80:0,000) {4,905,00001;
{980,000 =
(105,605,6600 215,000,000
(123,742,253)  N0R 758020
(98,465,100 104,925 550
132,303,606 27,370,056
4597 132,303

The accompanyins notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these consolidated financial scatements.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the vear ended 31 December 20021

1= Legal status and activities

Dar Al Takafal PJSC (the “Company™) was incorporated as a public joint sweck company and obuwined its
commescial lcense on 23 July 2008 while commenced operations on 1 September 2008, The Company
carries out general mhaful, setakaful and investments in aecordance with the weachings of Islamic Shari'a
and within the provigions of ULAE. Fedesal Law no, 6 of 2007 relating to makaful companies and takaful
agents and the Memorendum end Ardeles of Asoclason of che Company. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box. 235353, Dubaj, United Arsh Essirates.

Although the Company holds valid Beense to msuwe short term taknful contrects in connection with non-Jife
takaful (maoror, marine, fire, engineering, medical and general aceident rieks), the Company ceased w0 isawe new
takafol contracts from 27 July 2020, The Company now plans w engage in investment activiges while
contnuing m compiete the won of already Jssued contacts and mansgiog o= related oske. The Company also
irnrests ity funds in investment securites.

The Federal Drectee-Law No. 26 of 2020 on the zmendment of cersin provisions of Federal Law Mo, 2 of
2015 {as amended) on Commercial Companies was issued on 27 Seprember 2020 and shall mke effect
stacting from 2 Janwary 2021, The Group shall apply and adjust their stas in accordance with the
provwisions thersof by no later than one year from the date on which this Decree-Law wkes effect.

Thwe Federal Diecree-Law Mo, 24 of 2020 which amends certain provisions of the ULAE Federal Law Mo
6 of 2007 on Esublishment of Insurance Auhority and Organisation of its Operations was jssued om
27 Beprember 2020 and the amendments came mto effect on 2 Janesry 2021, Effectece 2 January 2021,
the Insurance Sector became under the supervision and suthorsity of the CBUAE.

Fedesal Law by Decree No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies (the “New Companies Law") was issued
on 0 Seprember 2021 with an effective date of 2 January 2022, and will earirely replace Federal Lawr No.
2 of 2015 (a5 amended) on Commercial Companies, as amended. The Groop has owelve monchs from the
elfective dase oo comply with the provisions of the Mew Companics Law,

The Company with its subsidiatics is eollectively referred 1o 2s the “Group® in these consolidated financial
statements. At 31 December 2021, the Company had the following subgidiades:

Hame of subsidiary Proportion of cwnership interest  Principal activities
2021 2020
Famify taksful and
Moor Talafiol Fanily P]SC [note 30) 1005 100% retakabil activithey
General makaful and
Maoor Takafal General F]S-l!: {Tll;u;: 3{]} 11 TR retakaful actvines
2. Statement of compliance with IFRS

These consolidited fnancial statements have been prepared in secordanece with Intecnational Financial
Beporting Standerds (TFRS) promulgaeed by Intemational Accountdng Standards Board (IASE) and
interpretations thereof mswed by the International Financial Reportng [nterpretation Commities and in
eompliznce with the applicable requirements of UAE Federal Law No. () of 2005 (as amended) relating
o commercial compandes, and of UAE Federal Law Mo, 6 of 2007 oo estsblishment of Fmancial
Regulations of Insurance Companies issved by the Ceneral Bank of United Amb Emirates (formerdy, the
UAE Insurance Authoriry} and Oiganisation of the Inserance Opemations, conceming wakaful companies
and agents. These consolidated financial statements are prepared in UAE Dichams "FAED").
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2, Statemant of compliance with IFRS (continued)

Standards, interprotations, and amendments to axisting standards

a) Standards, interpretations, and amendments te existing standarde that are
effective in 2021

TI.'LI.'. Fl.'.ll.l.ﬂ".i'il'.lg l'l.'j.‘.'."il'.l[ il'.;'l.rl.d.ird.‘i-., i..'r.|la:1:']'.|.|:|=‘|:rj|'.'|-r|.'t andd arnendments o h:inin_g sbnndzrﬂ: wETE jEiuerd :h:.r [hr
TASE:

Srandard number Title Effectve date
COVID-19-related rent conozssions beyond 30 june 2021

i {Amendments o TFRS 16) M e

IFRS %, IAS 39,IFRS  Imterest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (Amendments to ] a2

T AFRS 4 and TFRS 16 TFR5 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFES 4 and IFRS 1o)"

These standands have been sdopted by the Gooup and did not bave & material impacs on thess financial
statements.

) Standards and Interpretations effective but not yet adopted by the Group
Applying IFRS ? Financlals [nstrument with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

The Group qualifies for tempotry exempton from applying IFES 9 oa the prounds that it bes not
previously spphied any version of IFRS % and is acivitges are inantly connected with insurance with
the carrying amounts of it labiines within the scope of IFRS 4 being prearer than 90 percent of the total
careying amount of all its labilives ae 1 Janusey 2019 with 0o subseguent changre in fes actvides.

The fair vatue of the Group’s direcy held financial assers ar 31 December 2021 thae will give rise to solely
payments of prncipal and inerest CSPPTY coterion on implementaton of IFRS 9, excluding any fnancial
szsers that meers the definidon of beld for trading, are shown in the table bebowr,

Financial assets that pass the
SPPI test, excluding any
finamnclal asser that meets the

definition of held for trading All other fnancial asseis

Mowement inm Movement

Fair value at Fair value Fair value at  in fair value

31 Decernber during the 31 December during the

2021 yoar 202 year

Asgets AED AED AED AED

Takaful and othes reecivables 274,984,447 - - .

Available-for-sale investments 1,000, B0 - 5,943 (iH) 746,428
Finarscial assets at fair volue

thirowgh profic or loss B0,932,661 3,246,704 450,003,939 68,918,419

Held to mmnaricy 22,014,762 - - =

Cicher recetvaliles 3 473,525 = = -

Restricted deposit T (R0, b - - e

Wakals deposits 270,309,351 - - £

Cash and cash pq'uiira.l-:nlﬁ 33559-],3‘9'? = Lo = -

672,406,943 3,246,704 456 846,939 06, B4 T
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Dar Al Takaful PJsC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2021

2 Statement of compliance with IFRS [continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards (continued)

k) Standards and interpretations effective but not yet adopted by the Group
{continued)

Applying IFRE ¥ Finoncials Instrument with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (continwed)

The Brencial assers that pass the SPPL test, excluding any Gnancial assets that meets the definmon of held
for trading or that i managed and evaluated on o fir value basis of IFRS 9 in the mhle above are dassified
as amonised cost under TAS 29, The eredir emings of ivvestment seeurities, deposits and bank balances are
a8 follows:

Below
BEB+ to BBB- ar
AAA AAG o AA- A to A BHH- not rabed Tatal
Assety AET AED AED AED AED AED
Available-For-sale
imvestments - - - . 1,000,000 1,000,000
FVTPL : - B074,839 0695400 33162422 50932661
Held 1o mavarity - - - E 839676 13,175,086 22,014,762
Restricted deposit - = 16,0, D00 - = 16,000,000
Wakals deposits . = 182.316,200 117,993,151 = 2T0.309,.351
Cazh and cash
equivalents - - 282270 1882030 3575588 33,691,897

[ ]

204,626,318 138,410,257 50,915,096 393,948,571

] Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not
yat effective and have not been adopted early by the Group

The impact of the new sandards, interpretations end amendments that are isswed, but not yet effectve, up
to the date of issuance of the Group's financial starements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

LFRS 17 Insarance Contracts (effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 Jangary 2023
with earlier application permitted as long as IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are also applied)

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts combine features of both a Anancial inscromene and & service contrece. In
edditon, many insurance contracts genernte cash flows with substantal vansbiisy over a long pedod. To
provide useful information about these fearures, [FRS 1T:

* combines current messurement of the futore cash fows with the recogniton of profit over the perod
that services are provided wnder the contmct;

& presents insurance service resalm {inl:'ludi:ng presentackan of Insurance I'l;:lul'\'I:I'II.LE} mpn.'rll::l:,r from
insurance fnanee income or expenses; and

&  requices an entity o make an sccounting poliey chodce of whether v recognise all ingurance Anance
income of expenses in profic or 10ss or w eecognise some of that income of expenses in other
comprehensive income,

Thie key ponciples o IFRS 17 ate that an cnity:

® lentifies as imsurance contacts those contracts under which the entty accepts significant Insuanes
cigk from ancthet pacty (the policyholder) by sgresing to eompensate the policyholder if a specified
uncermain funure event (the insured event) adversely affects the policybolder;

®  peparates specified embedded derivatives, distinet investment eomponents and distiner performance
nbligrtions From the insurance coniracis;

*  divides the contracts into peoups thae it will recopnise and measure;
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Drar Al Takaful PJSC
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 20021

3. Summary of significant accounting palicies (continsed)

c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not
yot effective and have not been adopted early by the Group (continued)

*  recognises and measures groups of insuranee contracts ar
i snsk-adpested present value of the fasane eash Aows (the Rilfilment eash fowe) that mearpomtes
all af the available information abour the fulfilment cash Aows in 2 way that is consisene with
observable matket information; phos (iF this value is a liabdlity} or minus (if this valae is an esser)
Ik a0 amount representing the unearned profic in the group of conmtraces (the contracaal service
marging;

b} recognizes the profit from & group of insumnce contzacts over the penod the entity provides insarance
cover, and a5 the entity is released from sk If a group of contracs is or becomes loss-making, an
enty reeopnises the loss immediarehy;

*  presents separtely msurance sevenus (that excludes the receipt of any investment compoment),
insurance seovice expenses (that excludes the repayment of any investment components) and insurance
finance incHme or sxpenses;

* discloses miormacion to cnable users of Mnancial smtements o assess the effect thar that contracts
within the scope of IFRS 17 have on the financisl position, financial performance and cash flows of an
entity.

IFRS 17 cludes an optional simplified measurement approsch, or premivm allocation approach, for
simpler insurance contracts. Group i cusrently evalating the expected impact.

Basis of proparation

The consolidated financial starements have been prepared on the hisworical cost basia, except for the
revaluaton of cermin Enancial struments and investment properties which are stased 2t fair waloe,
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration glven in exchange for assen.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial sratements comprise the financial starements of the Company and all of its
subsidiarics as of 31 December 2021, Control i schieved when the Group:

has power over the investes;
is exposed, or has rights, o variable et fFom it ivalvement with the investes; and
#*  has che ability to use its power to affect i3 returmns,

Al transactions and balances betwesn Group companies are eliminated on consoldation, inchuding
unrealised gaine and Insses on transactions between Group companbes Where unreslised lopses om
Intra-Eroap asser sales are reversed on consolidation, the undedying asset is also wested for impainnent from
a group perspective. Amounts reported 1n the financial staremencs of sebsidizges have besn adjusted where
Mecessary (o ensuse consistency with the accounting policies adogted by the Group,

Prosfit or loas and other compeehensive mcome of subsidianes scquired or disposed of dunng the yeae ae
recognised from the effective dave of acquisidon, or up to the effective date of digposal, ns applicable.
Changes in the group ownership Interests in subsidiaries thar do ot resalt in the Group losing control over

the subsidiaries are accounted fior a8 equity ransactions. The carrying amoonts of the Geoup's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjustad to reflect the changss in their relatve interests in the subdidiades,

Any difference berween the amount by which the non-contralling interests are adjudeed and the fair value
af the consideragion paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attribured o owners of the Parene
COmpany.

Business combinations and goodwill

The Group applies the sequisition method in sceountng for business combinations. The consideraton
transferred by the Group to obtain control of & submidisry is calowlated a5 the sum of the scquisition-date
fair valees of assews eransferred, liabilites incurred and the equity incereses issued by the Group, which
includes the fair value of any asset or Eabiliy arising from a contingent consideration srtangement.
Acquisition cosm are expensed as incurred.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant acesunting palicles (eontinuwed)

Business combinationz and goadwill [continued)

The Group recopnises identifiable aspets acquired and liabilities assumed in n business combination
regardless of whether they have heen previously recognised in the acquiree’s finandial statements poor 1o
rthe acquisition, Aseets acquired and Babilides assumed are genemlly mensured ar thedr acquisition-date Fair

valoes,

For common contral transactons inwhich all the combining eatities of businesses altirmandy aze contiolled
by the same party or pacties both hefore and after the combination, and that conerol is not wansmorny, the
Group recopgnises the diffesence beraeen pu.rthn:z congidermtinn ard :a.r:ﬁng gmount of net asets of
acquired entities or businesses ax an adjustment 1o equity. This acecunting rreatrment is also applied to later
acqpdsition of some or all shares of the non-conmolling intetests in 2 subsidiarny.

Product classification

Takaful comracts are those contracts where a group of policyhobders {the policyholders) moutually guarantee
one anathes against preseribed wacerin funire events of loss or damage, where the Group aces as a Walkil
yagent) on their behalf in managing che Islamic Takeful opesstions in consideranon for o Wakala fee. The
Takafud amounts {contobutons) pasd net of the Wakala foc are considesed as funds available for Mudarha,
whete the Group sets as Mudarh, investing some of these fends in consideration of 2 pre-agreed share of
the realised pun:-ﬂl ot loss, Mdudarib fee) if eny. The policyholdets further donate thedr contribution to those
other policybolders who saffer 2 prescribed event of loss or damape, payable per the policies of the Group,
im its eapacity a8 an agent. In mse of deficit in pobicyholders” operstion, such deficit = funded by the
shareholders as a Qard Hasan {profit froe loan),

Deferred policy cost
Short fexrrm fakafid conteacts

Commigszons and other soqussition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing,
existing contracts are treared as Defierned policy cose ("DPC™). AR other costs ane recognised as expenses when
mcurred, DPC &5 sebsequendy amortsed in the scarzment of comprehensve income over the life of the
coftraces as the related coneduton §s eamed. DPC iz tested for recovembility as at each seépocting dape

Long term takalul contraces

The costs of acquirng long term takaful contracts, such as commission expenses and other directly amribarable
costs relaed o securing near contracts, e capatalised as DPC. All other costs ane recognised as an expense
when incurred, The DPC is subseguendy amostised in line with the exming pamerns of the Wakala income for
such Iong rerm mkaful conrracts over the effecdve reem of the policy, DPC is tested for recoverabilioy as at
each reporting date.

Bonus reserve

The Beterve for ithe up~ﬁ'\-:nl: Banus ﬁ:hrippli:l'hln FAVEngTE Flu.ns = bazed on by datfenemt mtu:ﬂ 'p-em:.d:. n
four-year vesting period applics on policies ssued befose Ocwober 2060 A manirity vesting period apphies on
poicies issued afer Chomober 20706

Mathematical reserves

Mathematical resesves are provisions created for long rerm mkaful contmets o cover famre claims expected
to arige In mespecs of those contacts that existed at the perod end. The reserve caleulation 15 based on
factoes such a8 expected mortality, an actoarially determined esdmate of costs and the discount e,

Surplus/deficit in policyholders' fund

If the susphs in the policyhalders’ fund ac the end of a year §s sufficendy lacge, a percentage of the meplos
shall be distdbuted berween policyholdets that have oot mads a claim, in propomion o their sk
contributions o the fund afer ACCOIAENE for reserves. The distdbosons will be :.ppmeﬂ i::r the Grmp"a.
Farwa and Sharf’s Supervisory Board Any femiaining surphes after the disteibuion will eemain in the

policyholders' fand,
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continuead)

Surplus/deficit in polisyholders’ fund (continued)

A deficiency in poficybolders’ fund is made good by a profit free doon (Qard Hagan) feam che sharcholders”
fund, This Crard Hasan is to be repaid from fumore surpbeses sising from mkaful operatons on 3 poosicy
bagis. This Chid Hasan =8 tested for i.m]:njn:nmt Jn.nm.ll.].' and the F-c:an:'run of th Qnrﬂ Hakan thar i
considered impaired is charged 1o the sttement of income.

Cn liguidaton of the fund, the acoumulated surplus m the policyholders’ fund, i amy, after mseting all
obligations {inchading repayment of the outsanding amount of Qard Hasa), will be dealt with afier
consulting with the Group's Faran and Shasi'a Supervisory Board. In case of an accumulated defiar, any
Qard Hasan outstanding at the dme of liquidadon will not be repayvable by the policyholders’ fund and the
sharehalders' fund will forspn such cutstanding amount

Any deficitin the policyholders” fund, except for deficits erising frorm o decling in the fir vahue of seoirites,
i5 finsinced by the sharcholders throogh a Crard Hasan {loan withour any profich, The Group maintains a
full provieion againse the Card Hasan,

Property and eguipment

Property and equipment, including ownes-necupied propetty, is stared ot eost, exeluding the costs of day
to day servicing, less acoumulased depreciation and sccumulated impairment losses. Capiral work-in-
progress (CWIF) s not depreciated,

Drepreciation & provided on a stralght-line basis over the useful lves of the following clasges of sssers:

Building & years
Leaschold improvement 5-10 pears
Furnimure snd Axoores 4-5 years
Ciffice equipmen: 3-5 years
Vehicles 3 years

The assers’ residual values, useful [bves and methods of deprecistion are reviewed ot ¢ach financial year znd
and adjusted prospectively i appropriate st each foascisl year end.

An item of property #nd equipment is derecognised upon diposal or when oo forther futere economic
benefite are expected from i wse or disposal, Any guin oc Jogs afbsing on dececognition of the asset
(caloulated as che difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) i
incleded n the consolidared staremient of income & che vear the asset i derecopnised,

Expenditure incarred o replace & component of an item of property and equipment thar 15 acoounied for
separately s capitalived and the carrying amount of the component that iz replaced s wriesen off. Ocher
replacement or major inspection costs are capitalised when incorred and if it is probable thar fueure
econamic benefits associated with the item will flow w0 the enticy and the cost of the item can be measured
reliahly. All other expenditure & recopnised in the consobdared stitement of ncome 38 the expense =
incurred.

Leases

The nght-to-use smset 15 inmtally measured at cost, which comprises the inital amoant of the lease liabaliny
adjusted for any lease payments made ar or before the commencement dace, plus as inftal direct costs
incurred. The nghr-to-use i5 subsequendy depreciaved wsing the stmaighr-ine method from the
cammencement date v the eacher of the end of the useful life of the dght-we-use or the end of the lease
rerm, The estimated wseful life of the righe-vo-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of property
and equapment, In addition, the oghi-te-uss 15 penodically reduced by mpairment losses, if any 2nd adjuseed
for certain remeasuremnents of the lease Habalivy,

The lease labiliny is initdally measured at the present valee of dhe kease paymenes thar are not paid ac the
commencement dute, discounted vsing the funding cost rate implicit in the lease oz, if that rate connot be
readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rare. Generally, the Group uses it incremental
borrowing rates as the discount rare
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Dar Al Takaful PJ5C

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

= Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)
Leasas (continued)

The lease liability s measured ar amordsed cost using the effectve fonding cost method. T is remeasured
when there is a change in the future lease payments ansing from & changs in an tndex or mee, of there 55 4
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under 3 residual value prenntee, or
if the Group changes its sssessment of whethes it will exercise & purchase, extension or termination oprion,

When the lease lisbilicy is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made 10 the carrying
amount of the nght-to-use asges, or is recorded in the profit ar loss if the camying amount of the Gght-mo-
e asset has heen reduced o seto,

The Group presents mghi-to-use assets that do not mees the definmon of investment property in "Propery
and equipment’ and the leage liabilizes 92 a separate item in the starement of fimncial positdon.

Intangihle assets

Tntangghle assers scquired separstely are measured on initial recognition ar cost. The cost of intangible agsets
'Il:l:p.l.il'l:d in a businesa cormbizeation i3 thelr far valoe at the dage of acguisinon. Folkneing mistal recopnmion,
intangible aseers sre amortsed over the usefiul economic life and assessed for impaksmment whenever these
15 nn indicztion that the inmangible asser may be impaired, The amortsation expense on intangible assces
with finite lves is recognised in the congolidated statement of income. The following estimated ussful Bves
are applied:

#  Life mkafal contracs 23 years
#  Blon:ife mkafal contracts 5 months
* Customer relationships 3.5 months
= Sofoware 3 years

Amortisaton i ealeulated on g stralght-line basis over the estimated ugefl lves of the ossees.

Groins or losses arising from derecognition of an inmngible asser are measared as the difference berween
the net disposal proceeds and the cacrymg amount of the asset and are recognised in the consobdarsd
statement of income when the asser i derecognised.

Invastment propearties

Investment propestes are propertes held to eam rentals and/or for capial spprecaton 'ir:l:]'udh:.g
propestes umder consthuction for such pusposes. Investunent propertics e mesdured ingtdally at cosr,
inchuding transaction costs, Cost inchudes the cost of replacing, parr of an existing investment property at
the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criterda are met; and excludes the cost of day to day servicing
of an investment peoperty. Subsequent to initial socognition, investment properties arc staved at fafr value,
which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair
values of mvestment properties are incheded in the statement of Incoame in the penod in which they arse,

Investment propertics are derscopnised when either they have besn disposed of or when the mvesimen:
propetty is permanently withdrwn from ese end oo future economde benefit B expected frorm i disposal,

Teensfer s made w or from investment property only when there is 2 change in use evidenced by the end
of owner-gccupation, comnencement of an opcatng lease to another paryt For o manefer from
investment property  owner ocoupied propeny, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fake
vatue at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an invesrment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up o the
dare of the change in pse.Fair vahue i determined by open market values based on valuatons peformed
by mdependent surveyors
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Crress taleaful comiributions

Gross takaful contrbutions comprise the total contibutions receivable for the whole perdod of cover
provided by Talaful contracts enrered into during the accounting, period and are recognised on the date on
which the Takaful policy incepts, Contributions inchede any adestments arsing in the accounting period
for contributions receivable in respect of Takaful contrmets executed in ptior sccountng periods.
Contribufions collected by intermediares but not ver received, ars assessed based on estimates from Takafal
ﬂp-!ul:it.l-lﬂ- or past ﬂp-nri.enl:z arsd are includad in Takaful contrbotons.

Uneamed contributions are those proportions of contibutions writeen in a pear that relare o penod of ek
alter the teparting date, Unearned contibution is caloulared 25 the higher of the amount determined on a
daily prorate basis or “1,/365" method The proportion attributable to subsequent year is deferred as 2
prowvision for uneamed contributions,

Dizcounts eamed
Dhscoants carned are recognised at the dme polickes are wotten. Discount eamed oo outwards retekafol

contracts are deferred and amortsed on a stragght fine basis over the term of the expected premiums
payable

Wakals foes

The Group manages the mbkaful opesstions on beball of the polievholders for o wakala fee which b
recogmised on an sccrenl basis, A similar amount is shown as expense statement of income acmburable w

policyholders,

Tnvesirment fncormne

Profic mcome s recognised on an accreal basis mking it account effecuve funding cost mates on the
inserument, on a gme proportonare basis when it becomes recenvable.

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a sttabght-line basis over the term of the lesse,
Dividend income i recognised when the fght o receive payment is established.

CGaadns and losses on the sale of imrestmenes se caleulated as the difference between pet salea proceeds and
the carrping amount and are recorded on occurrence of the sals mansaction

Retakaful contribution

Crross cetakaful contribution weritten comprise the toal contribugon payable for the whole cover provided
by conmacts entered into duting the period and are recognised on the inception date of the policy.
Contrbutons include any sdjustments ansing in the accounting period in eespect of recakaful contraces
inceptng in prior accountdng perods. Uneamed retakaful conodbutons are these proposions of
contribubon wrinen in a year that relave o periods of sk after the repordng dare.

Unearned retakaful conttibutions ace deferred over the teem of the undeclying digeer Takabol polices for
risks-artaching contracts and over the teem of the retakaful contract for losses pocurring contracts,

Gross retakafol contdbution on Bfe are recognised i35 an expense on the cadier of the dme when
contibunon are pavable or when the policy becomes effective.

The Group cedes Takabd nek in the nommal courge of business for all of it businesses. Retakaful assets
represent batances due from remksful companics, Recoverable smounts are estimated o3 manner
comsstent with the oumstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the cetakaful contracts,

An impairmens review 5 performed at each reportng dase or more frequently when an indicasion of
impairment asises dudng the repocting yeae [mpairment cocurs when objective evidence exists that the
Crrowp may not secover outstanding amounts under the wrms of the contract and when the impact on the
amoants that the Group will receive from the retakaful can be measured reliably. The impaizment boss i
tecorded in the stavernent of income.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continucd)
Retakaful contribution [continued)
Ceded rernkofol srrangements do not relieve the Group from its obBgations wo policybolders.

The Group also assumes retakaful sk in the nommal course of business for takaful contracs whete
applicable. Contributions and clalms on assumed retakafol are pecopnised as imcome and expensss In the
same manner 45 they would be if the serakafiul were considesed direce business, taking inm account the
peoduct classificaton of the reinsured business. Retaksful habiliges represent balances due to retakadul
companics. Amounts payable are esdmated in 2 manner consistent with the associated rewabaful contrace.
Contmbutons and claims are presented on a pross basls for both ceded and assumed serakafal.

Retakaful aspers or labilides ase deseeognised when the contractial ghts ase extinguished or expire or
when the contract is transferred o another party.

Claims

Claims consist of anrount paid and payable oo Takaful contract halders and thied parties and relaced loss
adjustmens expenses, net of salvage and other recovesics and are charped to income as incurred. Provision
for dncusted but oot seported claims is included within the additonal reserve and reflected in the
consolidaced starement of income.

The Group generally estimates it chums based on previows expenence. Independent boms sdyusters
normally estimare claims. Any difference between the provigions at the end of each reporting date and
settlements in the following pemod &5 included in the underwriong sccount for that year, The einsurers’
porton wwneds the above sutsmnding clalms 38 classified as resakaful eontract azsets and shown &8 current

azzets in the statement of financial positon
Retakaful share of claims incumrad

Retakafil share of clalms are recogised when the related gross claim & recognived scoording fo the merms
of the refevant conirace,

Policy acguisition costs

Fees and other aequisiion costs that vary with and ase related to secoring new contracts and renewing
XISt contracts ate amortised ower the terms of the policies as Takaful eontdtution i carned.

Provision for IBNR

Provision for Incurred But Mot Reported (*IBNE™) claims is made at the starement of financial position
date based on 2n actuanal estimate obtaned from an independent acruary in nccordapce with the financial
regulations for cakaful companiee isseed by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates {formedy, the
UAE Insurance Authority).

Provision for ULAE

Provigion for Unallocated Liods Adjustment Expenges (ULAE) which cinnct be allocated o specific daims,
is made a3t the starement of financial position dste based on actuarial estimates obined from an
jru:i-l‘.'[:tndrmt AChuAry in acoordance with the financial r:g:l.:lh'l:irm: For tzkezful numpn.nh'_: issued by the Cenmal
Bank of the United Arsb Emirates (foomedy, the UAE Insutanee Awthosicy).

Liability adegquacy test

Al recopnised taleafal contmct Esbilites mcloding prowision for ousstanding claims are subject fo lakbiliy
melequacy test at each reporting date. This mvolves comparison of cumrent estimates of all contraches] cash
floers amached o these labilies with their carrying amounes, Estdmanes of contractwal cash (lows include
expected claim handling costs and recoveries from third pardes. Any deficlency in carrying smounts is
charged w the income strement by establishing 2 provision for losses arising from liabilicy adequecy st

24
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3. Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continuwed)
Clalms reported unsettled

Contract Babilivies are recognised when contrects are entered into and contibubons are chaged. These
liahilicies are known as the cladms repomed woserted provision, which are based on the estimated wltimarte
cost of all claims incurred but not setded ar the reporting date, whether reported or not, 2fter reducton for
the expected value of salvage and other recoveries, Delays can be experienced in the notficaion and
sertdement of certain types of claims, therefore the uitimpte cost of daims cannot be known with cenaingy
at the reporting dase, The lisbility is sot discounted for the ime value of meney. No provision for
equalisation or camstrophic reserves is recopnised. The lEsbilicy is detecopnised when the contracs sxpires,
is discharged os s caneeilel

Uneamed premiuvm reserve

Unesrned Premium Reserve (UPR) represenes thae portion of peemiums eatned, gross of retakaful, which
telared to the period of mkeful subsequent m the smrement of financial position date and is mainly
computed on linear method based on the outstanding period from the dae of stavement of Francial
posinon up m the date of the mamrity of the pelicy based on acruarial csEmates cbrained from an
independent actuary in accordance with the financial regulasons for tkaful companies issued by the Cengal
Bank of the Unived Aszb Emivates (fotmedly, the UAE Insurance Authorn.

Retakaful assets

Ampunts recorverable under resakaful conmacts are assessed for impaimment at cach statement of fmancial
positon date, Such assets are deerned impaired if there & objective evidence, ns a resule of an évent thar
occurred afrer its initial recopnidon, thar the Groop may not recover all amoonts due and char the event
hag & refiably measurable impact on the amoans that the Groowep will recedve from the reingurer.

Financial instruments

Finaneinl awiets and finsnddal Bohildes are rbungmud. when = Grn-up :nq:t:.' becomes = PRIty 1o the
contracudl provisions of dwe instrament.

All financial assets are recogmised and derccognised on trade date where the puerchase or sabe of 2 financial
asset is under 2 contract whoae teems require delivesy of the Anancial asset within the imefzrame esablished

by the market concerned, and are mmitslly messured at fair value, plos fransaction costs, except for those
Enancial asacts classified as at faic value throwgh profit or loss, which are inically measwred at fadr value.

Financial assets are dassified ioto the following spedfied categonies; finanaal assets “at faic vahse tdheough
profit or loss® (FVTPL), “available-for-sale’ (APSY Anancial assets and “other fineneial assery’. The
classification depends on the namse and purpose of the financial assers and & determined ar the time of
initial recogmition

Financial assets

The effectve profit method is o method of caleolating the amorgeed cost of a financial asset and of
allocating profit incomie over the relevant penod, The effecove profic caee is the rate thae exacty dscounes
eatirated future eash receipes through the expected life of the finandal asset, or, where appeopoate, 2
shotter period, 1o the net carrying amount on inital recognition.

"Oither financial assets’ comprise of cash and eash eqavalents, rkaful and other receivables.

Firnancial asgers ar FVTPL

Financial assets are classified &5 at FYTPL when the financial asset i either held For tading or & s
degighated as at FVTPL

A financal asset is classified as held for cading if:
& it has been acquired prncipally for the purpose of seling it in the near termy; or

* on initfal recognition itis patt of o portfolio of identified fnancial instruoments that the Group munages
together and has & recent acoeal pattern of shor-term peofit-taking or

o
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Financial instruments {continuwed)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL {eontinued)

*  itisadecivative that is not destgnated and effective 25 0 hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than & financial asset held for trading may be designated as st FVTPL upon inital

recognition ift

® such designation eliminates or significandy seduces 4 measusement o recognition inconsistency that
wiornld otherwise arise; ot

* the financial asser forms pan of a group of Anancial sssers or finencial Eabilives or both, which is
managed and i performance i évalvated on a fair vabee besls, in sccordance with the Group's
docomented risk management of investment skestegy, and informaton aboue the grosping is provided
i.nr.:r.nnﬂ:,n an that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivativies, and TAS 30 Firencial
Instraments: Recognition and Measorement permits the entire combined contract {asset oe Lisbilin w

be designated as ar FVTPL.

Financial assets ot FYTPL sre stared at fair valoe, with any gaing or Josses afising on remessussment
recopnised in profic or loss, The nee gain or loss recognised in profic or loss incorporates sny dividend o
profit carned on the fnancal asset and i ineluded in the statement of comprehensive income.

Avaitalle-for-sale fAFS) Fnancial assers

The Group has investments that are not meded in a0 active madket snd are classified 55 AFS financial assess
and stared at fair value because managpement considers thae fair value can be reliably measured. Gains and
lasses arising from changes in fair value are rocognised in other comprehensive income and accumuolated
in the cumudative change in fair values with the exception of impaicment oses, which are recognised in
profit or loss, Where the investment is disposed of or is detcemined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
lxss previously accumulated in the cumulative change in fair values is reclassified to profic or loss, The fair
walws af AFS mumm:.rnﬁeud:lmmhﬂhnd ':r.| a fi}r::iqu'; currency J: dn:b:nninﬂijm t]'||1|: ﬁ:m:i.gn CUImENLY I.I'td
tranclared af the spot e et the reposving dave. The chonge in foir value atciburable to wensladon
differences char result from a change in amortssd cosc of the asset is recognised in profiz or loss, sod other
changres are recognized in ather comprehensive income.

Held-ta-mmatarity (M)

Held-to-maturisy (HTM) investments cartied acamortised cost ars non-dervanve financial assets with fxed
or determinablie payments and fixed mamrines, where the Group has the positive intent and abifity o hold
e matutiey. Subsequent to initial recogmition, held-to-matedty assets aze measured at amorctised cost using
the effectve profic merhod less any impairment.

Other financial seseis
Other Ffswmcial aszers are measured gt amoctised oo u_ling the effective [:l'r:rEr mthosd, lexs any

impairment. Profic income i recognised by applyiog te effective profic sate, except for short-term
receivabiles when the recognidon of profit would be immazenal,

Impafrment of financial asscts

Financial assets, other than those at fair value throwgh profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered 1o be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, a5 a result of one or more events that eccarred after the mital recognition of the
finamcial assce, the esdmated future cash lows of the mvestment have been affeeted.

Foag AFS Equh:].' i.lwtrhmnn. & :|gmﬂ:nn1: or ]'.|m|n-u'ul:1.'¢d decline i the fair valas of the &Et:l'l:ﬂ}' el i
coat is considered 1o be objective evidence of impairment.

s
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impasrmens of fnancial asscis foondored)

For all other financial assets, objectdve evidence of impamrment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the lasuer or counterparty; o

bresch of contrace, such as 2 defauk or delmguency in profit or proncipal payments; ac

it beeoming probable that the borrower will enter bankniptcy or Brandal re-orpanisason; or
the disappearance of 2n active market for that finencial 2sset becsuse of financial difficultes

For cermin categories of financial assets, such a: wakaful peccivables, assete chat are assessed not o be
Impui.ﬂ!'d Lrld.l'rl::iu.aﬂjl are, in addickomn,, assessed for impﬂ.‘in‘nent on g crdlective hasm E:H;ju:dvt eeidencs of
impairment for a portfolio of seetivables could indude the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed papments in the portfolio past the averape cradit perind, ss well as
obaervable chanpes in matonal or local econamic conditons thas correlace with detrult on receivables.

For financal assets carried at amortised cost, the smount of the impaiement loss recognised is the difference
between the asset's earrying smount and the present value of estimated futore cash fows, dscounted st the
financial asser's original effective profit rane.

Fot financial asses carried 2t cost, the amount of the impairment loss & measured as the difference berareen
the asses's carrying amount and the peesent vakoe of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
curtenit market e of return for 2 similer francial asses, Such I:I'l'li:.lﬂ.l'l.'l'l'l:l,'.l.'t‘l: bogs will ot be reversed o
subsequent petiods,

The carrying amvount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment boss direetly For all finandal assers
with the exception of mkaful receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowmnce account. When a mkaful receivable 5 conssdered wnoollectble, it is written off agzinst the
aflowance account. Sobsequent tecoveries of amounts previously written off are crodived against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance accouns are recognised in consolidared

statemnent of Income

When an AFS financisl asser is considered to be impaired, comulative prings or losses previously eecopnised
i other :l;,m'lg'm-J'lun.pﬂ incamie are reclassified to comsalidated statement of incame in the p-l:ril:rd

For financial assers measured ar amordsed cost, if, in 2 sobsequent period, the amounr of the impairment
loszs decremses and the decrease eon be relzred ubia:r]vﬂ':.' o an event clmu.'r.ing after che il:npdirrrlrmt was
recognised, the previously recognised mpairment loss is reversed dhrough profic or boss oo the exear that
the carrying amount of the invesmment at the dare the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
armormzed cost would have been had the Impalrment nos been mecognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment kosses: previously recognised in profic or koss are oo
reversed thoough profit oc kass, Any increase in fadc value subsequent to an impaitment loss is focognised
in orther comprehensive income,

Derecognition of financial assees

The Group derecognites a financial asset only when the contractual righes o the eash fovws oo the asset
enpire, o when it transfers the finasteial asget and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asser to another entty. If the Group neither transfers nor rerains substanrally all the fsks and revards
of ownership and continues o control the transferred asser, the Group cecognises i retzined profic in the
azset and an associaved linbility for amoents it may have o pay. IF the Group retains sabstantially all the
risks and rewards of owneeship of a ransferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financal asset.

el
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continuwed)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classiffcation as debr or equity

Dbt and equity instraments ssued by the Group are dassified a5 cither financial labibioes or &s equity in

agcordance with the subsmnee of the contracmual arrangement and the definitons of o Arancial lishitioy and
an equity imstrument

Eguity instruments

An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences 3 residusl interest in the assets of 2n endty after
deducting all of its lahilides. Bauiry inasruments Baued by the Geoup are teeognised at the procesds
recebved, net of direct Issoe costs.

Finaneinl Habilities

All financial liabilitics ate subsequently mensured ar amortised cost uging the effective profic rate method
arat FYTPL

However, francial liabiliges thar arise when a transfer of 2 Brnancial asset does not qualify for derecogmition
or when the continuing involvement approach applics, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group,
ond commitments lsesed by the Group to provide an Islamic financing ot below markes profie rate are
measured in accordance with the specific sceounting policies set ot below.

Takafial, retakafid and other payables

Takaful, retakaful and other payables and due to shaesholders sre nitially messared at Fair walue, plus
transxction costs and are subsequently mensured at amortised cost askng the effective profit method.

Financial Nalilities subgeguently mensured o amonised cost

Financial lehilies that are noc held for trading and are not designaced a5 ar FVYTPL are measored at
amortsed cost at the end of subsequent sccounting pedods. The carnpng amounts of fimancal Babiliies
et are subsequenty measured at amortised cose are determined based on the effective profit methed,
Profit expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an assec is incloded in the consolidated income

SCARCTTHENL

The effecsine Pn::lﬁt rmetteid 1% = rmethnd. |;|-'F i:l]l::ﬂ::i'.ng l;hn: 1rru:.m"|snl:] onsk nf 1 H:ﬂ.‘ll‘h:iﬂ] Enhﬂr:,l md gf
allocating profit expense over the relevant pedod. The effective profit mte is the rate that exsetly disoounts
estimated funire cash payments (inclading all fiees and points paid or seeeived that form an integrs part of
the effectve prafit mie, oransaction costs and oher premivms or discounts) through the expecied life of
the financial liabdity, or (whete approptiate) a shorter perod, m the net catTying amount on mtal
recapmiton.

De-recognition of fnancial Kabilities

The Geoup derecopnizes financial Lzbilices when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they cxpise. The difference berween the careying amount of the financial lability derecognised
ark the congiderstion paid and payshle, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilines sssumed, is
recognised in consolidated income statement

Receivables and payables related to takaful contracts

Receivables and payables are recognized when due. Thess include amounts due 1o and fom takafiel brokers,
te-insuress gnd mkaful contrace hodders. IF there i objeertve evidence thar thve mkaful receivehies are
impaired, the Group reduees the eateying amount of the mkaful reeeivables aceordingly and reslises the
impairment Inss in the income statement.

3
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits
Short-term employes benelits

The cost of short-teern employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service & rendered
such s paid vacation leave and bomwses) is recognised in the period in which the serviee is rendered

Provision for employees” eind of service beneflts

A provigion for employess’ end of service benefits 15 made for the full amount due o emplovees for their
periods of service up to the reporting dase in accordance with the UAE Labour Law and & reported as
separate line item under non-current lizhilities. The entitement o end of service benefits is based upon the
cmployvees” salary and length of service, subject to the completion of 8 minimum service penod as specified
in the UAE Labour Law. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactons in farelgn currencies are transhred fo AED at the foreign exchange rate muling ar the dare of
the transactions. Monsmry asses and liabibtes dencamimaied in foseign cumrencies at the stzement of
financial position date are translated o AED at the foreign exchange cate ruling st that date. Fersign
exchange differences arising on translagon are eoognised in the income staement. Nop-monetacy items
are not eetranslated at year-end and are mensured at histotical cost [tanslated waing the exchange mtes at
the transaction date}, except for non-monetry items measured ar fair valoe which are tnslaved using the
exchange rates at the date when fair volue was determined,

Impairment of nen-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Gooup's non-fnancial aseees are ceviewed ar each sratement of Hrancial
position date o whenever there is any indication of impairment, [f any such indication existg, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or i cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment losses are recogaised in
the income statement, An impairmest charge 15 reversed if the cash-penemong wnit's recoverable amounz
exceeds 115 Carrying Amount

Short term operating leases

Leages where a significant portion of the sisks and rewsrds of ownership are retzined by the lessor are
classified as operating lesses. Poyments made under operating leases aze recogmized o the Income satement
on 2 straipht-bne basis over the erm of the lease,

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cazh and cach ltqu.i.vu.i-td.h nuﬂnpd:i!u cash hnll.n.n::, uﬂdcpnﬁitu, cucrerit accounid and Bxed d:puﬂ:: '|I'|'|i,|:1_1
have original manrites of less than 3 months end are free from lizn.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Peovisions are recognied when presens oblipanons as a resule of a past event will probably lead o an
outflow of economic resources from the Group and amounts cun be estimated reliably. Timing or amouns
of the outflow may sall be uncertain, A present obligagon arises from the presence of 2 legal or consmetive
commitrent that has resulted from past events,

Provisions are messured ot the esgmared expendioars required to seads the pessent oblipadon, based on the
maost refiable evidence available at the reporting date, induding the ks and uncerminties asocisted with
the present obligaton, Whese there are a number of similar obligations, the kelihood deat i outflow will
be required in senlerment is derermined by considering the class of obligations 25 3 whole, Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the tme vahse oF money is material.

Any seimbursement that the Group can be virally certain oo collect from & thind pary with espect to the
obligation is recognised as & soparate nsset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related
proviskan,

Any reimbursement thar the Group can be virtually cestain o collect from a dhind parey with respect 1 the
obligation is recognised 2% a separate asset. However, this asser may not exceed the amoant of the selated
Proevisicen,

All peovisions are seviewed at each reporting dete and adjusted to reflect the current best estimare. In those
cases where the poesible omilow of economic resourees a8 & result of present oblipstions & considerad
imprabable or remote, no babiliey s recognisad, unbess it was assumed i the course of a business
combimation.

Poasible inflows of sconomic benefits to the Group that do not yet mees the recopnitnon critera of an ssset
are considered contngent assets.

Segment reporting

Under TFRS & “Operadng Segments”, repored segments’ profits are based on internal management
meporting information that is regulary roviewed by the chief operating decision maker, The messurement
policics used by the Group for segment seporting under IFRS 8 are the same a3 those used in it fimencial
statements

d. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

Information about estimares and assumptions thar have the most significant effect on recogniton and
measurement of assers, Babillivies, ncome and expenses 8 provided belew, Acnodl resulis may be
substandally different,

Chsrbaweliegs cdadins, IBIE, ULAE mud UPR

The estmation of the ultmate habilioy {outstanding claims, IBNR and ULAE) ansing from clams and UFR
made under mkaful contraces s the Group's mast entcal sccounting esomate. These estimaces ase
contnoaly reviewed and updared, and adijestments resulting from this teview are reflecred in the income
staternent. The process relies wpon the basic pssumption that past experience, adjusted for the effect of
current devclopments and likely rends (including acroarial caloolsions), i an appropdate bosis for
predicting future events.

Ciarrifeation of inveriwent propertier aid related faiv vole jrodpenvent
The Group makes judgement g determine whether a property gualifies a3 investment property and follows

the guidance of IAS 40 “Investment Properry” o eonsider whether any owner occopied property s not
significant and & classified sccondingly a5 investment property,
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A Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Claraiffvation of siment Sroperiser avd relafed G value fudpement fronhinue)
Fair value of investment property is estmated by an independent professional vakhuer for disclosure

purposes oaly, considering the rental yield {income spproach). This esdmate was made considering marker
rent and average rental yield. Fait value was dependent on market factors and wdlability of information,

Feair wadiv af sggrostid secuesitier
Fair value of unquoted secuntes has been determined by the management based on Earnings Multiple and
Mer Assers Value Technbques using observable market duta of compurable public entides, certuin discoont

factars and unobservable financial data of respective non-public investzes, Actual sesults may substintally
be different

Propision fir dswifvd debts

The Group reviews its takafal receivables on a regular basis wo assess whether 2 provision for impairment
should be recorded in the consobidased starement of income. In pardcular, judgment by management is
requited in the estimation of the umount and dming of futere cash fows when determining the evel of
provisions required,  Such estimates are necesdarily based on assumpeions abowt the probability of defaul
and probable losses in the event of defpukt, the value of the underlying security, and realisaton costs,

In sddition to specific provisions against individually significant takafil seceivables, the Group alss makes
& eollective impairment provision against mkaful recervables which, sldhough not specifically identified as
requining # specific provision, have o grearer ik of defaule than when odginally pranted. The smount of
the provision is based on the historical loss pattern for rkaful receivables within each grade and iz acfusted
o eeflect cutrent eoonomic changes.

Lany ferew fakrfrod comirarts

Estimates for takaful risk under bong term takaful contracts age made with reference o external actuarial
calcalations and are besed on standard indhestry and nationa] momaling cables.

Fargr panfore of fiwawsial werels at fair vadoe thragph profid or doir

The fair valee of unquoted financial asaers carried at fir value through profit or lots is based on the periodic
valuasians by fund managers and repeesents the net asset value of the fonds ar the date of valuation and the
fair value of quoted financial nsses securities carmed at fir valoe through profit or loss is hased on quoted
prices inactive mackets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. Investment in securities
Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments comprise the folloorn

Unquoted equity secirdties in LLAE
Unequated debe seourities in U AR

Arrribuagable o
Pobicyholders
Sharehalders

Investments at fair volee through profit or loss

Investments ar fair value chrough peofic or loss comprises the following:

Invessment in momal funds
Investrient in eqaity securitics

Quertad securnities inside ULAE.
Tnquated seeurties insde 1TLAE,
Linquoted sscurities cuside LLAE.

Areributable pe:
Policyholdess
Shareholders

Held to maturity investments

Held o marurity investments comprises the following:

Quoted debt securities inside LLAE.
Unouoted debe securites inzide ULAE.
Cruneed debr secannes outside ULALE,
Unguored debr seeusities cutside 1A B

Palicyholders
Shareholders

2021 2020
AED AED
5,943,000 5,543, 0010)
1,000,000 1,000,000
6,943,000 243,000
- 1,000,000
6,943,000 5,943,000
&, 943,000 6,843, 000
2021 2020
AED AED
450,903,930 4X0BRE5 236
50,932,661
501,836,600 429,885,226
50,932,651 =
28,421,912 31343481
_ 422482,007 308,341,745
501,336,600 429,585,326
450,903,939 429 &35 226
5,032,661 3
501,836,600 429 455,226
2021 2020
AED AED
3,800,648 3831405
5,626,638 5,546,375
§,909,086 8,954,986
3677390 3680000
ZL0M,T62 22112066
TAG392T 13390076
14,550,835 8,722 890
22014762 22112966

The fair valoe of the investens held vo mamrioy amouneed o AED 2301 million as of 3 December 2021
(2020 AED 233 million). Held to maturty investments amounting o AED 15 million are hypothecated

wpainst Murabaha faclity (nowe 21).
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 20021

5. Investment in sccurities (continued)

The movemens: in secetities aie as folows:

Investments

an fair walue
Mvailable- through Held o
for-sale profit and ity
investments lpss  invesiments Taogal

A0 AED AET AETD AED
At 1 Januiary 6,943,000 429885226 22,112,966 458,941,192
Addidon during the year - 133,631,058 - 153,631,055
Disposal during the yeaz = (133,844,804 - (133,844,800}
Amorisaton of premioms - - {98, 204) (98, 204)
Fair vahse gain recopded in

the consolidated stternens of

HHCOme £ 72,165,123 - 72,165,123
At 3 December i, 4.3, 00D S01.836, K 22014,762 E30.704 352
2020
At 1 January 10,269,178 - 10724187 21,593,365
Acquired throwgh scquisioon of

gubmsichiany 3006, 587 000 - 306, 58T 000
Addirion during the year - 25,705,144 11,388,779 AT 093927
Disposal duning the vear (2142063  (33,148.43M - (35,290,493)
Fair valoe (Joes)/pain recoeded in

the consobidated satement of

income (1,784,115) 40741508 - 38957393
At 31 December {5 3,000 420 RA5 226 22112966 450941, 192

6. Due from sharcholders and due to policyholders

The balanes consists of the et of Wakala fees and Oarcd Hassan balanees that is due from the shaceholders
to the policyholders amounting o AED 22,177,660 (2020: AED 25.786,539).

T. Takaful contract liabilities and retakaful assets

Giross

Tkt eowtract fiabititier:
Unearned contmbuton
Claims reported unsesded
Claims incurred bur oot repored
Unaflocated Jass adjustoment expense
Conrabuton deficiency reserve
Unexpired risk reserve
Bathematicnl reserve

Total takaful contract habilities, pross

Recoverable from reralcafl
Barekaind vonfract asmwés
Unearned coneribosion
Claims repored unserted
Claims incurred but not reported
Contribution deficieney reserve
Mathematical reserve

Total retakaiul share of takaful contract liabilities

i1l | 2020
AED AED
220,240,775 214512341
116,125,519  263416,413
31,356,752 34,670,368
5,583,010 5,730,083
5 1,831,154
1,506,941 1.915,187
12,719,254 10,916,125
506,632,251 533000473
93,838,098 51,250,635
132,720,606  141.1437M
16,730,904 16,827 982
= 200,430
9,677,780 BA02. 820
252,667,476 218225638

-
= I
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MNaotes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7. Takaful eantract Habilities and retakaful assets

Met
Unearied comtribucian
Claims reported unsetled
Claims incurred bur nor reported
Unellocased koss adjustments expense
Contriburion defickency rescrve
Unexpired risk reserve
Mathematseal reserve

2021 2020
AED AED
135,702,677 163,261,706
93,504,823 122272542
14,625,848 17,851,386
5,583,000 5,730,083
- 1,630,726
1,506,541 1,915,187
3,041,474 2113305
253064,773 314775035

The business clags wime movement i takaful coneeger liabilives and rerakaful conteece assets i given

bl
Greneral
Muotor Medical takaiul Life Total
AED AED AETY AED AET}
2021
Unesrned contribution 35,634,517 B6,613,205 13,454,955 - 135,702,677
Claims reported unserded 38,931,835 38,990,633 14,700,024 882,331 93,504,823
Claims inewrved bue not
repornted 7,797,744 4742306 2,085,798 - 14,625,848
Unallocsred loss adjzstment
ERPEDEES 3,235,077 1,324,700 1,033,233 - 5,583,000
Caontrbution deficlency
reserve - : i Z :
Unexpired risk reserve - 1,506,941 - - 1,506,541
Mathematical reserve - - - 3,041,474 3,041,474
Total 85,569,173 133,177,788 31,274,010 3,923,805 253,964,773
M2
Unezrmed contrbunon 55,8497 10039072 Ta54,137 - 163,261,706
Claims reporved unsemded 40460867  GTAI1B69 13744415 435491 122272642
Cladrms incurred but nos
repurted 10,05 329 3,800 434 1,946,623 - 17,851 386
Unallocated loss adjustmen:
expenses 1718081 2202688 1718414 5,730,083
Cantribution deficiency
reserve - 1557,949 72,777 1,630,726
Unexpired risk reseeve - 1.9151E7 - - 105,187
MMarhemarncal reserve : = = 2113305 2113305
Total [07645,674 179,746,199 24,836,966 2,548,796 314,775,035
8. Takatul and other receivables
201 Han
AFETDY AED
Contribution receivable 212,854,547 198564770
Becelvable from remzkafol and ather takaful companies 77,048,267 58,543 30
Othict tfoecivables 3,764,289 3,798,110
293,687,103 261,906,040
Less: Provisions for doubtful receivables (18,702,656)  (1B.508132)
T74,984.447  242.757,04R

X
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B. Takaful and other receivables (continued)

Movements in provision for doubaful reosivables is given below:

2021 220
AED AED
Asat 1 Janusry 18,508,132 11,915,374
Charge foc the year, net of write-off 194,524 6,592 758
18,702,656 18,508,132
Takaful and other receivables = Inside UAE
Conmbution receivables 212 854,547 108,564,771
Féss: Providon fot doubtiul peceivibics (13,187,621) (12905376
199 666,926 185,659,302
Receivables from retakaful end other takaful companies 5, 405 492 47351719
Other receirahles 3,784,289 3,798,110
Leas: Provision for doubifill vecelvables (4043.817) (5239927
64,306,364 46,100,006
Takaful end other receivables - Duiside UAE
Receteghle from retalkeaful and ather takaful companies 11,582,375 11,391,481
Less: Provision for doubthd tecelvahles (571,218) (362,831)
11,001,157 11 02E G50
Total takaful and other recervables 274 054 447 242797 D48
The ameanes due from retakaful are sertled on a quartedy basis,
hh:t'u‘.-ﬁ of takahul and other receivables 15 gwur: el omn
Reccivable
frodn retakaful
and other
Contribution takaful Dither
201 receivables companies receivables Total
AEDY AEL AEL AED
Takaful and other receivables -
inzide TAE
Current 99,384,050 15,764,788 = 115,148,038
30 - 90 days 20,251,005 42 535,791 - A2, THE, RN
91 = 160 days 33,444,329 4,198,438 . 37,642,767
181 - 200 days 22,074,639 B,042,614 - 3,117,253
More than 360 days 37,700,514 14,524,261 3,TH4, 280 56,309, 64
Less Providion for douhiful
receivables (13,187,621) {1,159,528) (3,784,289  (15,131,438)
199,666,925 64,306,364 - 263,973 290
Takafuyl and other receivables -
outside UAE
Cureert 3 8,396,594 . 8,396,594
30 - 90 days - 484,912 - 484,212
91 - 180 cays A 696,798 . 696,798
181 - 360 days - 693,831 - 693,831
Mo thar 3060 days - 1,309,940 - 1,309, %40
Less: Prowision for doubeful
recervabics - {571,218) - (371,218)
" 11,011,157 - 11,011,157
Total takaful and other
reccivables 199,666,926 75,317,521 = 274,984,447
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B. Takaful and other receivables [continued)

Recervahle
feoam
retakaful and
Comtnbutiesn other takaful Cither
i s receivabies COMmEanies reesivabiles Toel
AED AED AED AED
Takahbul and orher receivahles -
incide UAE
Current 55,079,201 B, 2RO 085 - 63 AGE,BEY
30 - 90 days 20271 .74 11,962,148 . 41233437
91 - 180 days 20,466,010 7166763 - 36,632,773
181 - 360 days 39,228 404 13,376,239 - 44, 504 03
Mose than 360 days 53,519 2 6,756,886 3796110 G074 817
Less: Provision for doabefil
receivahles (12905378 (1441813 (37981100  (15.145.300)
185650302 46100006 - 231769298
Takatul and other recerrables —
oatside UAE
Custent 1,431,582 1,431,542
30 - 90 days 2,506,174 2.506,174
91 - 180 days 5344 207 5,344 207
181 - 360 days 1445450 1,445,450
Mlose than 360 days 453,978 463 978
Less: Prowision for doobaful
receivahles a (362,831) (362,831}
% 11,028 650 11,008 650
Tozal takaful and ocher
receivablen 185 650 392 57,134 556 242797 548
a. Prepayments and other receivables
2021 2020
AED AED
Prepaid expenses 8,375,324 7322543
Dreposits 651,119 1,042, 1 6}
Advance 307,292 570,417
Oither recervables G 051,020 B 484051
15,384,755 17419571
Anriburshbe 1o:
Policyholders 3,961,933 3,744,919
Shareholdess 11,422 822 13674652
15,384,758 1741957

0. Wakala deposits

Wakada deposits viedd a poofit e of §.1% pa. 00 1.75% pa. (2030 0.2% pa. to 505 pay), Wakala deposiis
worth AED 40 milion ars hypothecansd apsinst Mosabaha Facility fnote 21).
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11. Investment properties

Balance ar 1 Janusry
Gain / (loss) in fair value during the year {mote 20
Balznce ac 31 December

Attribavtzble oo
T’uqu.'hnldeu
Sharcholders

2021 2020
AED AED
36,067,857 46,442 500
604,003 (10,374,647

39,681,950 36,067 857
- 15,768,081
39,681,950 20,599,776
39,681,950 36,067 B57

The investment properties represent the fdr value of the properties loested in TAE.

The fair value of the Group's veserment properties as at 31 December 2027 and 3020 has been arved aron
the hasis of valuations catried an the tepecthe dates by swn independent valuers whe are ooe related to the
Group and have appropedate qualification and recent market experience in the valuation of propeies in the
United Arab Ermirates. The fair vahoe is mainly based on unobservable inputs fie, Level 3.

The fair value wes desermined based on the marles comparabls approach that reflects secent transactons peces
for similar propertics. In estimaring the fale value of the properties, the hiphess and best use of the properties
is thedr current use, There has been oo change 1 the valuston wehnigoe during the vear.

The property rental income carned by the Group from ifs investment properties which are leased under
operating leases and the direct apesating expenses anising in the management of investment propertiss were as

foliows:

Beental ineome
Diirect operating expenses
Income from investment propesty {note 29

12. GCash and cash equivalents

Cazh in hand

Bank balanees
(Current accounts
Call accoanis

Anrmibutable o
TPolieyholdets
Shareholdees

2021 2020

AED AED
1,939,766 2244853
(936,833)  (L114.963)
1,002,933 1,139,851
2021 2020

AED AED
146,600 106,382
32,625,222 131,990,307
1,066,675 BOT,01T
33,838,497 132,303,406
15,772,579  TO0RTIE
18,065,018 52774 848
33,838,497 132300406
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13, Property and asquipment

Faikd

Cost

Mt 1_]n.|'|.un.|T

Addmions

Wrire-off

Transtee

Trnsfer to intangible ases (nowe 14)
Ar 3 December

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Januory

Charge for the year

At 3 December

Carrying amounnt
HAr 3 December 2021

Capital

Leasehold Fumdires Office work in Right to nse
Building improvements and fixtures  equipment Vehicles prrugtess asscis Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
10,226,500 1,794,767  B,533,719 5,714,146 1155001 4234998  W,661,TI5 46,320,946
2 : 6,260 257,103 - 3184378 - 34141
2 - - - - {181,913} - (181,915)
- - - 430,715 - {430,715} - i
. . - - = [4,542,834) - [4,542834)
10,226,500 1,794,767  §530979 6,401,954 1155101 2,263,014 14661715 45,043,940
7,056,771 LOE? 107 7,046,795 48090506 1,005,124 26,41  Z4AT0225 14,512,959
255,660 183,940 284,273 600,365 47,429 - 3251065 4,601,733
T 312,431 1,271,047 B,201,008 5499952  1,082.553 26,341 5,721,200 29,114,692
2,014,069 523,721 338,511 002,002 72,548 2,237,573 BOM0A2E 15,929,248

37



Dar Al Takaful PJSC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. Froperty and equipment [continued)

Capital
Leasehold Furniture Chifice work in  Righe 1o oze
2020 Building improvermenes  and fixmses  equipment Vehicles progeess azpets Teotal
. AED AED AED AED AED AED AED
osr

At 1 Januagy 10,226, 50K 1,010,815 8,381,951 4 A0 446 1,M2815 285,951 LILGR0G 26,%28.%0%
Acqpisidon throwgh basiness eambinaton - 786952 5, 651,575 142,285 30,529 13545810 18542760
Additions = 27 500 44,160 168,125 - J 27002 - 358856
Transfer to intangible assets {note 14) - {30,569] = - - [ZATEAGH - (R T0E033)
At 31 December __ 0226500 1794767  B533710  57ididh 1155100 4254098 14661715 46320046
Accumulated depreciation and impairmen:

Ar 1 January 2,793,818 L0115 7657563 4365744 1010973 26341 557,952 17424206
Impairment loss during the vear 40017282 = - - - - - 4,007 252
Chage for e yeas 255,671 Th 202 89 332 524,852 23,151 . 12273 308471
A 31 December 7056771 1,087,107 7,046,705 4,590,556 1,035,124 26541 240235 34512959
Carrying armount —

At 31 December 2020 3168720 7 A6l SR b4 B23.550 118077 4208657 121490 21,807 987
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. Intangible assets

L |

Cost

At 1 January

Additions during the yesr

Transfer from property and equipment (note 13)
31 December

Mccumulared amonisation
At 1 Janaary

Charge for the year

3 December

Carrying amount

3 December 2021

203D

Comt

A 1_|m|.::u'_:,'

Acquisifiog business combanation (noge 30)
Additions during the year

Transfiar from property and squipment {note 13)

H December

Apeumulated amertsation
Ar ] January
Charge for the yeir

M December

Carrying amount
3 December 3020

Mon-life

Lifie taleafisl talcaful Cuatamer
Teade name contracis conttacts  relationship Zofiware Tatal
AED AED AED AED AED AED
6,728,000 70,034,000 3,339,000 11,962,000 11,792,681  103,855,68!
2 - % - 42 551 42,551
= = = = 4,541 854 4,542,834
6,728,000 70,034,000 3,330,000 11,962,000 16,376,066 108,341,066
2 729,521 3,339,000 1,107,592 5,564,241 10,740,354
- a = 1,750,850 3 30
- 3387743 3,330,000 2,858,442 9,718,208 19,303,393
G, 728, 66,646,257 - 9,103,558 6,659,856 89,137,673
- = > = 4,786,557 4 THO,S5T
G, 728,000 T 03 () 3,339,000 11,562,000 4024240 Q6,087 240
- - = - 272,851 272851
. . - - 2,709,033 2709033
G72B000  TOOG4000 3330000 11062000 11,702,681 103,855,081
. - - 3,547,379 3,547,379
2 729,521 3,239,000 1,107,592 2,016,862 7,192,975
729,521 3,339,000 1,107,592 3,504,241 10,744,354
6728000 60,304,470 — 10,854,408 6I28440 03115327

0
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18. Rastrictad deposit

Wakals deposits hedd as restricted deposics are maintained in sceordance with the requirements of UAE
Federal Law Mo, & of 2007 concerning the formation of Central Bank of the Usnited Arab Emirates
{formerdy, the UAE Insursnce Authorty) and are pot available to finance the day-ro-day operations of the

Grotip.

These deposits have a fixed mandoy of one yeaz from the dame of deposic and yield & profic e of 2%

pri o 1.0%6 poa. (200 0.4% to 0.6% poa).
16, Deferred policy cost

Ab 1 January

Booked during the year
Chatped for the year
At 31 December

17. Takaful and retakaful payables

Dae o takaful companies, garsges and other third parties
Droe to retakaful companies
{rher payables

Insade UAE
Crutside [JAE

Takaful payahles - Inside TAE

Due o kaful companies, garagss and other thind parties
Duoe w petakafis] companies

Other payables

Takaful payables - Outside UAE
Dhue to retakaful compandes
Chiher payables

2021 M0
AED AED
12,994 (06 19,537,184
92164467 50372706
(B3,013.406)  (56,%15,880)
22,145,067 12.954,0006
2021 2020
AED AED
Ha,440,3063 71,361,215
140,227,499 106,345,655
25,582,444 19 595 220
250,250,306  197302,000
130421022 136,734,286
110,829,284 60,567,813
250,250,306 197.302,099
2021 2030
AED AED
B4, 840,363 71,361,215
34,570,845 50,708,005
20,409,814 14 (68 066
139,421,022 136,734,286
105,656,654 55,540,650
S NT2A30 4927163
116,829,254 60,367,813

40
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18, Takaful and investment contracis liabilities

Invesment contract labittes with takatful rsk

Movement in investment liabilities with takafol risk is piven below:

Transfer through acquisiion

Add: invesrment contescrs seesived
Less: invesmment contracts repaid
(ram on faiz value

Wakals fees and other charges

19, Qard Hassan

([} Qard Hassan

Mg oar ] Jameacy

Amuant wansfected on acouisicon of subsidiaties
Drefict during the year

Az at 31 December

{iiy Provision against Qard Hassan

Asar 1 Janvary

Amount tunsferred on sequisition of sobsidiaries
Provision dudog dhe vear

As ar 3] Diecember

20.  Other liabilities

Mccrued expenses and other payables
Acquisition coet payable

Emplovees’ end of service benefics*
Lease lnhilities

Accrued leave salary

Other payable

201
AEDY

2020
AED

450,903,939 429,585,226

* Movements in the provision for employess” end of service benelits during the veas were as follows;

Asat | [anuary

Amouns sransferred on acquisison of subsidiaries
Charged during the year

Paid during the year

As ac 3] Decembee

420885226 396,586,913
S, 482 047 31 66 58S
(90,970,319  (33,1484340)
68,918,419 40,741,508
34 (6,161.454)
450,903,939 420 BR5 234
20 2020
AED AED
(Z13,740,895) (6B, 356,00G)
- (138,053,150
969) (1,331,739
(229,137,864) _(213,740.995)
213,740,895 68,356,006
- 138053150
15,396,969 7,331,730
229,137,864 213,740,895
2021 2030
AED MHEDY
19,851,931 30,072,282
35,363,763 48 726, 600
6,368,218 604,272
9,101,161 12,457,753
736,063 1,224,129
8,058,349 B.910,066
79,479,502 106905102
201 2z
AED AED
6,014,272 2,541,158
. 4 258,000
1,552,533 430,799
{1,198,570) (1415685
6,368,235 6.014,272
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21.  Murabaha payable

The Grl:lup got engaged in Murabaha fueilivy of AED 215 million with bank on 27 February 20070 held at
amaortised cost, The facility was obmined for the purpose of acqairing Noos Takaful Femily PJSC M"NTF)
and MNoor Takaful General PJSC ("MNTGY). The fdlity inchades two manches as given helow:

Tranche A consist of AED 100 milion carrying flexible profic rave of 3 months ETBOR plus 2.25% having
o taturity period of 12 months from the dare of scquisition of NTF and NTG. Pull amount of Tranch A
is repaid during the year ended 31 December 2021,

Tranche B consisr of AED 115 million carrying fexible profiz rate of 3 months EIBOR plos 29% having
= mamurity period of 5 years ending 30 June 2025,

Other Mugabaha arrangomsents are as Follows:

Pieclyed collateral

* R:E:Lmd MOEHgARE over ivestment propertses and other réal estase propertes valued up w AED 45

millian;

Pledge cver wakals deposits worth at least AED 40 million;

Pledge over the shares of target entties Le. NTF and NTG;

Marketable securides (equities and sekuk) worth AED 15 million;

A profie service reserve scoount will be maintained by the Company with bank thae holds & months of

peafit service for Tranche B atall the dmes;

* Al proceeds from the operating wrget entitics shall be deposited into a dividend aecount that the
Grroug mainming with the bank; and

*  Tledge over profic service reserve account and dividend sccoont mainrained with the bank

Fircaneiond covesants

* A minimum capital requirement of AED 300 million so long as the 3 licenses are ousanding and
AED 200 millicn post cancellation of Company’s Hoense;

* A minimum solvency coverage mdo of 100%;

® A minimum consolidated Liquid Assers Cover [cash plus markewsble securides) of 100%; and

*  Comphance with minimum guaranteed fund and ner admissible assets sequirements,

Ot copimasiry
Company to complete re-organisadon within 12 months from the compledon of acquisition;
Oipesating accounts of the Company and the targets INTF and NTG) to move to the bank within &
manths from the completion of acquisidon; and

* Company e shift 100% wakala deposits of the Company w specified bank within & moaths from the
cotmpletion of aoguisioon.

22, Share caplital

20 020
AED AED

Issued and fally paid:
150,000,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 exch
(31 December 2030 150,000,000 ordinary shares) 150, 000, 04K 150,CHXL0DD

Dinvidend of AED (fils) 0.092 per share amounting o AED 13,800,000 wee declared and paid dusing the
yerr ended 31 Dierember 2021 (2020: AED 4,905,000),
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23, Reserves
Stamurory reserve

In accordance with the Commercial Companizs Law and the Company's Aricles of Association, 10% of
profic for the year is reguired oo be mansferred to samcory reserve, The Group may resalve to discontinos
such annual transfers when the starutoey reserve i equal to 50% of the paid-up shaee capital. The resene
is not available for distibution excepr in the dircumstances stipulared by the law. For the year ended
31 December 2021, balance amounting to AED 2,157,993 was mansfermed m statutory reserves (2020
AEL 2,264,385),

Rerakaful reserve

In accordance with Cenersl Bank of the United Arsb Emirares’s (formerly, the UAE Insurance Authosiey)
Board of Directors” Decigion Mo, 23, Article 34, o0 amount of ABD 1430530 {2020: AEDY 642,503 vras
transferred from rerained samdings w rerkafil recerve, The teserve i not available for diseabudon and will

nat he disposed of without prior approval from Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates formetly, the
UAE Insurance Authoring).

24, Het contributions

Creneral
Motor Medical rakeafil Life Total
AED AED AED AED AED

20
Takaful contractss
Gross contrbation writen T,GE5,481  325,957,08% 26,343, TOH 63, 13464 Tia, 129,742

Movemen:t in unearned

eentribunions 23,567,493 {5,014,201) (32,281,728) = (14,728,436)
Takaful eoniribution
FeviEEs B3,232.974 320,042 08 104061980 63163404 600400,306
Retakaful share of

conrrburion (7,617,369) (89,369,267) (185,163,737) (3,955.621) (2B6,105,994)
Movement m unearned

contributicns (3,005,809 18,782,231 25 786,79% - 41,563,218
Rerakaful contribution

Tevenes (10,623,176) (70,587,036) (159,376,941)  (3,955,621) (244,542,776)
Total contribution

PEVENIES 102,609,796 250,355,852 34,685,039 59,207,843 446,858,530
2020

Takaful contracts:
Gross contmbaton ariten B a05008 231,214,261 BA T48 017 3T, 00537 438 580,713
Movement in unearmed

contobotions 18,613,900 99731 316 4,395,268 - 122743 484
Takaful conmibuton

revenues 100216908 33005577 93,147,185 37,020,537 561,330,207
Bemlaiol share of

contnbuten (40053000 (47552 TRHE)  (T4,165453)  [1,7B6.D6T) (128500405
Moverment b uneamed

contributions (5.540,679) (15,2900 (2,670,659 - (23,501 436)
Rembkaful conmibaton

revenues _(10536,078) (62B42884) (76,B36,11% (1,786,967 (1520020413

Total confribetion revenues BOGBOEIM  ZeBI02693 16311073 35233570 400 37H 166
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28, Claims incwrred

21

Ciross

Takafu! clabms paid

Mowement in provision for claims
repotted ensertded

Meovement in prowvision for
incurred but oot repooied

Maovemnent i provision for
ULAE

Movement in provision for
URR/CDR

Changs in investment eontmaees
and imathemasical resenney

Net min onassets held it fair
vabae through profit ar Ioss

Tutal

Recakafil

Retakaful share of claims paid

Movement in proviaion for clazms
reported unsettled

Movement in provision for
incurred but not repacted

Toal

Claims recorded in the
conselidared swmtement of
income

2000

Crros

Takahal clasms F:"d

Movement in provision for ciaims
reporied unectied

Movernent in provishon for
imcurmed but ot repoced

Movernent in provision
for ULAE

Movenent in provision
for CDOR

Change in investment conacs
and mathematical resepnes

Mg gain on assets held ar it
valoe through profit oz loss

Toual

Betakaful

Rewakaful share of clairns paid

Movement in provision for chims
reported ursettled

Mowernent in peoviston for
icwered bt nog r:pl:r;l_'t-l:d

Tetal

Claimne recorded in the
consolldaterd statement of
ncome

General

Moros Medical talealul Life Tional
AED AED AED AETDY AKED
66,198,387 289267416 66,157,051 305,554 421,928,408
(2,722,274) (26,795,075) (8,827.544) 1,150,000  (37,190,593)
(5,321,171) 241,223 1,757,328 - (3,322,620
1L506,097  (967.988)  (GBS,18L) - (147077
- [1,966,193) (T3,777) - (2038,970)
. ; 112,734,050 112,734,050
= = - (68,918,419) (68,518, 41%)
59,661,039 259,783,383 58,328,877 45,271,185 423,044,484
(B,628,004) (66,990,838) (61,468, 208)  (110,728) (137,206,868)
1,193,242 (LBRO,160)  9,7E3,156  (T03,160)  B423,078

023,586 (1,308.351) (1GIBIsE) - - %7
(4,411,266) (T0.158,349) (53,303.207)  (813,888) (128,686,710}
55,240,773 1ROE25034 5025670 44,457,007 204357774
A T0 24224076 FTa30 G330 HEA411M3
13977454 33741934 3994320 150000 51,863,508
BB5,829 (5007803) (2.883,124) (7,005, 096)
(LTI 1,085 208 {133,171y 1,442,355
(167,056, 1,344,519 {426 97E) B30 AR5
- 3 - GGA04ZSE 64,804,255
" ’ - (40,741,508)  (40.741,508)
54,703,522 2745120024 G0304,038 26,206,437 415726,011
(6AST.788) (68,619,345 (S4676.417 - (129.453552)
(1650328  GAGTEE0 (4225165 (71840 (1ATETH
{162.515) 3169325 ZA33002 5432 512
{(99TT,631) (58923600  (56,468582) (T1B40 {125,500 413)
MTASEO 215520664 3BWASE 26134587 290225 508

#
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286, Other Takaful expensas
Provision for doubsful delus (nose 8)
Oither expenses

7. Wakala fees and Mudarib's fee
Wakcala fees

2021 2020
AED AED
194,524 6,592,758
4,637,553 1,732,024
4,832,077 8,324, 782

Wakala fee for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to AED 176,080,714 (2020 AED 123,754 852),
The fee is calenlated ot maxdmm of 25% (2020 29%%) wathout any dedoction of policy acquisition cost. Wakala
fee is chirped w the consolidated seaterment of income when incurred,

Mudarib's fee

The sharcholders also mansge the polcyholders’ investment funds and charge Mudarib's fee, Mudarib fee
15 charged ar 35% (2020 35%) of realised investment income. During the year, Mudarib's fee amounted to

AED 468,637 (2020: AED) 1,271 443),

28, General and administrative expenses

Seaff eost

Administrative expenses
Dyeprecianion snd amofmisanon
Muatheting expenses

Criher expenscs

29. Investment and other income

2021

Far value gain

Fuir waboe gain on investment properties (note 11)
Tiair waloe gain on fErancial asses at FYTPL

Realised gain

Ohther invesiment income

Income from available-for-sale invessments

Income from wakala deposits

Drividend Ineome

Income from debr securities

Fund imansgement income

Srrender income

Bebares

Rental incorme from investments properties - net
frnote 11)

Cither income

20 )

AED AED

34 BUR 853 38,144,304

24 362 517 D044 427

15,064,772 10,274 846

763,708 1,229,615

- 10210066

73,189,650 0,506 259

Policyholders  Sharcholders Taotal
AED AED AED

- 3,614,093 3,614,003

. 3,246,704 3,246,704

. 746,428 746,428
1,390,533 1,089,197 2,479,730
N 225,394 225,394

551,015 74,971 1,205,936

- 4,928,372 4,928,372

- M1, 369 237 10,369, 257

- 1,590,604 1,550,604

151,297 851,636 1,002,933
E76 88,544 89,420
093,721 27,465,180 29,558,901
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29, Investment and other income (continuad)
Pobcyholders Sharchobders Torzl
ABD AED AED
2020
Fair value losses
Fair value loss on invesmment properties (note 11) (3 762,954) (6,611,640 ER LR TE T B
Impairmens in value of property and equipment
(note 13) - {4,007 242) (4,007,282}
Impairment in fair value of aveilable-For-sale
INVESTMENLS - (1,575,470 (1,575,870
Realised loss
Losz on sale of available-for-sale investments (208,245 - (2018,245)
Didher investment inoome
Income from waiks deposits 2529121 3,307 B0 6.026,931
Drvidend meome . 304, 2846 g 286
Income from debt securitics 535 266 53 2TH 1,089 542
Fund management incomse et 1, TED B5G 1,789 856
Serrender inoome . 3,901 004 3,900,004
Rebates - 1038416 1,038 416
Rertal neome from investments I:I-:'I:Iprrma - et
{nate 11 635,769 494122 1,129,891
Cither menme Qi 230 014 4538 1,276 868
B11.187 173657 S0, 844

Invesmment income has been allocared to the shareholders and policvholders on the basis of inveatments
held by each fund.

i M Acquisition of subsidiaries

Asgnisitisn of Noor Takaful Fomily PISC

On 26 Jauly 20240, the Group acquired 10076 of dye eguity insuuments of Moo Takaful Family FJ5C (NTF),
UAE based business, thershy abmining eonmal. The scquisition was made to enbance the Group's position n
the ralaful business. NTF is 2 significsnt business, with ife assurance portfolics, in UAE which is the Group's
tarjeted minrker,

WNTF s contrilifam g9 tie Crrongs reswliT

MNTTF incurred a ner profit of AED 27 millon for the pecod from 26 July 2020 to 31 December 2020,
Gross contribagons for the five months from 26 July 2020 were AED 146 million. 1 NTF had been
acuired on 1 january 2020, revenue of the Group for 2020 would have been AED 634.6 million, and profic
for the period 31 December 2020 would have increased m AED 26.6 million,

Aegreirition of WNeor Takatnd General PISC

O 26 July 2020, the Group scquired 100% of the equity inseruments of Noor Takaful Genenl PJ3C
(NTG), @ UAE bused business, thereby obtaining conmol The acquisition was made o enhance the
Grroup’s positon in the mkaful business. NTG s a significant business, with general takaful ponfolio, n
UAE which i5 the Group’s targeted maeket,

DT s comtribwsion fo tv Crongh renliy

NTG incurred a net profic of AEDY 59 million for the peded from 26 July 2030 m che repoting date.
Revenue for the five moaths from 26 July 2020 was AED 66.8 mdlion. If WTG had been acquired on
1 January 200, revenue of the Group for 2020 would have been AED 511.7 million, and profit for the
period 31 December 2020 would have incressed o AED 263 million.

i
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30. Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

The details of ner sssers acquired in business combination ar Fir valaes are o8 Follows:

Moo
Moot Talcaful
Takaful {zeneral
Family PJSC PJSC Total
Becognised amounts of identifiable net assets AED AED AED
Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents BE.543.000 15,950 400 104 893 400
Wakala deposits 119500000 116490500 235999 600
Invesmments at fair value through profie and oss 305 547 000 - 304 BE7 000
Crmeribuson recenvshles 62270596 30070000 102249594
Rerakaiul seceivables T8, 396,000 B, 714,000 165,110,000
Property and squipment 2,158,827 6,363,933 18,542,760
Softwrae 1,738,173 2 286 06T 402 240
Onher current assets ineluding related parey balances 11,779,000 44,917 000 56,606,000
Tradename 4,440,000 2 268,000 6,728,000
Life mkafel contracts 0034000 - TO.03£ 000
Existing contracts 230,000 1.2, 000 3,339,000
Customer relationships 7468 000 4494 000 11,962,000
Total assets 845,624,556 330,541,000  1,176,165,596
Tiabilicies
Takaful and sebsted payables 227 206,000 156610000 383,006,000
Taknful and mwvestment contesct liabilides 06,586,913 305,586,013
Mathematical seserwe 14,953,087 - 10,5963 087
Betakatul payables 24, 340, 0080 26,253,004 50,573,000
Accruals and other payables 46,185,000 18,307,000 4,492 0K
Employees’ end of service benefits 2,737,000 1,721,000 4,458,000
Total Labilities TOB 106,000 202871000 900,979,000
Fair value of consideration rransfersed
Amount settled in cash (105,327,000)  {109,673,000) (215,000,000
Tdentifable sot assets _ 137,516,596 127,670,000 265 186,596
Gadn on bargain purchase 32,189,596 17,997,000 50,186,596
Contideration transfereed - settled in cath (105327,000% (108,673,000 (215,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents aoquired 82,943,000 15950400 104893400
Met cash outflow on acquisition (16,584,000%  (95,722,600)  (110,106,600%
Acquisition costs charged to expenses * 7,822,737 7,822,737 15,645,474

® Acquizsition-refated costs amounting 0 AED 15545474 are not included 25 part of consideration
rransterred and have been recognised a8 an expense i the consolidared statement of peofic or 1oss, shewn

2 a separats bne item in consolidated sarement of income,

-

&
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3. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calcatared by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted sverage number of
ordinary shares sutszanding duning the year as follows;

2021 2020
Profit for the year attributable to shoreholders (in AEDY) 21,570,926 22543 450
Weighted average number of shares ounimnding ar 31 Dlecember 150,000,000 1500 000,000
Basic and dilured eatnings per share (in AED) .1dd 0,151

Dihared ezrnings per share as of 31 Decernber 2021 and 2020 are equivalent to basic enrnings per share as
the Group did pot mee any pew insrroment that would impace carnings per share when execured.

32. Available-for-sale investments reserve

This ecsorve reconds gaing and losses ansing from changes in fair value of available-for-sale mvesiments
(AFS)

33, Related party transactions

Relared partics comprise companies and entities under commen ewnership andfor common management
and control, their panners and key management personnel, The management decides on the terms and
conditions of the trarsactions with related parties.

Related parties represent the major shareholders, directors and key management persoanel of the Group,
and entities conreolled, joindy controlled or significanly Influenced by such parties. Pricing policiss and
terms oof these transactions are approved by the Group's management.

Balances with related parties
Balances with rebared paries incloded in the consolidated searement of fnancial positon are as Follows:
2011 2020
AED AED
Takafie] and odfrer recefvabifes
Chber related partics {58,053) SB.602

Transactions with related partics
Transactions with relared parties mcheded in the consolidaned financesl starements are a5 folloas:

2021 020
AED AED

Conrnburiens carmed
Crther relared paroes - 1,736,966
1,736 966

Compensation of key management petsonnel

021 2020
AED AED
Shor-term benefit 8,158,572 4029 717
Emp-luyus'cm:f of service henefirs 1,645 114 50%
B 069,217 4,144 310

Cutstanding  balanees ot the year-end amse in the noemal course of business. Foe the years ended
31 Decemnber 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group has not recorded any impasrment of amounss owed
by relased parties.

48
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34, Fatwa and Sharia'a supervisory board

The Group’s business serivities are subject oo the supervision of a Farwn and Shat?'s Supervisory Board
(FS5E) conmsting of three members appointed by the shareholders, FS5B performs a sopervisosy role in
oeder o determine whether the operations of the Group are conducted in sccordance with Shan's mubss
and principles.

Aecordigs o the Gooup's FSSE, the Group is requited o idenn fy any income deemed o be denived from
transactions not acceptable under Tshmic Shatts cules and principles, a3 inrerpreted by F55B, and 1o see
aside such amount in a sepamate account for Sharcholders who may resolve to pay the same for Jocal
chasirable canses and activites.

35. Zakat

Zakat 25 spproved by the Group's Sharia'a Sopeevisory Board amvounted po 001630 per share (2020: AED
0.00444 per share).

The Managemient has opted to communicate the amount of Zakst paysble 1o each sharsholder, requicing
them to pay their share of Zaknat directly.

36. Segmental information

For management purposes the Growp is organised invo two business ssgments; peoctal tikafal ransgeement
and Emvestment, The general takaful segment comprises the takafol business undertken by the Group on
brehalf of Policyholders, Investment eomprises imvestment and cash management for the Group's own

account, Mo operatng segments have been aggregated 1w form the sbove reportable operating ssgments,

Segment performance i evabuared based on profit or loss which in certain respects is measured differently
from profit or Joss in the consoliated fnancial sratements,

Except for Wakala fees, Mudasib's fees and Qard Hassan, ao other inter-segment (ansactions occurred
during the year, If any ather transaction wers to ocour, transler prices becoesn apemeing segmens are st
on an arm's length basis inoa manner similar oo ranssetons with thicd panies. Segment incorme, expenses
and resules will include those tmnsfess berween business sepmenes which will then be eliminated on
comsalidation as showmn folkrving.

Group lifie
General  (employes
2011 tikaful benefins) Life Investment Total
AED AED AED AEL} AED

Artributable to policyholders
Takaful Income
Crposs contmbution wiltten 534,139,341 108,682,765 63,163,464 = 705985570
Accepted business 144,172 - - - 144,172
Remkalind shaee of ceded

Business (185,630,798) (96,519,576) (3,%55,620) - _{286,105,594)
Tet takaful contributions 348,652,715 12,163,189  BO207 844 - 43023748
Blet transfer to wnearned

conttbutions resenye 28651522 (1,796, T40) - - 26,834,782
Met takafnl contribntions

Eamed 377,284,237 10,366,449 59,207,544 - RSB S30
Disconnt earned 19,279,935 3,741,976 - - 23,021,901
Total takaful income 396,564,162 14,106,425 59,207,544 = 46%,880,431
Takaful expenses
Takaful elabms posd/{recovered) (367,686,919) (53,935,935)  (305,554) - (421,928 ADg)
Retakaful share of ceded

business paid 86,496,620 50,509,520 110,728 - 137,206,868
Mt takaful claims paid (281,190,299) (3,336,415}  (194,826) - (264,721,540)
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36. Segmental information (continued)

Group life
General  (employee
2021 takeaful benefies) Life Imvestments Toeal
AED AED AED AED AED
Prowvision for outstanding
clsims 31,300,762 70400131 (1,150,000) - 37,190,893
Retakaful share of oustanding
claime (LABS,683) (7,640,555) 703,160 - (423,078
Change in incuereed bur o

repocted claims 3,150,214 TH, 512 - - 3,225 540
Change in unallocared loss

adjustmient expenses msceve {190,811} 337,883 - - 147,072
Chmlgb In eesnrribanan

deficiency reserve 1,966,193 7277 - - 2,038,970
Change in investment

comtracts amd mathematical

PCECTVES - - (112,734 .050) = (113,734,050)
Met grain on asses held at far

value through profit or loss - - 68018419 - 68918419
Met elaims incurred {246,449.610)  (3450,867) (44,457,297) - (294,357,774)
Excess of loss of mkaful

contribution (11,631,919 - - - (1,631,919
Ohther whaful fexpenses)

ICCOVEricE (1,859,858) 1,423,702 (4,395,921} - (4E32077)
Tostal takaful income 136,622,775 1,081,260 10,384,626 - 159,058 661
Wakala (Fee) /income (143,660,821) (22,127,196) (10,202,697) 176,080,714 .
Mudarib’s (fee)/income (459,099) (2,762) (6,776) 468,637 g
Paolicy acguisinon cost - - = (B3,013,406) (B3,013,406)
Orther underwiiting expenses - - = (3396674)  (3,396,674)
General and sdministestive

EXPENSCS - - = {73,189,8500 (73,189,850)
Flancs doat = 1 - (5,156174)  (5,156,174)
Investment and ceher income 1,857,790 128,170 67,761 27,465,180 29,558,901

Bonos resarve = = . {2,331!535]: [I.E-HIEEQ
{Loss) /profit for the year (5,599,3565)  (9,920,528) 122,914 36,976,895 21,579,926

Al
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36. Segmaental information (continued)

2020

Arribamable
poticybolders

Takaful income

Gross coniributdnon writen

Accepted business

Reeakafiol share of coded
biasimess

Met takaful conmbudons

Met reansfes oo anensmed
contobutons seseove
Met mkafs] contribubons

enrricd
[Hscoment earmed
Policy fre
Toml fakaful mcome

Takaful expenses
Takaful ¢laims

Ry ——
Retakaful share of ceded
Met taleafid claims peid

Provision for outstanding
claims

Retakoful share of
cutstanding claims

Change i incarred bur noo
reported cluims

Change in umallocabed loss
adjustment expenses
CESErE

Changes in contmibution
deficency reserve

Change in investment
Contraces and
mathematical reserves

Dot gain on assots held ar
fair value through profit

or loss
Mer claims incurred

Crroup Life

(reneml (employee
takabul benefics) Life  Invesoments Total
AED AED AED AED AED
FaEGI0502 37415851 37020537 - 433046 850
5,539,833 : : - 5530833
m3,7e1 878 32951,766) (1. 7B6.OGT = (138 500 605)
70,388 463 4404085 35233570 - 310086118
9,055,504 188,554 99,242 4B
369,441,857 4652739 35233570 - 402328 1656
8853020 285248 . B138,268
23,54 - - 23,684
378,318,561 4937987 35233,570 A164%0,118
(293, T7RIEI) (46,637 3099 i, 320 - (342411515
E545664] 43.956,011 - - 122453552
2104195 (264D 488) 6,324 - (HZ058.361)
(67317 262y 15603654 (150,000 (51,803 608
16,848,807  (15440.974) T1,840 1,479,673
1,060,511 451,775 - 1,572,286
(1,208,000 257,605 - - {950, 4B5)
- {66,804,235) - (06,804, 255)
- - 40,741,508 - 40741508
(262,887 062 (1,200,047 (36,134,587 - (290,225,398
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36, Segmental information (continued)

G reragp life
General emploves
2020 tabeafil benefits} Lifs Invesuments Total
AED ABD AEL) AED AED

Excess of bogs of mkaful

conirbuton 3,055,365 - - - (305636
Orther akaful (expenses) f

feCoVEres {11,863,920) 3530144 - - (B34 TET)
Toai takaful income 100,511,204 7,273,182 9,098,963 116,883,360
Wakaln (fee)/income (TBA40GHY) (3T E06628)  (7,507,584) 123754852
Mudasib's (fee)/income (1,247100) (24123 1271223 e’
Policy acquisition cost . . (56,315,886)  (56,915,886)
Orther underwriting sxpenses Q97338 (1L977333)
Feneral and administeative

EXPLISES - = (59,806,835  (6%,E06,85T)
Acquisition cost of

subsidiaries - {15,645, 474) (15,645,474)
Finance cosc 5 = (1696178 [1.609,178)
Inwestment and other

ineome 756,115 55,072 170,657 000 844
Bonus reserce 624,71 LY. R
Crain on bangain purchase of

subsidiaries - - - S50,186,50 50,186,506
Profie/{Joss)/ for the peas 21,379,579 (30.292.497) 1581399 29975369 22643850

The foliowing tmbies demonsemie orher informaton selared o cach business sepments:

Takaful Investment Total
2021 AED AED AED
Taotal assets 1,Z1 i) 1 i
Toral liabilities 18,529 2 TRS  L430.A15 314
2020
Tival assers 1156256832 504268676 1662577508
Tisal liahilities 1,164 281 440 352810820 1,517.002 260

a7, Capital management

Governance framework

The primary objective of the Growp®s risk and finoscial management Framework is o proece the Group's
sharehalders from evenrs that hinder the susminable achievement of financal performance objectves,
including failing 1o exploit opportunities, Key management recopnises the critical impormnce of having
cfficient and effective sk management syiterns in place.

The GIﬂup"& male raAnaEEment funcsian 18 caroed ouar hr the Board of [.':l.lne:mﬂ, wath k2 azpociared
commitiees. This i sopplemented with a clear erganisational swucrare with delegated aothorities and
responsibdlities from the Board of Dicecrors m the Managing Director.
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ar. Capital management (continued)
Governance framework {continued)

The Board of Ditectors mests segularly to approve any commercial, rsmalstory and organisational decisions,
The Managemenr under the authority delegrated from the Board of Directors defines the Group's rsk and
i interprevavion, lmits strucrare to ensure the apptopeiste quality and diversifiention of assets, aligns
underaritng and retakaful strategy oo the corporte goals, and specifies reporting requirements.

Capial management framewark

‘The primary objective of the Group's capital management is 1o comply with the regulatory requirements i
the ULAE end to ensure thar it maintsing a healthy capital tatio in onder 1o support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages s capital strocrure and makes adjusuments w iy, in light of changes in cconomic
conditions, To maintin of adyust the capital struchire, the Group may adjuss the dividend payment o
shareholders, return capital ro sharcholders o issue new shates. The Group bas fully complicd with the
exteennlly imposed capital reqreirerments and oo changes were made &n the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,

Regulatory framework

Regrulators are primarily interested in protecting the dghts of the policyholders and monitor them closely
t ensuze that the Gooug i3 sndsfactonly mannging affairs for their benefit. At the same gme, the repulitors
are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintins an appropriste solvency position to mesr
unforeseen lishilities ansing from economac shocks or natural disaseers,

The operatons of the Group are also subject to regulatory requizements within the jutisdictions where i
operates. duch regulations not oaly presceibe approval and mondtoring of activites, but also Impose ceremin
restrictive provisions (e.g capital adequacy) mo minimise the itk of defanlt and ivsolveney on the pare of
the mkaful companies o meet unforeseen linbilities ss these arise.

38. Financial instrumeonts

Significant accounting policies

Dierails of the significant accounting polices and methods adopred, inclading the coteria for secognition,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each

class of financial asset, financial liability and equity mstrument are disclosed in Mot 3 w the consolidared
financial sravement.

Categories of financial mstruments

20 21
AED AED
Financial asscis
At amortised eost 624,156,488 512,180,042
Ar fair value 508,779,600 430 878 226
1,132,936 088 1 249 (104, LGE
Financial habilities
At amortised coet BT9, 585, 506 D41 855 631

- |- Rish managemant
As=et linhility management (ALM) framework

Financial ncks atise from open positions in peofit e, currency and equity prodects, all of which are
expased w peneral and specific market movements. The Group manages these posinons o achieve kong-
bETn Investment tetarns i excess of i3 oblipations under Takaful contracts, The principal sechnique of the
Grroup’s ALM is m march assets o the liabilities srising from Takeful contracts by reference m the npe of
henefits payable o conmact holders,

a3
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23, Risk management (eontinued)
Agset lability management (ALM) framework (continoed)

The Managing Director actively monitors the ALM e ensure in each peticd sufficient cash flow is available
to et linbilises srising fom Taleahsd contracts,

The Managing Director regularly monitors the fnancial fisks sssociated with the Group’s other fingncial
assets and linbalities not directly associated with Takaful liabilites.

The risks faced by the Group and the way these risks are mitigared by management are summarised =
follows:

Talkaful risk

The principal sk the Group faces under takaful contracts is that the actusl elaims and benefit payments or
the timing thereaf, differ from expecations. This is influenced by the Fequency of chaims, seventy of cliims,
actusl benefits paid and subeequent development of longr-term claims Therefore, the abjective of the
Growp s to ensure that sufficient reserves aoe avallable wo cover these labilides.

The vamability of sk is improved by careful selecton and mplemenmoon of underamtng smwategy
gusdelines, as well as the use of retakaful arrangements.

i) Frequency and amounis of claims
The frequency and wmounts of claims can be affected by severl factors. The Group anderwries mainky
property, motos, marine, fise and medical fsks, These are regacded as shor-term Takaful contracts, as

clims are notmally advised and settled within one year of the insured svent wking place. This helpa wo
mitgate Takaful rsk.

Aduador

Muotar takaful is desipned to compensate contract holders for damage suffered 1w their velticles or labilicy
ta third pasties ansing throwgh accidents. Contract hodders could also receive compensation for the fize o
theft of their vehicles.

Fot mowe eonttacts the matn ek are clamms for death and hodily injury and the replscement or repair of
vehicles,

The level of court awattds for deaths and s injured parties and the replacement costs of mosar vehicles are
the key factors that infloence the fevel of claims.

Propusriy

Froperty rakaful is desipned 1o compensate eontract holdess for damape suffered 1w properties ot for the
value of property losc. Cantrect holders could alio receive compensation for the aciual loss consed by the
inability to use the insured propertics.

For property takaful contraces the main dsks are fire and business iniermption. The Group's policies aim
careful selection and implementation of underwriting sttategy guidelines, as well as the use of remkaful

AITANPTEINETEs

These conmaces are underwritten by reference to the repluicement value of the properties and eontents
ingured, The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaning replacement contents and the dme m&en (o resoirt
operations which beads to boziness interruptions ane the main fetors that influence the level of elaims

T ik
For miscellaneous sccident classes of takaful such a5 loss of moncy, infidelity of employess, personal
scodent, workmen's compensation, tavel, pensral thisd party bability and professional indemniry sce
underariten,

Modieal

Medical takaful is designed to compensare the conwact bolders for medical costs. Personal accidene eakaful
entithes the contrect holders or dheir beneficiaries oo :p-e:iﬁﬂd amoumts i coze of denth or permansnt of
partial disabilicy.

=
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389. Risk management (continusd)

Takaful risk {continued)

i Frequency and samouns of cfiafms foomefnued)
Micdicail feontiwed)

For medical takaful, the masn sks ase illncss and related healtheare costs. The Group generally does not
offer medical takaful to walk-in customers and is mainly offered @ corpome customers with Targe
populanon to be covered under the policy. The Group has remkaful to lmit kasses for any individual claim
b TE%- B of the dalm amoant,

Marive

Marine tahafol is designed w compensute contrace holders for damegre and labiling arising throwegh loss or
damage to marine craft and accidents ar sea resubting in the toml o partial loss of cargoes.

For marine takaful the main risks are loss or dermaege o maring craft and aceidents resulting in the total or
partial loss of cargoes, The underwriting strategy for the marine class of busines: is to ensare that policies
are well diversified i perms of vessels and shipping onies covered.

Fire
Fire talaful is designed 1o compensate contract halders for damage and Hability arising through loss or
d'.l.l::rugu oy ithe J'n:u.'r:d. asseis,

The Group’s policies aim careful selecdon and implementation of underwriting swaregy guidelines, as well
us the use of retakaful arrangements.

L torm kgl stracts (1)
For unit-linked contracis, the eapital dsk element of the mkaful liabilides can be matched ageinst the
investmens for policyholders and dherefore any change in the vanables used o calculare these liabilities does
nof have any impact on the et assez or profit of the Groop, In respect of unit-lmked contraces, there is no
uncemAney a5 o the amount o be paid by the Group on morality oc disability, 25 these are notmally che
coverage amounts under the policy, Reserves for momabiey sk under unit-linked conrracts include che
teasonable possibilivy of significant loas due to the unceredney of deachs among policyholders and mres of
disabality among policyholders.

i) Concentration of risks

The Takahul rigk amsing from Takaful contmcts 5 concentrated mainly in the United Amb Emimies. The
peographical concenmrarion of aks is similar o prior yeat,
The table below sets out the concentration of contract labilites by type of contrace:

Retakaful
Gross shatre of MNet
liahilities liabilities liabilides
AED AED AED
L |
Medical 49,032,198 (10,041,568) 38,990,633
Idestor 54.057,092  (15,125,357) 38,931,835
Marine 11,667,331 (11,011,028) 56,303
Engineering 6,691,268 (5,813,780} HT7,488
Fite 44,060,205  (41,702,317) 2,357,978
Liahility 3,245,273 (1,643,610) 1,601,663
zeneral Accident 14,979,195 (14,188,479 TH, 716
Giroup Family 40,070,167 (31,854,291 8,215 476
Individual Family 2222600  (1,340,269) 882,331

Total 226,225,519 (132,720,696) 93,504,623

-
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33 Risk management (continued)
Takaful rsk {continued)
i) Concentration of risks {continwed)

Retakaiul
(Gross share of
liabilities Hobdizes  Met linbilides
AED AED AETY
2020
Meedeal TSI (BI0IA05) 67631868
Motet 56,770466  (16318,50% 40460867
Marine 10896588 (10,288,007) 608,491
Engincering 6355987  (5,676,708) 679,279
Fige ABATZAZ0  (45,656,87H) 2815942
Liability 2957790 (1,204,304) 1,663,350
Creneral Aecident 224067 786 21510018 Q&Y. 764
Group Family 3B500003 (31,570,563 719,540
Indivichaal Family 1,072,600 (637, 109) 435,491
Total 263416413 (LILIA3TT]) 122272642

&)  Retskafiul dsk

As generl industry pracrice and in order to minimise financial exposure arsing from langs Takaful claims,
the Grroup, i the normal course of business, enters into arranpements with other partiss for retakaful
purposes. Such retakafil armngements prondde for grester diversification of business, allow mamgement
& conttol exposure to potential losses arising from lasge risks, and provide additional capacity for growh,
A simificant pottion of the retakaful & effected under tresty, faculiatve and excess of loss reakaful
CONEERCLS,

To minimise its exposun to significant losses from retakaful insolvencies, the Group evaluares the finaneial
condition of its retakaful and ensuve diversification of rerakaful provaders. The Group deals with cetakafual
approved by the Board of Directors,

Finoncial risk

The Group’s principal financial nstruments are investment securites, wakala deposits, takaful recerrables,
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The main ricks arksing fom the Gooup's Anancial insmrurments are crediz risk, Iguidice nsk, forem curreney
rsk, profic risk and equity price risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for munaging each of these nsks
and they are summaried below.

The Group does not enter into sny dedvatve transactions.

i Credit sk

oodit misk is the sk that one party o a finaocel insmement will fudl oo discherpe an oblignson and caese
the ather party 1o incar a financial boss. For all clisses of Anancial assets held by the Group, the maximum

exposure o credie risk to the Growp is the carrying value 25 disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The following palicies and procédures are m place to mitignte the Group's exposure m credit nsk:

*  The Group only enters into Takaful and retakaful contracts with recognised, credit worthy third parries.
It is the Group's policy that all customess who wish o tade oo credic teems are subject o credit
verfiention procedures. In addivon, receivables from Takaful and resakaful conacts are moniweed on
&n ongoeing basis in ordes to reduce the Geoup's exposure agminst defaules.

®  The Group sechs to limit credic risk with sespeet 1o agents and beokers by setting evedit lmits for
inncividual agenes and beokers and monitenng custanding receivables.
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48, Risk management (continued)

Financial risk {continwed)

*  The Groap's investments are managred by the Managing Direcor in sccordance with the midance of
the investment committee and the supervision of the Board of Directors,

®  The Group's bank bakances are manmained with o range of intemational and local banks in accordance
with limits set by the mansrement.

Ar 31 December 2021, there are impaired conwfbudon receivables and remkaful recehvmble of

.A.E[l 18,702,656 (2020 AED 18508,132). The Group records impairment allowances in 2 scpamare

impairment allowence account

fil) Coltateral

The amount and rype of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit sk of the counterpary.
Collateral i mainky obtained in the form of postdared chegques and guaraniees.

Financtal wrlrmmends « invertements

Irvestments in financial assets represent investments in quoted and unquoted equity and debe insrements
of companies incotporated in the United Arab Emirares, and outside United Arab Emirates (note 5).

Ll and caph eqrivadonts

Cash and cash equivalests of the Group are with Banks and other financal mstintions registered and
operate in the United Arab Emirates.

fv)  Eigquidity risk

Liquidiry risk Is the dsk thas the Group will not be sble to meet its commitments associated with its fireneial
liabilities when they fall due.

Laquidiry requirements are monitoted on @ monthly basts and managemenrt ensures that sufficient liguid
funds are available o mest any commirments as they arise.

The table below summarnises the matrity profile of te Group's financial insmaments. The conacal
mararities of the financial instraments have been detcrmined on the basis of the remaining petiod at the
reposting date o the contractaal matrity date, The mamrity profile is monitored by management to

L uEAR a-iu:juu:t Ii-ql.:.id:itjl 18 maintained, The mhjri'l]' pru:l'_l!: of the financial assess and Gnancial Babdlises
gt the reporting dare based on contractual repayment armngements i given below:

Legs than More than

one year One YEar Mo term Teatal
AED AED AED AED

2021
Assers
Inwvesmment secarities B, A36 600 22 014, Th2 6,943,000 530,794,362
Resmcted deposits ot DY e - - A6, 000, (W
Wakala deposits 270,309 351 = = 270,309,351
Takaful receivables 235 968 047 39016, 550 - 274,954 447
Cicher assets 7,009,429 - - 7,009,429
Cash and essh equivalents 33,691,897 33,591 897

1,(4,615,374 1,031,112 6,943,000  1,132,789,486

AT
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39. Risk management |&ontinmed)
Financial risk (continued)

fr)  Liguidity risk (continued)

Less chan More than
Qe Year COE Fear Mo tenm Taoeal
AED AED} AED AED
2021
Takaful and retaleafinl pryables 250 250 30 - - 2B0.250, 306
Ciher labikides 79,479,502 - - THATHA02
Idurabahs payable 13,800,000 05,450,000 - 109,250,000
Tiakaful and investment contracss
liabilities 450,903,939 - - 450,903,939
Tod 433,47 05 450, O =  BR9O.ARI. 747
2030
Assers
Invesument seourilics 420 HES 220 22112 D46 4,55 000 458047, 192
Restocted deposits 146,000,000 - - 16,000,000
Waknla depoaits 387 067,837 - - ST OGT.RIT
Takaful receivables 196,767,285 4 (3 56T - 242707 g
bt segets 11,752,638 - - 11,752,634
Cash and cash equivalent 132,302 235 - = 132202 225
LI73675.211 8,143,520 6943000 1248761 840
Lishilinies
Takaful and recakaful payabies 197,302,009 - - 197502,099
Cieher [Eabilises 106,005,102 . 106 905,102
Murabaha payable 1060 Ca) RN 114,855 660 - 214855 660
Takaful and investment contract
lizbilizies 20 BAE 25 . 420 BES 226
R34 092 427 1 ]1_@_55,_&@ T8 S5 08T

wl Marker nisk

Merket sk arises from fhecmupsons in forelgn exchange races, profit cates and equity poices. The value of
risk thar may be accepted by the Group is monitored on a regular basis by ransgement.

wi) Proffe rate tisk

Profit rawe sk is the risk chat the valee or fomze cash flows of a (nandal inszrument will lucreste because

of changes in market rates, Floating rate instroments exposs the Group to cash flow nsk.

The Group is exposed to profit rare sk on certain of its investments and bank balances and cash. The

Geoup Bmiss ies misk by monitosing changes in such mares,

The sensitiviry analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to profic races for profie-beargs
Enancia sssets assunung the amount of pssers at the end of the reporting penod wepe cutstanding for the

whiode year:

Effect on
Inerease in prodit
basis poines  for the year
AED

2024
Profic bearng assets + 10k 3,561,998

2020
Profit bearing assers +100 4 261,808
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39, Risk management (continued)

Financial risk {continued)

v} Profit rate risk (continued)

Any movement in profit tates in the opposite direction will produce exacty opposine results.

The impact of changes in profic mae nsk 35 not expected 10 be significant for the Group, 85 all Grancial
assers and financial Babilives bears fixed profit rares.

vit)  Equity price sk

Equity price risk i the risk thar the fair value of furore cash flows of a finaneial instrument will Buctuare
hecanse Df{'hﬂﬂ.g::i 0 ket p-ri:!: {other than dthose Arisng froom pmﬁr raterisk of currency rsk), wheter
those changes are caused by facwors gpecific o the individas) financial instrsment or it Bsuer, or fctoes
affecting all similar financial instrements traded in the marker.

The Group has no sigmificant concentraton of price tisk. The priee risk &2 managed by ousourcing the
rracling of secutities held by the Group m professional brokers, However, the activities of brokees are also
mommeed and supervised by the manaperment.

The following table shows the senmtvity of fair yalues to 20% increase or decrease a5 at 31 December:

Reflected in Beflected in
—— profit o lnss pther comprehensive income

Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourahle

change change change change

AED AED AED AED
2021

Enquity securites 100,367,320 (100,367,320) 1,188,600 (1,158,6007)
2020

Equiry securiries BS.OTT045 (85977045 1,1 BB,600 (1,188, 500)

viff)  Operational rsk

Operational risk i the risk of hoss atising from systems feilure, human ertor, fmud or external events. When
comrols faill o perform, operadonal risks can cause damage 1w reputation, have legal or regplatory
implicagions, or kead to fnancial Ioss. The Group cannot expect to- eliminase all operational misks, bus
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding w0 potential risks, the Group is shle w
manage the nsks, Conmols inchede effective segregaton of duties, access, surhorisaton and seconciliaton
procedunes, seaff edweation and assécement processes.

#40. Fair value measurementis

Fair vahue is the price that would be seceived o sell an asser or peid to transfer o Habiity in an ordedy
grandaction betaven market policyholders at the messarement dace, As such, diffzrences can arse berween
book values and the fair vahse estimates. Undetlying the definition of fair value = the presumption that the
Group isa going concern withour any intention or sequirement to materially cotrail the seale of its ogeration
or 1o undettake a trangaction on adverse terms.,

Fair value of financial ingmmaments carded at amortised cost

Management conskders that the carrying amounts of financial essers and fnancial babilides recognised at
amoetsed cost in the consolidared financial starements approximare theie fair values,

Valuation technigues and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of financial assees and financial Babilisses are determined using similar valuation rechniques
and assumptons a5 weed in che audited annwal consolidered Gnancial statements for the pear ended
M December 20240,

2
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40,

Fair value measurements (continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets thar are measured at fair value on recurting basis
Some of the Group's financial assess are measured at fuir value ar the end of the reportng period.

The foliowing wble provides an analyss of financsl instrumenis that are messured subsequent wo indtial
recognition &t fair valoe, Group into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree w which the fair value is nbservahle.

*  Level I: fair value measurements are those degived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in nctive morkets
for identical asses or Uahill'l;p::.,

®  Level 2: fair valee measorements are those desived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Leved 1 thae are ohservable for the asset or Bability, eithes disecaly (i.o. an prices) or indisecdy {Le. derved

from prices); and

¢ Level 3 fur value measarements are those derved from vahation echnigues thar mchude inpurs for
the asset or linbility that are not hased on observable marker data (unobservable inputs)

Fair value az an

i 31
Financial December  Decembser Valuation
asgels i () | B Fair technigues
value and
AED ABD  hierarchy  key inputs
Available for sale

Unguoed Met asseis
equity vahution
securities 5,543, 0 3,943,000 Lesel 3 mechod,
Met nssees
Unaquoted debe vabustion
secutities 1000000 1,000 00 Lavel 3 methiod,

Financial assets at fair value through peofit
et assets
Quoted equsty valuaton
BECUITLEs 50,932,661 Lewel 1 eneekhod,
Blez aseers
Mutaal Favds vakuation
amits 450,903,939 4X0ER5 X6 Level 3 method.

Bignificant
unohservable
input

et nssess
vrlue

Iee ageers
wale

Mer assems
valwe

Met assets
valae

Relationzhip
af
undlervable
inpuss to fair
value

Higher the mer
asseH value of
the invesoees,
higher the Fair
valoe,

Higher the net
as5e1s value 1_|f
the investess,

higher the fair
syalue

Higher the net
assacs valae of
thie investees,
higher the fair
walus

Higher the nes
nasets value of
the investees,
higher the fait
value

The management considers that the carrying smounts of Brancal aisees beld to maurey in che consolidated
financial staternents approximate theit fair values. The fair value is mainly based on unobservable inpoms

fie. Level 3).

There were no changes during the year. There are no fnancial liabilites which should be measared ar faie
value and accordingly no disclosure i madk in the above mble.
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Dar Al Takaful PJSC
MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 20221

41. Contingencies and commitments
Commitments

The Group has capital commitments amounting to AED 4.01 million as at year end (2030 AED 2.40
matllion).

Guaraniess

As ar 31 December 2021, the Group has bank guarantess agginst labour and thind-pary commitments for
AED 267,000 (2020: AED 299 940).

Legal claims
The Group is subject to litigation in the normal cousse of its business, Based on independent legal advice,

the management does pot believe that the outeome of these court cases will have a matenal impace on the
Growvp's incommee or fnencal positon

42, Social contribution

The socidl conttibution {ncheding donstions and charoes) made dunng the year 2021 amounted to
AED 190,000 (2020: AED 150,820,

43. Comparatives

Comparative Hguses have been rechassified in order to conform to quorent period's presentation and to
improwt the quality of informagon presented. However, there is no effect on previowsly repomed toal
assess, total equity, toml labilities and profit for the year.

44.  Post reporting date events

On 3 March 2022, che Board of Directors of the Company 2nd Mational Takafol Company (Watanis) PTSC
have reached an agreement in relation 1o 2 porential mesger berween both companies. Completion of the
proposed transaction is expected to take place dunng the third quarter of 2022 and is subject to sharcholders
and regulamory approvals.

Omn 31 January 2022, the TJAE Ministry of Finance announced the introduction of a % Federal Corporate
Tax rate cifective for fiscal years commencing on or after 1 June 2023, There & no impact of this
announcement on the financial starements of the Group for the pear ended 31 December 2021,
Management will assess the implications of this Federsl Corporare Tax in due course. Except for the events
noted above, there are no adjusting or significant non-adjusting events which have occurred between the
reporting date and the dase of suthersation of these consolidated financial starements,

{1
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Internal Shariah Supervision Committee Report for the Financial Year Ended 31/12/2021
To the Shareholders of Dar Al Takaful

All praise be to Allah, Lord of the worlds, and Prayer and Peace be upon the Prophet Muhammad, his family,
and the companions.

Assalam Alalkkum WRW B

In compliance with article 72 of the Articles of Association of the Company, we are submitting the following
report:

We have reviewed the principles which the Company's activities are based upon, the financial results of the
Company, its investments and other activities that are related to the Company's activities in order to form
an opinion as to whether or not Dar Al Takaful PJSC has complied with Shari‘ah Rules and Principles in light
of the specific Fatawa, rulings and guidelines issued by us during the period ended 31" December 2021.

The responsibility of ensuring that the Company conducts its business in accordance with Shari’ah Rules and
Principles lies with Dar Al Takaful PJSC's management. Hence, the management Is responsible for the
activities and business of the Company and responsible for ensuring its implementation is in accordance with
the principles of the Company which is to fully comply with the rules and principles of Shari’ah, whereas our
responsibilities are only to form an independent opinion based on our review of the operations of Dar Al
Takaful PJSC, and to report to you.

We have conducted our review through examining the financial results of the Company, and our review of
the Company’s balance sheet and income statement. We also reviewed deposits of the Company in financial
institutions as well as the investments of the Company, and they were found to be all in Istamic banks and
Shari'ah Compliant investments and portfolios. We have also reviewed the transactions of the Company
within the period ending 31* December 2021 and resolved that transactions which were not in line with
Shari'ah, be amended and rectified as necessary.

We have requested the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to be able to give reasonable assurance that Dar Al Takaful PISC in its various
activities and businesses has overall not violated Shari‘ah Rules and Principles.

In our opinion, we would like to highlight the following points:

The Company in its various activities, investments, deposits and businesses during the period ending 31
December 2021 has complied with Shari’ah Rules and Principles. There are certain operational Shari‘ah issues
that we have found in the operations of the Company and we have instructed them to be rectified, and the
Company has undertaken to rectify them.

The Shari'ah Committee emphasizes the necessity of holding joint meetings between ISSC and The
Company’s management represented by the Board of Directors, heads and managers of departments and
employees. Such meetings are important in order to enhance communication between the responsible
authorities in the Company and updating each party of the most important business results and
developments and discussing business issues and challonges facing the Company and Takaful Sector.

P,
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— Since the obligation to pay Zakat is the responsibility of the shareholders, the Committee hereby
announces that the amount of Zakat due for each share is AED 0.01630. The Committee also urges
the shareholders to fulfil the responsibility of paying Zakat in order to fulfil the third pillar of Islam.

~— The Committee asserts that the use of any document, agreement, contract or engagement in any
investment or activities must first be approved by the Committee in order to ensure that it is in
compliance with Shari‘ah, and this is as mentioned in the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company.

— The Committee hereby issues this report and praises the Company’s noble effort in complying with
the rules and principles of Islamic Shari’ah in order to attain the blessings from Allah, and the
Committee prays to Allah that this effort will lead to attaining His blessings in wealth and deeds.

We pray to Allah, the Almighty that the company will be a success and wish its management all the best for
the sake of its business interests, Finally, our last prayer be that praise be to Allah, the Almighty.

nallall G i ol 01 Gige 55Ty cnansl dumass T ey dhns G e Jui dit Jios
Members of the Internal Shari’ah Supervision Committee — Dar Al Takaful (PISC)

= =

Sheikh Dr Mchammad Abdul e sam Mohammad Ishaq Sheikh Dr Ibrahim Ali Almansoori
Rahim Sultan Al Olama oice Chairman) {Member)
(Chairman)

Pagez
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1.Introduction:

Dar Al Takaful PJSC was established in 2008 with a paid-up capital of AED 150 million, as a national Islamic
Insurance company based in the emirate of Dubai and providing insurance services in accordance with the
provisions of Islamic law.

Dar Al Takaful PJSC is committed to perform its work in accordance with the best practices followed in
business safety and integrity and maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance. Efficient
corporate governance is an important part of our identity at Dar Al Takaful PJSC. The principles of corporate
governance at Dar Al Takaful PJSC have been established to support sustainable growth and protect the
interests of our shareholders, as well as to create value for shareholders and stakeholders. We are proud to
adhere to the highest standards and best practices in accordance with the UAE governance regulation and
the companies' law. The company adopts international best practices and is committed to the UAE SCA;s
chairman's decision no. (03) of 2020 and its amendments pertaining to the standards of corporate discipline
and governance of Joint Stock companies.

Dar Al Takaful corporate governance is one of the key factors to enhance the company's image internally and
externally by adhering to a culture based on motivating Board of Directors, Executive Managers, Head of
Departments, Employees, and In-Charge Personnel to improve all activities and operations therein the
company and adhere to best conduct, as well as secure lucrative returns on investment and long-term
productivity growth.

Governance was not only considered a requirement to be fulfilled but was considered an integral part of the
legal structure of the company and presents its own legislation aimed at strengthening other regulations
applicable in the United Arab Emirates in order to dedicate transparency and credibility that everyone has
examined in all company's transactions.

The Board of Directors and Executive Management believe that governance is a key element to enhance
shareholder confidence by increasing the level of transparency of ownership and control and creating an
effective system to monitor the management of business strategies. Based on this belief, the company
aligned all efforts to be committed to the highest standards of transparency, accountability and best
management practices. This includes adopting and monitoring appropriate corporate strategies, objectives
and procedures that are consistent with the company's legal and ethical responsibilities. Strict application of
the Good Governance code of conduct ensures the performance of business activities therein the various
departments of the company.

Head Office: | | |
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2. Procedures taken to complete the corporate governance system during 2021:

The Board of Directors of Dar Al Takaful (PJSC) demonstrates due diligence to implement the adequate
principles of the corporate governance as stipulated in the Authority Chairman’s Decision No. (03R/M)
for the year, 2020 and its amendments pertaining to standards of institutional discipline and governance

of the public joint stock companies. The company implemented the best practices and guidelines to

ensure transparency and integrity in transactions as well as to ensure effectiveness of the company’s

internal audit system to improve business transactions. Therefore, procedures taken in 2021 could be

summarized as follows:

1.

Head Office:

The company has demonstrated adherence to activate the internal audit systems, by matching
data/ reports presented by the company with data verified by the external auditor; thus,
providing reinforcement to the role of the audit Committee members to practice their
supervisory role in more efficiently.

The company has affirmed commitment to spreading awareness amongst Board and senior
executive management members on developments in the corporate governance system by
providing training.

The company has exhibited adherence to updating all policies pertaining to the company’s
governance in accordance with the developments stipulated in the Governance System No. (3
R/M) for 2020 and its amendments.

The company has confirmed commitment to practice its business in accordance with the
stipulated transparency regarding compliance with the dates and disclosure methods of the
financial statements, in conformity with all provisions and decisions of the Securities and
Commodities Authority and Dubai Financial Market.

The Board of the company has persistently followed up the committees emanating from it, such
as the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management
Committee, and the Investment Committee in accordance with the provisions and stipulations of
the corporate governance regulation.

The investment committee therein the company has shown commitment to the application of
the investment policy, which is pursuant to the approved international standards. Moreover, the
committee has reviewed the company's investments and has taken the necessary decisions to
diversify investments and improve its returns.

The company has adhered to publish the corporate governance report and the annual financial
statements report before a sufficient period of the convening date of the general assembly
meeting enabling shareholders to review and approve it.

4
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3. Ownership and transactions of Board members and their spouses, their children in the company
securities during 2021.

Statement of Board members ownership in the company’s securities during 2021:

No. Name Position Total Total Owned Shares as of
Sale | Purchase 31/21/2021
1 | Matar Hamdan Sultan Hamad Al Ameri Chairman - - 2,000,000
2 | Shahab Ahmad Lutfi Vice -Chairman - - 180,258
3 | Abdallah Malek Osseiran Director - - -
4 | Salah lIbrahim Sharaf Director - - 1,400
5 | Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi Director - - -
6 | Mr. Khalaf Sultan Rashed Saeed AlDhaheri Director - - -
7 | Mahomed Akoob Director - - -
8 | Hind Habib Mohammed Sharif Al-Mulla Vice Chairman - - 258
wife

4. Board Formation:

The Board consists of seven independent and non-executive members, who were elected at the General
Assembly meeting held on 22/04/2021 by a cumulative secret balloting. The term of the membership is
for three fiscal years. The current Board members enjoy high competencies, capabilities and long-
standing expertise in the monetary and financial business that enable them to analyze, digest and
understand the financial statements accurately. These qualities have proven their qualifications and
competency to develop the strategy of the company effectively. Board members are provided with the
required information and periodic reports to be discussed during the Board meetings regarding the
company’s financial position, the main topics related to the company’s activity, and any other important
matters.

The members have effectively and dynamically contributed to the formation of a cohesive and highly
efficient Board to meet the challenges of the changing economic environment in order to create better
value for shareholders, enhance the confidence of stakeholders and maintain business sustainability.
We list herein below the names of the members of the Board, their educational qualifications, and their
work expertise, detailing the positions they occupied in other joint stock companies.

Head Office: | |



mailto:info@dat.ae
http://www.dat.ae/

Experience and Qualifications:

Mr. Al Ameri holds a bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Information
Systems from the United Arab Emirates University, and the Certified
Public Accountant license (CPA) from the United States of America. He
has held senior executive positions in public and private institutions,
and he has over 30-years of experience in finance and investment roles.
Previously, he held the position of Director of Finance and Control at
Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC) and is currently the Director
of Finance and Investment Department at ADNOC, which includes
ADNOC headquarters and several subsidiaries of the ADNOC Group.

Other Positions:
- Second Deputy Chairman of Islamic Finance Company (PCS)
Aafaq.

Experience and Qualifications:

Mr. Lutfi holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Boston
University, USA, and an MBA from City University Cass Business School
University, the UK. He has completed executive learning courses at Harvard
and Stanford. He has held key management positions in the banking and
real estate sectors, and project and facility management for several years,
in addition to his family history in the business sector, The International
Property Awards presented him with the "Best Building and Design of a
New Hotel" award in 2018-2019. As part of Lutfi's responsibilities, Bright
Star plans to continue expanding its portfolio of investments, particularly
in luxury hospitality, high-end residential, and retail sectors.

He is also the founder of H&H Development, a Dubai-based real estate
development company that provides turn-key and comprehensive real
estate development, design, procurement, and property management
solutions. He served as a Director at Dubai Properties where he headed the
$10 billion master planning project for Business Bay. His experience in real
estate development, his insight and hard work have ensured the successful
marketing and development of many projects within the Business Bay area
with over 10 million square feet of construction.

Other Positions
- CEO of Bright Star Company (LLC).
- CEO of DXB-LAB Architecture.
- Founding member and CEO of H&H.

JolL Al jla
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Mr. Matar Hamdan Sultan Al Ameri
Chairman
Election Date: 2020

Term of Membership: 1 Year and 4 Months

Category: Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shahab Ahmad Lutfi
Vice Chairman
Election Date: 2015
Term of Membership: 7 Years
Category: Independent
Non-Executive Director
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Experience and Qualifications:

Mr. Sharaf obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in 1998 from
Boston University, USA. He started his career in Sharaf Group
after graduation. He has diversified his areas of expertise by
taking on different roles and responsibilities in the shipping
industries across Germany and Hong Kong. He has the qualities
of an entrepreneur with excellent management skills and acute
business acumen. He also has extensive knowledge in the field
of shipping and maintenance, and he is actively participating in
planning organizational strategy and day-today operations.

Other Positions:

- Head of Shipping, Logistics and Transportation
Department at Sharaf Group.

- Member of the Board of Directors and Vice Chairman at
Sharaf Group.

- Chairman of the Board of Emirates Logistics.

- Vice-president of Star Feeders.

- Chairman of the Board of Sharaf Tours and Travels
Company.

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Sharaf Shipping
Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the United Arab
Emirates Shipping Association.

- Member of the UAE International Investors Council.

- Member of the Board of Directors of (Sovcomflot) SCF.

- Member of the Board of Directors of WaterFront.

Head Office: | | |
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Salah Ibrahim Sharaf
Election Date: 2011
Term of Membership: 11 Years
Category: Independent Non-
Executive Director
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Experience and Qualifications:

Meitha is an ardent banker with over 21 years of experience in
the financial industry. She is a skilled strategist who transforms
strategic plans into workable solutions and benchmarks
performance against key target & goals.

Her current position is Group Chief Credit Officer at Abu Dhabi
Islamic bank (ADIB) where she is responsible for taking Key
strategic lending decisions for ADIB Group. Prior to ADIB,
Meitha worked for Emirates NBD Group where she has held
several leadership roles viz. Chief Risk Officer — Emirates Islamic
and Chief Credit Officer, Group Credit at ENBD.

She was also involved in strategic and critical projects viz.
Emirates Bank International and National Bank of Dubai merger
and acquisition of BNP Paribas Egypt business by Emirates NBD.
She is also a permanent member of several senior management
committees spanning all critical areas of the bank where her
wisdom is looked upon for good governance. Meitha’s core
focus has always been on minimizing the overall impact to the
business in terms of Financial, Regulatory and Reputational.
Her professional qualifications include a Dual Bachelor’s degree
in Business management and Computer Science from
Switzerland.

Other Positions:

- Group Chief Credit Officer at Abu Dhabi Islamic bank
(ADIB).

Head Office: | | |
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Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi
Election Date: 2018
Term of Membership: 4 Years
Category: Independent Non-Executive
Director
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Experience and Qualifications:

Mr. Dhaheri holds an MBA from Zayed University — Dubai, and a
Certified Public Accountant license — CPA from the California
Board of Accountancy and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in USA, and he has an accredited certification
from Ashridge — Hertfordshire, UK in advanced management
programs.

Other Positions:

- Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of H.E. Sultan bin Khalaf Sultan Rashed Saeed Al Dhaheri
Rashed Al Dhaheri. Election Date: 2020

- Member of the Audit Committee of Abu Dhabi National Term of Membership: 1 Year and 4
Oil Company (ADNOC). Months

- Member of the Board of Directors of Abu Dhabi National Category: Independent Non-Executive
Hotels (ADNH). Director

- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Bank for
Investment and Foreign Trade (Al Masraf).

Head Office: | | |
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Experience and Qualifications:

Mr. Osseiran holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from
the Lebanese American University, and a Diploma in Banking from Saint
Joseph’s University.

He started his career at the Arab Bank, one of the leading banking
institutions in the Arab world, where he spent 16 years during which he
developed solid foundations in the financial and administrative fields. He
has held numerous positions and has managed to excel in a several
disciplines ranging from corporate finance, corporate banking, private
equity, strategic planning, and business development. In late 2001, he
moved to the United Arab Emirates as a financial advisor to a member of
the ruling family. He devoted his four-year career to overseeing a large
investment portfolio and he successfully negotiated strategic investments
in various sectors such as real estate, fixed income, and private equity, as
well as providing sound financial advice and secured strategic business
partnerships.

Since January 2006, Abdullah Osseiran has been the General Manager of
Magna Investments in Abu Dhabi which controls several entities in key
sectors with investments including education, hospitality, takaful,
financial services, real estate, private equity, and venture capital.

Other Positions:

- General Manager of Magna Investment.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Abu Dhabi Holding
University.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Abu Dhabi University.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Khawarizmi Holding
Company.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Khawarizmi International
College.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Liwa Education.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the National Takaful
Company — Watania (Formerly).
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Abdallah Malek Osseiran
Election Date: 2020
Term of Membership: 1 Year and 4
Months
Category: Independent Non-
Executive Director
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Experience and Qualifications:

Qualification: Associate of the Insurance Institute of South Africa
(AlISA). Mr. Akoob has international experience in general
management, strategy, economics, technical insurance, reinsurance
underwriting, takaful, re-takaful, risk management and financial
management affairs. He is also a member of the Boards of Directors
of international insurance and reinsurance companies and others. He
is a speaker in various seminars and conferences around the world.

Other Positions:
- Chairman of Credit Guarantee Insurance Company Limited in
South Africa.
- Member of Green Vision in United Kingdom
- Member of the Board of Directors of Chedid Capital Holding —
Lebanon.
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Mahomed Akoob
Election Date: 2020
Term of Membership: 1 Year and 4 Months
Category: Independent Non-Executive
Director

Dar Al Takaful (PJSC) board members acknowledge that the above information contained therein clauses

2 and 3 is valid.

5. Statement of the percentage of female representation in the Board for 2021:
The company has exhibited commitment to female representation in the Board with a ratio of one
member out of a total of 7 members, in accordance with the decision of the Chairman of the authority
No. (03 R/M) of 2020, and its amendments regarding standards of institutional discipline and governance

of Joint Stock companies.

6. The total remunerations paid to the Board members for 2020.

The General Assembly meeting held on 22/04/2021 approved the remuneration to the members of the

Board in total of AED. 980,000.

7. The total remunerations to the Board members, which are proposed for 2021, and will be presented in

the annual general assembly meeting for approval.

The Board members’ remuneration for the year of 2021 will be discussed at the next General Assembly
Meeting, provided that the concerned authorities should be notified of any developments in due time.

11
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8. A statement detailing the allowances for attending the meeting of the committees emanating from the
Board of Directors for the fiscal year 2021

Investment The Audit The Risk Nommatlon. and | Number of Am_ou.nt
Names of members . . . remunerations attended paidin

committee | committee | committee . .

Committee meetings AED

Matar Hamdan Sultan Al Ameri 3 - - - 3 30,000
Shahab Ahmad Lutfi 1 - - 1 2 20,000
Khalaf Sultan Rashed AlDhaheri 3 - - 1 4 40,000
Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al- i 4 4 - 8 80,000
Hashemi
Abdallah Malek Osseiran 3 i i 1 3 40,000
Mahomed Akoob i 4 4 i 8 80,000
Salah Ibrahim Sharaf - 4 4 - 8 80,000

a. Details of the allowances, salaries or additional fees received by a Board member other than the allowances

for attending the committees and their reasons.

During the year, 2021, no allowances, salaries or additional fees were paid to any Board member except to
what is disclosed in this report.

12
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b. Number of Board Meetings:
Number of
No Meeting date | Number of attendees attendees by Names of absent members
proxy

1 10/03/2021 7 None None
2 25/03/2021 7 None None
3 13/06/2021 7 None None
4 12/07/2021 7 None None
5 11/08/2021 6 None Shehab Ahmad Lutfi
6 14/11/2021 5 1 Khalaf Sultan Rashid Al Dhaheri

c. Number of Board resolutions passed during fiscal year 2021, along with its meeting convention
dates
No decision was passed by the Board of Directors during 2021.
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d. A statement of the duties and responsibilities of the Board members or the executive

management during 2021, in accordance with Board authorization, indicating the duration and

validity of the authorization as follows:

Name and
Position

Delegated Authority

Delegation period

Mr. Rajesh Sethi
CEO of Dar Al
Takaful and
General Manager
of Noor Takaful
Family

Mr. Rajesh Sethi started his duties in managing the daily and
operational business of the company on 26/07/2020, and his
authorities consist of the following:

1. Signing all transactions and correspondences of the
company pertaining to its activities within the United Arab
Emirates.

2. Representing the company Board before any of the
departments belonging to the local governments in any of
the emirates of the state, such as the economic
department, municipality, health department, police,
courts, arbitration courts, notary public and others.

3. Practicing any business or activity and performing anything
related to the company’s activity permitted by Islamic
Sharia within the limits of the laws and regulations in force,
provided that it is related, affiliated, or complementary to
any of the company’s purposes, funds, assets and
properties.

4. Signing all legal transactions and procedures that may be
required from him before those authorities.

5. Delegating lawyers and non-lawyers in all or some of what
was entrusted in him, and dismissal, withdrawal,
cancellation, increase or decrease of the powers of what
have been entrusted in him in any of the powers stated
herein above.

6. Appointing and dismissing employees and consultants and
determining their duties and remunerations.

7. Arranging the annual budget.

The executive
management of the
company undertakes the
duties and powers
entrusted in it by virtue of
attested authorization by
the Board, which shall be
subject to continuous
review by the Board.
These powers shall remain
in force unless otherwise,
canceled or abolished by
the Board.

Head Office:
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e. A statement of the details of transactions made with the related parties:

Transactions made with the related parties are those in which any party to the company has the
capability to control or exercise any material influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Transactions made with the related parties create potential or actual conflicts in
the company and can give the impression that business decisions are based on considerations that
are in conflict with the interests of the company and shareholders. Sometimes, transactions made
with the related parties are found to be in the interest of the company and its shareholders.
Accordingly, transactions made with the related parties shall be subject to the Board approval.
Moreover, the company’s management shall specify the terms and conditions of these transactions.
Related parties represent the major shareholders, the Board members and the key management
personnel of the group and companies that exercise significant influence over the company.

f. Details of transactions made with the related parties:

There are no transactions made with the related parties during 2021.

15
Head Office: | |


mailto:info@dat.ae
http://www.dat.ae/

g. The organizational structure of the company:
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h. Detailed statement of the senior executives in the first and second grade, according to the company
organizational structure:
Total salaries Total Any othc?r
Cash/In-Kind
- Date of and Bonuses
Sr. Position . . Reward for 2021
Appointment | allowances paid in or bavable in
paid in 2021 2021 pay
the future

1 | Chief Executive Officer - Dar Al Takaful 26/07/2020 1,680,000 500,000

2 | Chief Sales & Marketing Officer 26/07/2020 853,200 70,300

3 | Chief Financial Officer 26/07/2020 995,520 165,000

4 | Chief Risk Officer 26/07/2020 851,000 145,000

5 | General Manager — Noor Takaful General 23/01/2011 705,120 -

6 Chief Underwriting Officer — General 26/07/2020 759,600 130,000

Takaful

7 | Chief Family Takaful Officer 10/09/2019 660,000 55,000

8 | Senior Vice President — Human Resources 26/07/2020 540,000 90,000

9 E:nﬁ‘;;y General Manager —Noor Takaful | /11 5014 600,000 72,424 30,000
10 | Chief Healthcare Officer (Resigned) 26/07/2020 845,032 75,000
11 Head of Digital Transformation & OD 01/08/2018 210,000 i

(Resigned)

9. The External Auditor of the Company:

a. Overview of the company auditor.

The Board has submitted its recommendations for the external auditor selection, and they were

reviewed at the General Assembly to express opinion and ratify it. The General Assembly, in its meeting

held on 22/04/2021, decided to approve the appointment of Grant Thornton Company, which is the

sixth largest professional services network in the world and is one of the independent companies

recognized by financial markets, regulators and one of the international standards-setting bodies. Grant

Thornton has a long legacy of more than 50 years of continuous support for the economic advancement

of companies in various fields. The local team in the UAE has on board more than 200 professionals

supported by a large-scale of regional team in more than 12 branches around the world.

Head Office: |
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Statement of fees and costs for the audit or the services provided by the external auditor:

Grant Thornton - Mr.

Name of the Audit Office and Name of the Partner Auditor Mohamed Farouk
Reg. No. 86

No. of years that he served as an external auditor for the Company. 2

Total audit fees for the financial statements for 2020 (AED). AED 195,000

Fees and costs of other private services other than auditing the financial No other services

statements for 2021 (AED), if any, and in case of absence of any other fees,
this should be expressly stated.

Details and nature of other services (if any). If there are no other services, No other services
this matter shall be stated expressly.
Statement of other services that an external auditor other than the No other services

company accounts auditor provided during 2021 (if any). In the absence of
another external auditor, this matter is explicitly stated.

c. Statement clarifying the reservations that the company auditor included in the interim and annual
financial statements for 2021.

In the opinion of Grant Thornton, the consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position of the Group as on December 31, 2021, in a fairly manner in all material respects. In addition, the
consolidated financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended on the same date are made in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

10. Audit committee:

The Audit Committee demonstrates it’s persistent on following up with the external auditors, maintaining
a professional relationship with them, and reviewing the financial reports. The committee is also
committed to supervise the management of Internal Control Departments as it plays an active role in
ensuring the company adherence to the implementation of the law and the regulatory requirements as
well as ensuring the efficiency of its accounting practice.

a. Names of the Audit Committee members:

The Audit Committee consists of the following Board members:

1. Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi (Chairperson of the Committee).
2. Salah lbrahim Sharaf (Member).

3. Mahomed Akoob (Member).
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b. Duties of the audit committee:

10.

Review the company financial and accounting policies and procedures.

Monitor the integrity of the company financial statements; its (annual, semi-annual, and quarterly)
reports, its control systems, and reviewing them as part of its normal work during the year, with
particular attention being provided to the following:

= Any changes in the accounting policies and practices.

= Highlighting aspects which are subject to management discretion.

= Ensure that the company updates its policies, procedures, and control systems annually.

= Substantive amendments resulting from the audit

= Ensure the continuity of the company's business.

= Assumption of business continuity.

=  Compliance with accounting standards established by the competent Authorities.

=  Compliance with listing and disclosure regulations and the relevant legal requirements related to
financial reporting.

Coordinate with the company Board, the senior executive management and the financial manager or
the manager delegated with the same tasks in the company in order to perform its assigned duties.
Consider any significant and unusual terms contained or to be contained in such reports and accounts
and shall give due consideration to any matters raised by the Company Chief Financial Officer, the
manger delegated with the same duties, the compliance officer or the auditor.

Raise recommendations to the Board regarding the selection, resignation, or dismissal of the auditor.

In case the Board does not approve the Audit Committee recommendations in this regard, the Board

shall attach to the governance report a statement explaining the Audit Committee recommendations

and the reasons why the Board has not followed them.

Develop and implement the policy of contracting with the auditor, and submit a report to the Board,

outlining the issues that it deems necessary to be taken, along with providing recommendations for

steps to be taken.

Ensure that the auditor meets the conditions stated in the applicable laws, regulations, and
decisions and in the company articles of association, along with following up and monitoring its
independence.

Meet the auditor of the company without presence of any senior executive management
personnel or its representatives and discuss the same with regard to the nature and scope of the
audit process and its effectiveness in accordance with the audited standards.

Approve any additional works made by an external auditor for the company and the fees received in

consideration for that works.

Examine all matters related to the auditor’s work, his work plan, correspondence with the company,

his observations, suggestions and reservations, and any substantial queries raised by the auditor to the

senior executive management regarding the accounting records, financial accounts or control systems,
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in addition to following up the response of the company management and provision of the necessary
facilities to do his work.

Ensure that the Board responds in a timely manner to the clarifications and substantive issues raised
in the auditor's letter.

Review and evaluate the company internal audit and risk management systems.

Discuss the internal audit system with the Board and ensure that it performs its duty with regard to
establishing an effective internal audit system.

Consider the results of the main investigations regarding the internal auditing matters mandated to it
by the Board or at the initiative of the Committee and the approval of the Board.

Review the auditor evaluation of the internal control procedures and ensure that there is coordination
between the internal and external auditors.

Ensure of the availability of necessary resources for the internal auditing department, review and
monitor the effectiveness of such department.

Examine the internal auditing reports and follow up on the implementation of corrective actions for
the observations contained therein.

Establish controls to enable company employees to report confidentially on any potential violations in
financial reporting, internal audit or other matters and steps to ensure that such violations are
independently and fairly investigated.

Monitor the compliance of the company with the rules of the code of conduct.

Review related party transactions with the Company, ensure that there are no conflicts of interest and
raise recommendations about them to the Board before concluding them.

Ensure the implementation of the business rules of its functions and powers entrusted in it by the
Board.

Submit reports and recommendations to the Board on the above matters mentioned in this Article.

c. Mandate of the Audit Committee:

The audit committee is mandated to review any activity falling within its scope by the Board. It has
unfettered access to external auditors and can seek professional advice on any matter relating to the
company's accounts. The committee shall have powers to request any information it requires from any
employee or Board member. The Board members and staff are directed to cooperate with any request
made by the committee.

The Chairperson of the committee shall submit periodic reports to the Board on matters that the
committee evaluates and makes recommendations. The Chairperson of the committee shall attend the
annual meeting of the General Assembly and answer any queries submitted by shareholders about the
activities of the company and ensure the implementation of the governance.
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d. Statement of the number of meetings held by the Audit Committee during 2021:

The Audit Committee

Date of Committee meeting

Member’s name 24/03/2021 | 16/06/2021 | 10/08/2021 | 11/11/2021
Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi 4 v v v
Salah lbrahim Sharaf v v v v
Mahomed Akoob v v v v

The committee held four meetings during 2021 as follows:

Number of personal attendances for all audit committee members:

# Member’s Name umber of personal attendances
1 | Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi 4/4
2 | Salah lIbrahim Sharaf 4/4
3 | Mahomed Akoob 4/4

The audit committee Chairperson’s acknowledgement of her responsibility for the committee

mandates, in the Company and review of its mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee acknowledges her responsibility for the implementation of the
committee mandates in the Company and the regular periodic review of the function of the committee
mechanisms and its effectiveness, in accordance with the decision of the Board of the Securities and
Commodities Authority No. (3/ R).M) for 2020 and its amendments on the Implementation of the

standards of governance, institutional discipline and governance of public joint stock companies.

Head Office:
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11. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

As part of its responsibilities, the nominations and remuneration committee develop and reviews the
remuneration policy of the Board, the executive management, and determines the total compensation
that complies with the approved salary and remuneration systems. Furthermore, the committee
prepares and review the human resources policy to comply with legislation and laws and follows up the
procedures for nomination to the membership of the Board.

a. Names of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following Board members:

1. Shahab Ahmad Lutfi (Committee Chairman)
2. Abdallah Malek Osseiran (Member).
3. Khalaf Sultan Rashed AlDhaheri (Member)

b. The Main Duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:

1. Develop a policy to nominate for membership of the Board and executive management.
aiming at considering gender diversity within the formation and encouraging females through benefits,
incentive, training programs, and provides the authority with a copy of this policy and any amendments
thereto.

2. Organize and pursue the procedures for nomination for membership of the Board in accordance with
the decision of the Board of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. (3/ R).M) for 2020 and its
amendments.

3. Ensure the continuity of the membership conditions on the Board.

4. Prepare the policy for granting remunerations, benefits, incentives, and salaries of the members of the
Board, the executive management, and employees, and review it annually. The committee shall verify
that the remunerations and benefits granted to the senior executive management are reasonable and
commensurate with the performance of the company.

5. Annually, review the required skills needed for the membership of the Board and prepare a description
of the capabilities and qualifications required for Board membership, including determining the time
required to be devoted by the member to the work of the Board.

6. Identify the company needs of competencies at the level of senior executive management, employees,
and the basis of their selection.

7. Prepare the human resources, training policy for the company, monitor its implementation, and review
it annually.

8. Any other matters determined by the Board.
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c. Statement of the number of meetings held by the Committee during 2021:

Nomination and Remuneration Date of the Committee
Committee meeting
Member’s name 23/02/2021
Shahab Ahmad Lutfi v
Abdallah Malek Osseiran v
Khalaf Sultan Rashed Saeed AlDhaheri v

JolL Al jla
Dar Al Toqufu_ll

¢ Number of personal attendance of times for all nomination and remuneration members:

AlDhaheri

# Member’s name Number of personal attendances
1 | Shahab Ahmad Lutfi 1/1
2 | Abdallah Malek Osseiran 1/1
3 | Khalaf Sultan Rashed Saeed 1/1

The nomination and remuneration Committee Chairman acknowledgement of his responsibility for

the committee, review of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

The nomination and remuneration Committee Chairman acknowledges his responsibility for the

implementation of the committee mandates in the Company and the regular periodic review of the

function of the committee mechanisms and its effectiveness, in accordance with the decision of the
Board of the Securities and Commodities Authority No. (3/ R).M) for 2020 and its amendments on the
implementation of the standards of governance, institutional discipline and governance of public joint

stock companies.

Head Office:
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12. The Risk committee:

a.

Names of Risk Committee Members:

1. Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi (Chairperson)
2. Salah Ibrahim Sharaf (Member)

3. Mahomed Akoob (Joined in September 2020)

b. The Mandate and Duties of the Risk Management Committee are Summarized as Follows:

1.

10.

11.
12.

Develop a comprehensive risk management strategy and policies that are consistent with the nature and
scale of the company activities, monitor its implementation, review and update based on the changing
internal and external factors of the company.

Identify and maintain an acceptable level of risk that the company may face and ensure that the company
does not exceed this level.

Supervise the company risk management framework and evaluate the effectiveness of the framework
and mechanisms to identify and control the risks that threaten the company.

Provide guidance to management, as needed, to assist them in improving their risk management
practices and/or mitigating certain risks, including the presence of qualified staff at the management
personnel to carry out risk management activities effectively.

Obtain assurance from the executive management and the internal audit that processes and systems are

operating effectively with appropriate controls in addition to compliance with the approved policies.
Prepare detailed reports on the level of exposure to risks, recommended actions to manage these risks,
and submit them to the Board.

Make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to risk management.

Ensure the availability of adequate resources and systems for risk management.

Report regularly to the Board on the Company risk profile and promptly inform the Board of any
significant changes in the volume of the risk.

Verify the independence of risk management personnel apart from the activities that may expose the
Company to risks.

Review any matter raised by the Audit Committee that may affect the Company risk management.
Review the appointment, performance and replacement of the chief risk officer and monitor the overall
effectiveness of the risk management unit in general.
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c. A statement of the number of meetings held by the committee during the year, 2021:
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Risk Committee

Date of Committee meeting

Member’s Name 24/03/2021 | 16/06/2021 | 16/08/2021 | 11/11/2021
Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi v v v v
Salah Ibrahim Sharaf v v v v
Mahomed Akoob v v v v

The Number of personal attendance times for Committee Members:

# | Member’s name

Number of personal attendances

1 | Meitha Mohamed Al-Sharif Al-Hashemi 4/4
2 | Salah lbrahim Sharaf 4/4
3 | Mahomed Akoob 4/4

The Risk committee chairperson acknowledgement of her responsibility for the committee, review

of its work mechanism and ensuring its effectiveness:

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee acknowledges her responsibility for the implementation of
the committee mandates in the Company and the regular periodic review of the function of the
committee mechanisms and its effectiveness, in accordance with the decision of the Board of the
Securities and Commodities Authority No. (3/ R).M) for 2020 and its amendments on the
Implementation of the standards of governance, institutional discipline and governance of public joint

stock companies.

Head Office:
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13. The investment committee:
a. Names of the members of the investment management committee:

Matar Hamdan Sultan Al Ameri (Committee Chairman)
Shahab Ahmad Lutfi (Member)

Abdallah Malek Osseiran (Member)

Khalaf Sultan Rashed Saeed AlDhaheri (Member)

P wnN e

b. Statement of terms of reference for the investment committee:

1. Prepare and review investment plans and policies including risk limits and exposures in the
company's investment activities periodically to ensure their suitability for the current market
conditions.

2. Consider all proposed strategic investment matters requiring Board approval, before referring them
to the Board and reporting recommendations to the Board in connection therewith.

3. Review and present proposals submitted to the committee, in accordance with the delegated powers
granted to the committee and ensure that clear and specific processes are in place to provide
guidance and support with respect to approved transactions / contracts, including monitoring
progress, as appropriate.

4. Consider and deal with any other matters referred to or vested in it by the Board as stipulated therein
the authorities register.

5. Monitor the performance of the investment portfolio.

c. A statement of the number of meetings held by the Committee during 2021:

Investment management committee | Committee meeting date
Member’s name 23/02/2021 11/08/2021 | 13/10/2021
Matar Hamdan Sultan Al Ameri v v v
Shahab Ahmad Lutfi v X X
Abdallah Malek Osseiran v v v
Khalaf Sultan Rashed AlDhaheri v v v
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Number of personal attendance of times for all investment committee members:

# | Name of member Number of personal attendances
1 | Matar Hamdan Sultan Al Ameri 3/3
2 | Shahab Ahmad Lutfi 1/3
3 | Abdallah Malek Osseiran 3/3
4 | Khalaf Sultan Rashed AlDhaheri 3/3

The investment committee Chairman acknowledgement of his responsibility for the committee

system, review of the mechanism, and ensure its effectiveness:

The Chairman of the investment committee acknowledges his responsibility for the implementation of the
committee’s mandates and regular review of the function of the committee mechanisms and its
effectiveness, in accordance with the decision of the Board of the Securities and Commodities Authority
No. (3/ R).M) for 2020 and its amendments on the Implementation of the standards of governance,
institutional discipline and governance of public joint stock companies.
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14. Insider Trading Supervision Committee:

The company has put in place procedures aimed at preventing insiders in the company from exploiting
confidential inside information to achieve material or moral gains.

The transactions made by the insiders and their ownership are supervised, their records are kept, and
periodic statements and reports are submitted to the market in compliance with the decision of the
chairman of the board of the securities and commodities Authority No. (3/ R.M) for the year 2020
regarding standards of institutional discipline and governance of joint stock companies.

The company has also demonstrated commitment to update the company disclosure, transparency
policy, and following up its implementation in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory
authorities and applicable regulations, which included the obligations to disclose periodic reports,
material information, and the ownership of insiders and their first-degree relatives. The company has
also complied to provide information to shareholders and investors on the website of the company and
the Dubai Financial Market in an accurate, clear, non-misleading and on a timely manner, enabling them
to make their decisions to enhance disclosure and transparency.

In addition to updating policies related to transactions made by the insider, disclosure and transparency,
the company has been performed the following actions through year 2022.

1. Prepared a private and comprehensive record of all insiders, including those who may be
considered temporarily insiders and their disclosures.

2. The authority and the market have been notified of an updated list of insiders at the beginning of
each fiscal year and any amendments made during the fiscal year.

3. Data and copies of the insider's register were submitted to the authority upon request.

The Insider Trading Supervision Chairman acknowledge his responsibility on the transactions
made by the insiders for his responsibility for the committee system, review the mechanism, and
ensure its effectiveness.
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15. The internal control:

In 2021, the company updated a set of internal policies and procedures related to risk and internal
control in accordance with the applicable regulations regarding internal controls. The updated policies
are as follows:

- Compliance management and anti-money laundering framework.
- Whistleblowing policy.

- Conflict of interest policy.

- Stock Trading Policy.

- Anti-money laundering policies and procedures.

a. Name of the Head of the Department, his qualifications and date of appointment.
On December 05, 2021, Ms. Sumaya Haj Al Balushi took charge of the compliance department. She
holds a bachelor's degree in Management Information System and a diploma in anti-money laundering
and compliance. She previously worked for Noor Bank for 8 years in the compliance department. She is
successor of Hessa Saeed, who resigned in September 2021.

In July 2020, following the completion of Dar Takaful (PJSC) acquisition of Noor General Takaful and Noor
family takaful, Mr. Raheel Rizvi took over the duties of internal control, internal audit and Compliance
department. He holds a chartered accountant qualification from the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan. Mr. Raheel joined Noor group of companies in March 2014, as an internal audit manager.

b. How the Internal Control Department deals with major issues in the company:
The procedures implemented related to Internal Control Department are designed to study major
issues noted in the company thoroughly across all company departments. Depending on the nature of
the issue, recommendations are reported to the executive management and the audit committee. The
implementation of these recommendations is followed up periodically and reported to the audit
committee and Executive Management Committee.

C. Number of reports issued by the Internal control Department to the Board.

The Internal Control Department reports periodically to risk management committee and audit
committee to discuss work related to internal control and compliance.

The Board acknowledges responsibility for the company's internal control system, review its work
mechanism, and ensure its efficiency.
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16. Details of violations committed during 2021, explaining their causes, how to address them and avoid
their recurrence in the future:

The company committed to its adherence to all the requirements of the regulatory authorities and
updates the internal control procedures continuously to prevent any violation of the applicable
regulations. However, during 2021, three violations were detected therein the company. The details of
the violations, their reasons, and the corrective action plan are detailed herein below:

Department of Health — Abu Dhabi:

a) Department of Health in Abu Dhabi imposed two fines amounting AED. 120,000 for not submitting
required documents.
Correction plan: Dar Al Takaful (PJSC) has updated and developed the medical Takaful procedures and
internal monitoring mechanism has also been developed to ensure that all required procedures and
compliance with the provisions of the medical insurance regulations are met by the company.

b) Department of Health in Abu Dhabi imposed a fine amounting AED. 15,000. The Ministry of Health
had suspended United insurance broker (UIB). One policy was issued by the company with United
Insurance broker (UIB).

Correction plan: The company has established procedures to refer to the updated list of the licensed
active brokers on the Ministry of Health Website and compare it with the active list adopted therein
its system.

17. Statement of the cash and in-kind contributions made by the Company during 2021 in developing the
local community Environmental Conservation.

Contribution Contribution Cost
100 million meals, organized by Mohammed Bin Rashid Al Maktoum AED 5,000
Global Initiatives, headquartered in the United Arab Emirates.
Eid joy which is an initiative organized by Rawafed Center. AED 2,000
Breast cancer awareness program. AED 6,000
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18. General information:

a. Statement of the company share price in the market (closing price; highest price, and lowest price) at
the end of each month during the financial year, 2021.

Month High (AED) Low (AED) Closing (AED)
Jan-21 0.920 0.915 0.920
Feb-21 0.945 0.904 0.945
Mar-21 0.980 0.954 0.975
Apr-21 1.030 1.010 1.030
May-21 1.030 1.030 1.030
Jun-21 1.060 1.000 1.030
Jul-21 0.995 0.995 0.995
Aug-21 1.070 1.070 1.070
Sep-21 1.030 1.030 1.030
Oct-21 1.030 1.020 1.030
Nov-21 1.240 1.080 1.240
Dec-21 1.290 1.080 1.250
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b. A statement of the comparative performance of the company's shares with the general market index
and sector index to which the company belongs during the 2021.

Year
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C.

Statement of shareholders’ ownership distribution as on 31/12/2021 (individuals, companies,

governments) classified as follows: Local, Gulf, Arab, and Foreign.
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Shareholder's
classification

Percentage of owned shares

Individuals Companies Government Total
Local 57.9464% 28.5345% - 86.4809%
Gulf 4.1476 % 0.6978% - 4.8454%
Arab 7.4608 % 0.1478% 7.6086%
Foreign 1.0652 % - - 1.0652%
Total 70.6200 % 29.3801% - 100.0001%

d. Statement of shareholders owning 5% or more of the company's capital as on 31/12/2021:

Name No. of Shares Percentage of Shareholding
Mohammed Sultan Mohammed Hashel Al Khyeli 29,717,123 19.8114%
Magna Investment LLC 14,990,000 9.9933%
Mohammed Qusai Mohammed Al Ghusssein 14,900,657 9.9338%

e. Statement of shareholders distribution according to the size of the ownership as on 31/12/2021 as
detailed herein below:

. Number of Number of owned | Percentage of owned
Share (s) ownership .
Shareholders Shares shares of the Capital
Less than 50,000
1,451 3,510,118 2.340%
From 50,000 to less than 500,000
93 12,419,056 8.278%
From 500,000 to less than 5,000,000
22 35,292,046 23.528%
More than 5,000,000 65.853%
9 98,778,780
33
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19. Statement of the measures taken regarding the controls of investor relationships, and an indication of
the following:

Dar Al Takaful (PJSC) has updated and developed its investor relations website in order to be compliant
with the requirements and controls of the Securities and Commodities Authority's investor relations
department. Shareholder, investor, as well as the public, can access the Company website at:

www.dat.ae.

a. Contact details for the investor relationship manager:

- Investor Relationship Manager contact Details:
- Mrs. Nawal Maally, Investor Relationship Manager.
- Email address: ir@dat.ae
- Contact No. 800-TAKAFUL (8252385)
- Link for the investor relations page on the Company's website https://www.dat.ae/investor-relation

b. Statement of special decisions presented in the general assembly held during 2021 and the procedures
taken in their regard.

No special decision was taken during the General Assembly held on 04/22/2021.

c. Board Secretary:
¢ Name of the Board Secretary and his appointment date:
- Hamad Sharaf was appointed on 10/30/2018.

e Qualifications:
- Certificate of the Secretary of the Board of Directors accredited by Hawkamah Institute (2019).

- Bachelor of Business Administration (Finance) from American University in Dubai (2006-2010).
- Secretary of the Board of Directors - (November 2018 - until now).

¢ Experience:
- Head of Department - Key Accounts, Bancatakaful & Travel (2014 - Present).

- Deputy General Manager - NTF

e Statement of his duties during the year:

- Coordinate the dates of Board meetings with all members.
- Prepare the agenda for the board of directors' meetings in coordination with the executive
management.
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- Prepare the minutes of the Board meetings and sending them to all members for review and
approval.

- Follow up the implementation of the Board resolutions with the executive management.

- Ensure effective management within the company.

- Ensure compliance and integrity of the organizational structure with legal requirements of
governance.

- Providing Dubai Financial Market and the Securities and Commodities Authority with the
necessary disclosures.

d. Detailed statement of major events and important disclosures that the company encountered during
2021.
None

e. Statement of Emiratization percentage in the company at the end of 2021.

- The percentage of Emiratization reached:

Year Total targeted points | Total scored points
2021 110 112
2020 102 109
2019 83 103

f. Statement of the innovative projects and initiatives carried out by the company or being developed

during 2021.
P
k»&

None
Matar Hamdan Sultan Al Ameri
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

REPORTING SCOPE
This is the 2021 Sustainability Report for Dar Al Takaful, which covers the period
between the 1%t of January to the 315t of December 2021, unless stated otherwise.

Dar Al Takaful PJSC was incorporated as a public joint stock company established
in July 2008. The Company carries out general takaful, retakaful and investments
in accordance with the teachings of Islamic Shari‘a and within the provisions of
UAE Federal Law no. 6 of 2007 relating to takaful companies and takaful agents
and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The Company'’s
headquarters is currently at the Offices 1 at Once Central, Level 4, Dubai World
Trade Centre, P.O. Box 48883, Dubai - UAE.

At 31t of December 2021, the Company had the following subsidiaries that it fully
owned:

Noor Takaful Family PJSC Family takaful and retakaful activities

Noor Takaful General PJSC General takaful and retakaful activities

Auto Crew Workshop LLC Auto mechanical repairing workshop

Dar Al Takaful has been listed on the Dubai Financial Market since August 2008
and has an authorized capital of AED 150 million. The Company operates through
its headquarters in Dubai, along with three branches in Dubai, Sharjah and Abu
Dhabi. All the branches fall within the scope of this report.

The Company has acquired in July 2020 Noor Takaful General and Noor Takaful
Family (listed above as subsidiaries). Both subsidiaries also fall within the scope
of this report. As for the third subsidiary, Auto Crew Workshop LLC, although
effectively legally owned by the Company, it does not fall within the scope of this
report as it has no operational activities.

We take operational control as the boundary for reporting, unless stated
otherwise.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report has been prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards (GRI): Core
Option, as well as with the Dubai Financial Market’s (DFM) ESG metrics. In
addition, the report outlines Dar Al Takaful’s alignment with the UAE Vision 2021,
as well as the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals.

This inaugural report is issued in Jan 2021. It is expected that all subsequent
reports will be issued within 90 days of the end of our fiscal year (which would fall
on the 315t of March) or before our Annual General Meeting, whichever comes first.
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EXTERNAL ASSURANCE
The content of this report has been reviewed and validated by Dar Al Takaful's
internal audit function.

All financial figures extracted from our financial statements have been
independently audited by internationally recognized audit firms. Our annual
audited financial statements can be found on our website.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

It is important to note that forward-looking statements involve uncertainty given
the many external factors that could impact the environment in which the
Company is operating.

The Company holds no obligation to publicly update or revise its forward-looking
statements throughout the coming fiscal year except as required by applicable
laws and regulations. It is therefore not within the scope of our internal audit team
to form an opinion on these forward-looking statements.

COMMUNICATION & FEEDBACK

References to the GRI Standards and DFM ESG disclosures are found on the top
part of each corresponding section. The GRI content index, which forms an integral
part of Sustainability Reports is prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards
and included on page 44. The index is also inclusive of DFM’s ESG disclosures.

For any feedback about this report, please contact:

Name: Nawal Ma’ally
Email: nmaally@dat.ae
Phone: 04-3041603
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OUR PURPOSE

OUR VISION
Protection and peace of mind

OUR MISSION
To offer the most innovative ethical insurance solutions and build a culture of
excellence

VALUES
Our core values were derived through the mutual consensus of our employees, our
board and our practices

Ethics | Passion | Quality | Agility | Empathy

About Dar Takaful
Dar Al Takaful was established in 2008 and over the past 13 years has developed
to become one of the premier Takaful insurance companies in the region.

In 2021, the Company’s total assets have decreased slightly from AED 1,662
million in 2020 to AED 1,583 million in 2021 while its total equity increased 5% to
reach AED 152.2 million

Shari‘ah compliance and ethics are at the heart of our business model. As such
the company is focused on a mission to provide protection and deliver peace of
mind. Our long-term strategy is to deliver growth and enhance stakeholder value
by means of instilling a culture of innovation and excellence.

We offer a broad range of Takaful general and customized Islamic insurance
products and services to individuals, families, and companies in the UAE.

Our main business segments include general, family life, and medical insurance
which formed around 30%, 24%, and 46% of our total contributions in 2021,
respectively.

Dar al Takaful is a member of the Emirates Insurance Association.

Key 2021 event

Despite the challenging operational and economic circumstances brought on by
COVID-19, we successfully completed the acquisition of Noor Takaful Family &
Noor Takaful General (‘Noor Takaful’), two leading takaful sister companies,
established in 2009. Noor Takaful offers a comprehensive range of general,
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medical, and family takaful solutions. The company was the third largest takaful
operator in the UAE with a gross written contribution of AED554 million in 2019.

The strategic acquisition of Noor Takaful General and Noor Takaful Family in July
2020 has brought us a step closer to becoming a leading Takaful provider in the
region. As a result, this has diversified the range of products and solutions that
we offer to our clients and scaled up our market share.

The acquisition brought about changes in most of our Board of Directors which
gave the company a new vision and strategic direction, thereby further
strengthening our business model and ambition to become the leading Takaful
providers in the region.

Dar Al Takaful is supported by ‘A’ rated retakaful partners.

Our Products & Solutions

PERSONAL SEGMENT CORPORATE SEGMENT SME SEGMENT

e Engineering
e Medical e Property
o Car e Marine ¢ SME General Takaful
¢ Home e General Accident ¢ SME Medical
e Travel e Liability e SME Fleet
e Board e Family e SME Family
e Family (life) e Medical
e Fleet

SME segment

Small and mid-size enterprises (SMEs) are the heart of the economy, they breathe
life into the sectors in which they exist and combined are the largest employer.
Simultaneously, such companies are founded and led by entrepreneurs, and risk
taking is an integral part of their journey. Without insurance, it would be difficult
for them to reach their aspirations and create the successful stories that ignite
hope in everyone’s heart and mind.

We are proud to serve this segment of the market, but more importantly to serve
them with ethics. We are keen on providing them with a customized service and
be a positive catalyst to their aspirations and growth.

We offer a comprehensive set of Takaful solutions to SMEs to ensure that they
enjoy better protection while receiving value for money.

Growth Through Digital Innovation

Innovation forms an integral part of our culture and growth plan. It is by means
of operational efficiency and providing full-service accessibility to our clients at
their own comfort and preferred timing that we will be able to lead and contribute
towards the growth of the Takaful sector in the region.
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Dar Al Takaful’s Financial Rating
Our Company has a Financial Strength Rating of B (fair), with a Stable outlook
and a long-term issuer credit rating of “bb” with a positive outlook, from AM BEST.

ISO 9001:2015 Standard Certified

Noor Takaful is ISO 9001:2015 Standard Certified. Such compliance refers to a
quality management system used by an organization to demonstrate they provide
high quality services and/or products that consistently meet client and regulatory
requirements.

2021 Awards & Recognition Program

‘Best Company to Work for 2021’ at the International Business Excellence
Awards(Gold Category).

‘Insurance Brand of the Year’ award by Global Banking and Finance
Review 2021

‘Most Innovative Takaful Company’ award by Global Banking and
Finance Review 2021

‘Best Takaful Company’ award by International Business Magazine

‘Best Insurance Brand Award’ award by Global Brands Awards

‘Digital Transformation Project’ award by Tahawultech

‘Best Takaful Provider award by MEA Finance

‘Best Takaful Company’ at the World Business Outlook2021
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Key Financial Highlights

Revenue & Net Profit
(in AED million)
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Total Capitalization
(in AED million)
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Takaful & ESG Overlap

Takaful is strictly based on strong ethics and applies the values of fairness and
transparency. Moreover, Takaful promotes stakeholder value creation as well as
environmental stewardship, both of which form the very essence of Sustainable
Development.

Takaful insurance is a participatory form of insurance whereby clients are insured
but also act as insurers as they contribute to a risk pool. Such risk pool is managed
by the operator whose ultimate objective is to create value to all stakeholders.

From an investor’s perspective, Takaful operators link deposits and investments
to real underlying assets, which enhances the investment portfolio’s risk profile,
and decreases potential volatility. As a further layer of safety, Takaful operators
invest according to Shari‘ah principles which promotes social well-being.

The above resonates and overlaps perfectly well with sustainability and ESG, as a
result, creating a clear path for Takaful operators to swiftly progress along their
sustainability journey.

With that in mind, our approach to sustainability is that of relevance and
comprehensiveness. We look to apply sustainability and ESG as it specifically
pertains to the insurance sector while ensuring that we cover all facets of our
operation. This will result in Dar Takaful maximizing its impact on and contribution
to a more sustainable UAE Economy.

Sustainability Oversight

As part of our NTDAT Hive initiative, the Noor Care House, formed in 2020 and
consisting of representatives from different departments, is responsible for
creating and monitoring sustainability-related initiatives in the Company. Such
team has allowed us to further organize ourselves, engage our senior staff on
sustainability-related matters, and most importantly to combine internal efforts to
progress along our sustainability journey.

So far, such initiatives are discussed and decided upon at committee and
managerial level, while keeping our Board of Directors abreast of the main
performed actions.

Going forward, we will look to further enhance our sustainability efforts, by
introducing a sustainability and ESG firm-wide framework that will clearly guide
our actions in that regard. Such framework will be initiated and discussed at the
Board level and will be implemented at the committee level.
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Sustainable Workplace
Companies must lead by example, which is a trait implanted in Dar Al Takaful’s
values. Hence our starting point must include ensuring that our own workplace is
sustainable. This would include the following:
e Decarbonize our operation by means of shifting to a circular workplace
e Continuously work to improve the society’s well-being including those of
our employees, clients, and the community
e Put in place a robust ESG governance system that establishes
responsibilities, transparency, and accountability

We have already made important strides in that regard which is discussed
throughout the report.

Shari’ah Investing with an ESG lens

As an institutional investor, we must consider ESG factors when analysing and
making investment decisions. Environmental, Social, and Governance factors are
bringing about new risks as well as opportunities that are reshaping the
investment world. Investing through an ESG lens is not only a must to protect the
value of our investments but also to contribute to greening the financial system
and as a result financing the shift to sustainable development.

The above calls for Dar Al Takaful’s investment operation to have an ESG
framework that will enhance its investment decision making.

Sustainable Insurance

Providing sustainable insurance is a necessity to remain competitive to retain and
grow our client base and become the leading Takaful operation in the region. More
specifically, consumers are becoming more environmentally aware and conscious
which is increasingly becoming apparent in their actions and needs. This requires
that forward-looking insurance companies remain close to their clients and create
the necessary products and solutions not only to keep up with their needs but also
help them shape these needs towards a more sustainable world.

OUR COMMITMENT TO THE UAE VISION 2021 AND THE
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

The UAE Vision 2021

The UAE Vision 2021 was launched, in 2010, by H.H. Sheikh Mohammed bin
Rashid Al Maktoum, Vice-President and Prime Minister of the UAE and Ruler of
Dubai. The Vision aims to make the UAE among the best countries in the world by
the Golden Jubilee of the Union.

To put the Vision into action, six National Priorities were created, representing the
key focus sectors of the government up to 2021.
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The six National Priorities include:

World-Class Healthcare

Competitive Knowledge Economy

Safe Public and Fair Judiciary

Cohesive Society and Preserved identity
Sustainable Environment and Infrastructure
First-Rate Education System

The Sustainable Development Goals

In 2015, all United Nations Member States adopted the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development which provides a shared blueprint for peace and
prosperity for people and the planet. The key element of the 2030 Agenda lies in
its 17 Sustainable Development Goals.

The 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs or Global Goals) are an urgent call
for action around a common set of objectives that define global sustainable
development priorities. The aim of the Global Goals is to create a life of dignity
and opportunity for all and can only be accomplished through a global partnership
inclusive of governments, corporations, civil society, academia, and others.

Mapping the Vision 2021 with the SDGs:

The below map illustrates the alignment between the UAE Vision’s six National
Priorities and the UN Sustainable Development Goals, this alignment was
performed by the Committee on SDGs, a UAE government entity established in
2017 tasked with ensuring the UAE’s development agenda is aligned with the
SDGs and directly contributes to them.

First-Rate i
Education System Wafid-ﬂm
Healthcare

VISION 6‘

20210

Safe Public &
Fair Judiciary
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Dar Al Takaful’s Approach

Our approach towards the UAE Vision 2021 and the SDGs is that of relevance. We
have applied a focused approach to our alignment to ensure that we make the
greatest impact. When selecting and referring to those SDGs that are relevant to
the insurance industry (along with their key messages), we have relied on a study
conducted by GIZ (Deutsche Gesellschaft fur Internationale Zusammenarbeit), a
German development agency which published a special report aligning the
insurance industry with the SDGs (“Inclusive insurance and the Sustainable
Development Goals - How insurance contributes to the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development”).

Below is a representation of our alignment with both initiatives in order of
priority:

Jolaiingla @
Dar Al Takaful .

Promium KoM INSurance Sl et

UAE VISION 2021 GLOBAL GOALS
2 -

1 Ronar 5 i 18 o
i | & |

COMMITMENT

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS
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UAE Vision 2021

Priority 1: World-Class
Healthcare:

The UAE aims to become
among the best countries in
the world in terms of
quality of healthcare

Priority 2: Competitive
Knowledge Economy:

The UAE aims for a
knowledge-based and
highly productive economy.
One that is sustainable,
diversified and harnesses
full potential of human
capital

Alignment

Insurance and social protection
can play complementary roles to
cover a range of household health
care costs

Insurance improves healthcare
seeking behaviour

Insurance protects assets, thereby
unlocking loans and other funds
for investments (including for
micro-, and small-to-medium size
enterprises)

Insurance frees companies’
private funds for productive
investment

Insurance supports the
development of companies by
protecting them from losses due
to risks related to business,
natural disasters, or other
catastrophes

Global Goals

SDG3 | Good Health and Well-
Being:

Ensure healthy lives and promote
well-being for all, at all ages

SDGS8 | Decent Work and
Economic Growth:

Promote sustained, inclusive, and
sustainable economic growth, full
and productive employment, and
decent work for all
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COMMITMENT

These are increasingly becoming a major focus and represent key

opportunities and impacts:

UAE Vision 2021

Alignment

Global Goals

Priority 2: Cohesive
Society and Preserved
Identity:

The UAE Vision 2021
National Agenda strives to
preserve a cohesive society
proud of its identity and
sense of belonging

Priority 3: Sustainable
Environment and
Infrastructure:

The UAE Government wants
to ensure sustainable
development while
preserving the
environment, and to
achieve a perfect balance
between economic and
social development

Insurance provides a safety net for
those using it, preventing families
from falling (back) into poverty
after experiencing a shock
Insurance provides an economic
protection mechanism for all
Insurance sustains other
development efforts

There are gender differences in
risks faced by women and men
Insurance protects women from the
financial impact of losing family
members, helping women to retain
their homes, sustain their
businesses, continue education of
their children, and generally
maintain the financial stability of
their household

Insurance mitigates the effects of
extreme weather events, thereby
strengthening climate change
resilience

Insurance complements and
strengthens other climate change
coping efforts

Catastrophe insurance protects a
variety of stakeholders, from
companies and infrastructure to the
most vulnerable

SDG1 | No Poverty:

End poverty in all its forms
everywhere

SDG5 | Decent Work and
Economic Growth:

Promote sustained, inclusive, and
sustainable economic growth, full
and productive employment, and
decent work for all

SDG 13 | Climate Action

Take urgent action to combat
climate change and its impact
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The underlying Priorities & SDGs are by default linked to our efforts in
contributing to sustainable development:

UAE Vision 2021

Priority 5: First-Rate
Education System:

Education is a fundamental
element for the
development of a nation
and the best investment in
its youth

Priority 6: Safe Public
and Fair Judiciary

The UAE Vision 2021
National Agenda aims for
the UAE to be the safest
place in the world

Alignment

It is only by means of partnerships
and through business ethics that we
will be able to create value to all
stakeholders and contribute to
sustainable development.

Global Goals

SDG16 | Peace, Justice and Strong
Institutions:

Promote peaceful an inclusive
societies for sustainable
development, provide access to
justice for all and build effective,
accountable and inclusive
institutions at all levels

SDG17 | Partnerships for the
Goals:

Strengthen the means of
implementation and revitalize the
global partnership for sustainable
development

As part of the continuous progress we seek to demonstrate in our next sustainable
reports, we will gradually look to include specific KPIs to validate and monitor our
impact on the mentioned relevant SDGs, with a focus on those we impact directly.
We will also work to align our CSR activities accordingly.

OUR STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

ASSESSMENT

Stakeholder Engagement
Engaging with our stakeholders lies at the core of our corporate strategy and is a

fundamental contributor to our long-term success.

More specifically, such

engagement is important to understanding the priorities and expectations of our
stakeholders which serve as a key input to an ESG framework that is impactful.

Our sustainability report is based on our company’s existing engagement methods.
The analysis of available material enables us to understand the interests of our
key stakeholder groups and prioritize them according to the assessment

conducted.
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We have used the AA100 Stakeholder Engagement Standards Framework to select
and prioritize our list of stakeholders. The following criteria were applied:

e Dependency: the degree to which the stakeholder’s support is needed
to achieve our strategic goals

e Influence: the degree to which the stakeholder can influence operational
performance

e Interest: the degree to which the stakeholder can affect of be affected
by our operations

Our engagement strategy will be continuously reviewed and improved allowing us
to update our material sustainability or ESG-related topics whenever relevant.

Our key stakeholder groups are listed below. Please refer to the Appendices for
the details related to our existing engagement methods:

4 N\ Y4 N\ N\ Y4 Y4 N
MANAGEMENT .|| BUSINESS RATING
CUSTOMERS || o' cvo’ Svees | SHAREHOLDERS|| GOVERNMENT || pARTNERS AGENCIES COMMUNITY
o AN AN AN AN AN N\ J

*Includes: Securities & Commodities Authority, Central Bank, Dubai Financial Market, Dubai Health Authority, Abu Dhabi Health Authority, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Economy

Materiality Assessment

In order to assess the economic, environmental, social and governance matters
that are key to our long-term success, we have considered both internal and
external factors and conducted a materiality assessment that captures the
importance of various sustainability topics based on our business impact and our
stakeholders’ inputs.

Business Impact:

To build an understanding about our sustainability impact, we have conducted a
comprehensive peer analysis and studied global trends affecting the industry. The
final list of topics was then prioritized based on the expertise of our business
leaders and in alignment with our company’s strategic focus, operational
processes, and impact.
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Stakeholder Inputs:

Based on our existing methods of stakeholder engagement, we have assessed
those topics that would be of most interest to our stakeholders and ranked them
accordingly.

The below table lists the material topics that came out as a result of the above
outlined stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment exercise. The table
also includes the alignment of each material topic with its corresponding GRI
disclosures and Dubai Financial Market ESG metrics. We have illustrated through
a materiality matrix where our material topics would fall within the spectrum of
priorities for both the company and our stakeholders. The matrix can be found in
the Appendices.

In subsequent reports, we will look to engage with our key stakeholders on

sustainability and ESG specific topics. We will plot such input into our materiality
matrix and update our list of material topics where applicable.

GRI 201 - Economic

1 Financial Performance N/A
Performance
2 Customer Trust GRI 418 - Customer .. . Privacy
Privacy
GRI 417-
3 Ethical Business Marketing & N/A
Labelling
Innovation &
4 Digitalization N/A N/A
GRI 401 - S3: Employee
g ARy Mo qplEs Employment Turnover
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GRI 405 - Diversity S2: Gender Pay Ratio
& Equal Opportunity S4: Gender Diversity

GRI 404 - Training

and Education N/A

E1l: GHG Emissions

E2: Emissions

Intensity

E3: Energy Usage

E4: Energy Intensity

E5: Energy Mix
GRI 302 - Energy E6: Water Usage
GRI 305 - E7: Environmental
Emissions Operations

E8: Environmental

Oversight

E9: Environmental

Oversight

E10: Climate Risk

Mitigation

N/A S11: Nationalization

S12: Community

N/A Investment
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FOSTERING A GREAT WORKPLACE

EMPLOYEE WELFARE & ENGAGEMENT

Valuable Employment

As a knowledge-based company, our success is based on our employees’
performance, which reflects their qualifications, their skills and experience.

It is our duty as an employer to hire the right talents for the right positions, and
to ensure our employees are working in an environment that fosters engagement,
learning, and achievement.

Most important of all, we believe in ‘Happiness at Work’; happiness at work is
directly linked to success at work. Our aim is to have happy employees with a
positive outlook and brilliant at formulating innovative solutions.

To achieve the above, we have in place a clear strategy to improve employee
happiness, based on two primary objectives the first being (1) to promote a fun
and positive work environment for our employees, and the second (2) to empower
them by increasing their motivation and doing the necessary to boost their
happiness.

Our strategy is based on the below listed six pillars:

1. 2. 3.

Make our employees Be attentive and Create the right work
feel valued listening to our life balance
employees’ needs

4. 5. 6.

Encourage and help Appreciate our Encourage a team
our employees to employees and the spirit
learn and grow in work they do

their specialties
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The first step begins with our ability to attract and retain top talent. To that end,
we have in place a structured and effective Talent Acquisition Strategy in line
with our business goals. Our strategy is supported by our Talent Acquisition Policy
and certifies that the right approach and hiring methods are followed to ensure
long-term success. The strategy spans the complete process of talent acquisition
and management and includes procedures in relation to recruitment (internal,
external and international), internships, job posting, job offer, probations amongst
others.

Moreover, we have put in place several measures and processes including a
comprehensive induction program to ensure our new joiners are warmly
welcomed, swiftly feel they belong to the Dar Al Takaful family, and are able to be
productive from the get-go.

In 2021 we have awarded the “Best Company To Work For” by International Business
Excellence Award

Other engagement initiatives are thoroughly designed and include team building
activities, monthly staff meetings, and giving the possibility for employees to join
diverse club houses within the company to promote work-life balance, health
awareness, and engaged & motivated employees. More specifically, our NTDAT
Hive Club, comprised of four different Houses, offers our employees the
opportunity to interact and be involved in various activities:

Responsible for sports activities, Responsible for the company’s
encouraging fitness and health corporate social responsibility,
amongst the employees as well as taking care of the employees and
outside-office interactions. serving the society.

Mission: To build a culture of Mission: Serve the society and

engagement, socializing and bring people together to build
teamwork at the field with our hope, trust and lasting changes in
diverse team. other's lives.
Vision: To gather teams of same Vision: To leave a sustainable and
sports interest and build activities compassionate world for our next
which connect us. generations
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EVENTS HOUSE HEALTH HOUSE

Responsible for all national and || Rresponsible for the wellbeing of the
international events, employee fun employees as well as health and
activities, and virtual games. wellness awareness in  the

o ) Company.
Mission: To design and carry out

innovative events that meet our Mission: To inspire hope and

employees’ needs and desires. contribute to health and well-

o o being. Wellness for all: Spiritual,
Vision: To c_reate mspmn_g events emotional, intellectual, physical,
and entertainment experiences for social, environmental, financial
all employees. health.

Vision: To provide an unparalleled
experience as the most trusted
partner for health care.

In order to receive feedback and understand our own progress as a company in
fostering a valuable employment, we have also designed an online employee
happiness survey to which employees respond anonymously.

Finally, to show appreciation to all the hard work and achievements that our
employees are continuously demonstrating, we have in place a Reward and
Recognition policy and programme that recognizes on a monthly, quarterly,
and yearly basis our high performing employees. Some of these awards would
include:

e Spotlight: a monthly award provided by line managers for those
employees that report to them for extra work done,

e High Five: a monthly award provided from one department to another to
recognize cross-departmental support,

e Health Ambassador of the Year: awarded to the employee with the
lowest sick-leave record.

e Long-Service Awards: designed to recognize and value the contribution
of employees who have worked in the company for a long time period

e Scholar of the Year: a quarterly award designed to encourage and award
employees with a progressive attitude, and for actively engaging in Learning
and Development activities via LinkedIn Learning

e Brand Ambassador: a monthly award designed to encourage and
recognize the efforts of our employees for promoting the Company’s brand
via their personal social media accounts
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e Hall of Fame: an annual award provided to exemplary employees with
outstanding achievements and consistent performance in line with the
Company'’s values throughout the year

Below we list various employment related KPIs. We must indicate that the year
2021 was special given the transaction that took place with Dar Al Takaful
acquiring Noor Takaful. Such large transaction by nature causes significant
employment-related activity which may lead to slightly more volatile numbers
than normal, especially for what regards the turnover rate, which was 35% in
2021.

Employment KPls

NEW HIRES
BY GENDER
Year Male % of Total Hires Female % of Total Hires
2021 43 53% 39 47%
2020 41 72% 16 28%
2019 41 54% 35 46%

BY AGE GROUP

year Below 30 % of Total 30 to 50 % of Total Over 50 % of Total

y.O. Hires y.O. Hires y.O. Hires
2021 19 23% 60 73% 3 4%
2020 12 21% 42 74% 3 5%
2019 22 29% 51 67% 3 4%

EMPLOYEE THAT LEFT

BY GENDER
Year Male % of Total Leavers Female % of Total Leavers
2021 52 61% 34 39%
2020 60 64% 34 36%
2019 31 62% 19 38%

BY AGE GROUP
Below 30 % of Total 30 to 50 % of Total Over 50 % of Total

VBl y.0. Leavers y.O. Leavers y.O. Leavers

2021 19 22% 65 76% 3 2%

2020 20 21% 66 70% 8 9%

2019 8 16% 42 84% 0 0%
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TOTAL TURNOVER RATE

Year Total Turnover Rate (%)
2021 35%
2020 36%
2019 16%

Diversity & Inclusion

We are proud of our diverse workforce and inclusive environment. In fact, diversity
& inclusion is a core value at Dar Al Takaful and a key contributor to business
success. Whether it is gender, multi-generations, different nationalities, or other
diverse traits, they all shape Dar Al Takaful’s character and future.

We currently have 258 employees, 95% of which are employed on permanent
contracts and 37% of which are female. Our workforce is composed of 23 different
nationalities.

In addition, we have in place a robust Code of Conduct the main purpose of which
is to ensure our employees have written guidelines describing the expected ethical
behavior by all.

The Code of Conduct emphasizes on encouraging diversity and respect which
entails acceptance and respect of individual differences including gender, religion,
race, ethnicity, physical abilities, age, socio-economic status, or other.

The Company has ZERO tolerance for discrimination, harassment, or
intimidation.

We have also instilled as part of our Code the promotion of sustainability, the
contribution to communities, as well as respecting human rights.
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TOTAL EMPLOYEES

TOTAL 2021:

38% 62%

Permanent Contract Temporary Contract
Year Male Female Male Female
2021 150 95 9 4
2020 150 91 12 6
2019 197 107 4 5

Full-Time Contract Part-Time Contract
Year Male Female Male Female
2021 159 99 0 0
2020 168 91 0 0
2019 201 112 0 0

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

BY GENDER:
Year Male Female Male Female
2021 60% 40% 80% 20%
2020 63% 37% 84% 16%
2019 61% 39% 90% 10%
25

Head Office: 0 -14 Tower - Business bay | Tel: +97143041500 | Fax: +97145530389 | P.0.BOX: 235353, Dubai, UAE info@dat.ae |
www.dat.ae | 800-Takaful (8252385)


mailto:info@dat.ae
http://www.dat.ae/

BY AGE GROUP:

JolL Al jla
Dar Al Takaful

Premium omic Insurance  JieY! el guelall

Entry-to-Mid Level Senior-to-Executive Level

Year Below 30 30 to 50 Over 50 Below 30 30 to 50 Over 50

y.O. y.O. y.0. y.0. y.0. y.0.
2021 15% 79% 6% 0% 70% 30%
2020 16% 79% 5% 0% 74% 26%
2019 18% 76% 5% 0% 69% 31%

TOTAL NATIONALITIES
2019 2020 2021

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Foster a Culture of Learning

Developing our talent is a strategic element to our HR strategy and is a duty that
we have towards the great individuals that entrust us with their career
development paths. Moreover, learning reflects positively on our services and
differentiates us from other competitors.

More specifically, we offer continuous learning opportunities to our employees,
some of which are internal, and others organized with the help of third parties. In
addition, some of our trainings are mandatory while others are selective based on

performance.

Below are some of the learning experiences we offer our employees:

Head Office: I

26


mailto:info@dat.ae
http://www.dat.ae/

JolL Al jla
Dar Al Takaful

Premium omic Insurance  JieY! el guelall

e Dar Al Takaful partnered with the Emirates Institute for Banking and
Financial Studies (EIBFS) whose annual training plan is uploaded online
to give access to all employees,

e Diverse internal training is offered and organized by different
departments. Subject matters include Shari‘ah training, risk and
compliance, training, operational risk management, and other,

e Mandatory 3-day sessions on cyber security awareness,

e University Partnership with Skyline University College to provide
quality trainings and education to our employees, such as internship
opportunities, degree and certification programs, scholarship fund,
sponsorship for collaborative projects amongst others,

e We also offer internal customized training allowing our high performers
to progress and prepare for the next step or promotion in their careers with
us,

e We also offer Third-party specialized training for specialized courses
through external consultants,

e Insurance Authority Training to provide courses and trainings in various
certifications such as financial crime and CII delivered by the regulators.

Finally, we have provided access to all our employees to LinkedIn Learning. We
have purchased a license that offers the possibility for any employee on a
voluntary basis to learn about any subject-matter that may be of interest to them,
be it in relation to their work or other.

We do encourage learning and award those with the most hours with certificates
presented by the CEO.

Fair Performance Review Structure

We follow a fair and transparent performance review process and ensure to
consistently engage our employees throughout. More specifically, we ask our
employees to initially set their own goals and discuss them with their line
managers early on during the year. All goals are matched with specific KPIs.

We encourage our employees to have unofficial regular reviews but ensure that
this is officially done twice a year. The mid-year review offers our employees with
the opportunity to assess how much has been achieved and discuss such results
with the line manager. This session provides a good understand for our employees
about where they stand in relation to their set goals and KPIs. Should the
employee not be on track, we ensure to place him/her in a performance
improvement program that allows them to overcome any challenges they may be
facing.

Our end-of-year reviews serve to set a rating for each employee. This is done after
three different levels of discussions, the first being the employee self-assessing
her/his results, then the line manager discussing such results and finally the
function head which closes the process.
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Finally, we ensure that our employees can optimize their use of the process by
ensuring they learn about all its different steps through dedicated workshops that
we organize throughout the year as well as through a handbook that is distributed
to all employees.

1 000/ of our eligible employees go through their
(0 performance reviews every year

Learning & Development KPIs

AVERAGE NUMBER OF TRAINING HOURS

Year Male Female
2021 3,169 3,311
2020 2,662 2,470
2019 1,012 832

AVERAGE NUMBER OF TRAINING HOURS

Year Entry-to-Mid Level Senior-to-Executive Level
2021 5,111 1,369

2020 4,684 448

2019 1,633 211

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES THAT RECEIVED PERFORMANCE AND CAREER

REVIEW
Year Male Female
2021 139 87
2020 137 78
2019 95 55

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES THAT RECEIVED PERFORMANCE AND CAREER

REVIEW
Year Entry-to-Mid Level Senior-to-Executive Level
2021 152 74
2020 167 48
2019 121 29
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EMIRATISATION

Emiratization is an initiative by the government of the UAE to employ its citizens
in @ meaningful and efficient manner, particularly in the private sector. Moreover,
Emiratization forms an integral part of the UAE Vision 2021.

The Ministry of Human Resources and Emiratization (MoHRE) is the governmental
entity dedicated to driving this initiative. In fact, the MoHRE imposes on private
sector employers a quota system, whereby a company with more than 100
employees is obliged to recruit a certain minimum number of Emiratis.

Although we have consistently achieved our Emiratization points, for Dar Al
Takaful, Emiratization is neither about filling a gap nor about a point system but
rather about employing capable and talented Emiratis with the potential to grow
within and become leaders in the insurance sector. What matter to us is to engage
with the right UAE talents and ensure their retention.

In order to achieve the above, our Company has in place a clear Emiratization
strategy which aims to attract, develop, engage and retain UAE national talents.
One of the earliest elements of the strategy is implementing attraction programs
to ensure the right UAE National talents are welcomed to our Company.

Some of these programs include:

1. Summer Training Program: a 3-months summer program through which
the Company offers learning opportunities on the insurance industry to
widen the academic prospects of the candidates and assess their future
employment possibilities.

2. Work Placement Program: an 8-week program offering work placement
opportunities to a maximum of six UAE National students, as part of their
curriculum and graduation requirements

3. Graduate Program (with the Emirates Institute for Banking and Financial
Studies): This program is 3-week long and enables graduates to gain deep
insight about the insurance sector, our Company and the solutions we offer,

4. Special Programs: A recently launched special extensive training for UAE
nationals,

5. Ajyal Program: Fresh graduates are hired and placed in a 12-month
rotational program to support them in reaching their full potential. Upon
completion, they may join the department they find to be best fitting,

6. Shadowing Program: This program consists of 10 interns that shadow
different departments, and are given the possibility to work for the company
after their graduation,

7. Partnership with the Insurance Authority: This partnership is specific
to developing Emirati Certified Internal Auditors (CIA)
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Moreover, to engage with our Emirati trainees and employees, we conduct various
relevant recognition, special leaves and similar events including:
1. Long-service awards, which are in place to show the company’s
appreciation to commitment,
2. Career Plan: clear career path to reach managerial positions,
3. CEO participation: we set up special meetings for Emirati employees with
our CEO and the Emiratisation Manager
4. UAE Team Building Activities: to enhance culture sharing and promote
the Nation’s heritage
5. UAE National Days Celebrations, such as National Day, Flag Day and
Emirati Women'’s Day
6. Special Leaves are offered to our Emirati employees to encourage them
to pursue their interests while maintaining their relationship with us. Such
leaves include Study Leave, Exam Leave and Sports Leave.

TOTAL UAE NATIONAL EMPLOYEES

"% of total workforce

22
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7%* 89%* 89%*
2019 2020 2021
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SERVING THE COMMUNITY

As a UAE responsible company, we are committed to the community’s welfare and
seek to be an active corporate citizen.

We had invested AED5,000 in 2021 in the community mainly in relation to
participating in the 10 million meals’ donation campaign, the purpose of which is
to raise money to provide meals, food items and parcels for the disadvantaged
individuals and families, thereby combating world hunger and malnutrition.

In addition to the above, we also participated Joy of Eid Shopping 2021 for 10
children By Rawafed

Eid is a festival of celebration, and the joy of Eid involves wearing new clothes. A
tradition started by Rawafed Centre is to give the chance to underprivileged
children to go shopping for their Eid finery. Instead of buying clothes for them,
as is the tradition everywhere, they give them the opportunity to go shopping by
themselves. During these difficult times, Care House participated and
contributed to continue bringing joy to less fortunate children.

Other initiatives from previous years included donations of AED 6,000 for the
Breast Cancer Awareness Program at Rashid Hospital and Al Jalila Foundation.

2019 2020 2021

Community Investment 150,761 154,820 13,000

We believe that serving the community and involving our employees accordingly
creates a positive corporate environment where employees feel even more
engaged and strengthens their connection with their peers and the Company itself.
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PROTECTING OUR CUSTOMERS’ TRUST

Customer Satisfaction

We strive not only to meet our clients’ expectations but to continuously exceed it.
At Dar Al Takaful, our objective is to always provide our clients with a superior
experience, which can only be achieved if we remain dedicated, close to our clients
and listen to their evolving needs.

Our clients and their needs are at the heart of everything we do at Dar Al Takaful.
It is only by offering them a personalized service and quality products that we will
be able to maintain their trust.

Our Client’s Voice

To ensure customer centricity, we have set up a high-quality customer centre that
caters to all our clients’ needs and provides them with a voice through which we
can consistently track their thoughts towards our offering. The centre is operated
by highly trained employees that follow a strict code of conduct and work to
achieve clear KPIs with the aim to create a best-in-class centre.

We provide our clients with three different direct channels of communication with
our customer centre, including email, phone, and WhatsApp. We have 17 highly
trained staff that serve our clients and ensure their needs are being attended to.
We make sure to give the possibility for our clients to voice their satisfaction about
their experience after every interaction. This would be through a scoring rating
system via WhatsApp, an email template as well as regular quality monitoring for
phone interactions. In fact, to ensure a high-quality service, we perform three
quality monitoring calls for each agent per month.

Some of our main KPIs include responding to any client complaints with a
maximum amount of Two days, in addition to maintaining a client feedback score.
We strive to provide our customer service staff with a continuous learning
programme inclusive of access to LinkedIn learning as well as specialized training
through both our internal training coordinator as well as through the Emirates
Institute for Banking and Financial Studies.

Finally, we have in place a monthly recognition system through which we provide
different certificates and awards. Such mechanism keeps our staff motivated and
ensures they are recognized for their great efforts.
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Innovation & Digitalization

The digitalization of our clients’ journeys forms an integral part of ensuring client
satisfaction. Accentuated by the pandemic, our digitalization plan aims to create
seamless and comprehensive experience to our new and existing clients; it is
about simplifying and improving their experience.

Our dedicated Strategy and Business Acceleration Department (SBAO) oversees
our company’s digital acceleration office. The objective of the latter is to facilitate
and enable digitalization throughout the company. We look to assess every single
process within our operation and identify how we can make them more efficient
through digitalization.

Today, up to 80-90% of our policies and related approvals are processed online.
Our Motor business line was the first to become fully digitalized back in 2018.

Among other improvements, the refund process related to our medical business
line can now be fully performed online. We also launched a digital savings plan
using the "“Bliss” platform towards the end of the year. This was done in
partnership with a leading technology start-up and let to successfully offering our
clients a fully digital experience related to Life Takaful Insurance and Savings plan,
providing them with complete control and visibility of their investments and
performance.

Digitalization not only enhances our clients’ experience but also contributes to our
efforts to decarbonize our operation.

Our dedicated department aims to shift towards a 100% paperless office. As part
of such efforts, we have introduced DocuSign in 2020 allowing all signatures to be
performed online. We have also upgraded our systems to allow sharing folders
online. Finally, we have also archived all our paper documentation from the two
previous years and have recycled all the hard copies.

Data Privacy and Information Security

Protecting our clients’ privacy and data is a priority to Dar Al Takaful and a
responsibility that we take very seriously. Information security forms an integral
part of maintaining trustworthiness as a corporation and especially during the
increase in digitalization and the use of online and application-related modes of
communication and interaction.
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Solid Infrastructure

All our data resides inside the UAE, on a cloud, and protected by multiple firewall
layers. Moreover, to ensure security, we have segregated inbound and outbound
traffic which are forced to use different routes. The two do not communicate.
Moreover, we isolate sensitive information from other types of information through
an extra firewall layer.

Our systems, all equipped with anti-virus endpoints, are regularly tested and any
identified irregularities are immediately rectified.

In order to limit any internal risks stemming from our own users, we continuously
provide security training to all our employees and ensure that they are aware
about all related risks and are equipped to securely navigate our systems.

Robust Information Security and Data Management Policy

We have in place an IT policy that uses best-practice data governance that we
rigorously follow. The policy is in full compliance with the NESA SIA, Insurance
Authority and AML regulation in terms of data protection, retention and record
keeping.

Conforming with our IT policy is part of all employees’ duty of confidentiality
towards our clients and their private information.

Moreover, we ensure that sensitive data is only used when needed and for
specified purposes and that it is always secure. The Company adopts physical,
technical, and organizational measures to ensure the security of personal data,
including the prevention of alteration, loss, damage, and unauthorized processing
or access.

Customer-related KPIs

CUSTOMER PRIVACY

Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy and losses of
customer data

Number of complaints received from outside parties

and substantiated by the organization ZERO
Number of complaints from regulatory bodies ZERO
Number of identified leaks, thefts, or losses of ZERO

customer data
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MARKETTING AND LABELLING

Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service information and labelling

Number of incidents of non-compliance
with regulations resulting in a warning, fine or ZERO
penalty

Number of incidents of non-compliance with

ZERO
voluntary codes

Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing communications

Number of incidents of non-compliance with

. S . i ZERO
regulations resulting in a warning fine or penalty

Number of incidents of non-compliance with

ZERO
voluntary codes

CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Climate change is one of the most pressing issues of our time. We must contribute
to the decarbonization of the UAE’s economy and contribute to the Government'’s
efforts in reaching the targets set in its ‘Second Nationally Determined
Contribution” which calls for a reduction of 23.5% in GHG emission for the year
2030 (relative to ‘business-as-usual’ scenario emission in 2030 at about 310
million tonnes). It is every corporation’s duty to do what it can to contribute to
limiting global warming and being a responsible environmental steward.

We will look to have a clear environmental framework through which we shall
gradually neutralize our impact on the environment and be at the lead of such
initiatives within our sector.

In that regard, we are proud signatories to the Dubai Declaration of financial
institutions in the UAE on Sustainable Finance. Through this declaration, all
signatories commit to indorse the UAE government’'s commitment to the Paris
Climate Agreement and the Sustainable Development Goals.
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More specifically, the Declaration calls on signatories, among others matters to:
¢ Manage and improve their direct and indirect environmental and social
performance,

e Provide insurance to the projects, businesses and customers with
sustainable purposes as well as support the growth of a successful SME
sector,

e Consider ESG risk in the institution’s risk management processes,

Promote CSR and sustainability within the institution,

e Reduce environmental footprint.

Our Environmental Priorities

Our main environmental priority as an insurance company is climate change. We
must lower our carbon footprint and contribute to the UAE’s decarbonization
efforts. As such, this report will allow us to measure our impact on the
environment through our energy consumption and emissions computations. Such
measurement is the steppingstone to analysing our impact on the environment
and putting in place the necessary strategy to minimize it and eventually
neutralize it.

Our current on-going activities in that regard include:

e The reduction of our energy consumption,
Reducing/restricting use of non-biodegradable materials,
Increase use of recycled/recyclable material,

Promote SMEs and not-for-profit organizations,
Raise environmental stewardship awareness.

We will look to develop a clear sustainability framework through which we will
include a set of objectives and KPIs that we will aim to achieve and on which we
will continuously report through our Sustainability Reports.
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Our Impact

Our On-going Initiatives

We have focused below on one of our primary environmental initiatives which led
to our company having recycled a total of 503 kgs of document and paper in 2021.
Such initiative resulted in the following:

9 [ 5trees were saved
from being cut and turned
into wood pulp

34,4 1 OLiters of
water were saved from being

used

landfill space

O O O 129w

saved
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Measuring our GHG emissions

We have used the GHG protocol as a guide to compute our GHG emissions and
have set our organizational boundary according to the ‘control approach’ and seek
to account for 100% of our GHG emissions from operations over which our
company has control.

We have used the operational control option which is defined as accounting for
those GHG emissions generated by all entities whereby the Company or any of its
subsidiaries have the full authority to introduce and implement its operating
policies.

As for our reporting scope, we have accounted for our Scope 1 and 2
computations. We shall look to continuously enhance our GHG emissions reporting
and mainly to introduce, in subsequent reports, the major elements of our scope
3 emissions.

In relation to our reporting boundary, we have included our headquarters as well
as all our branches. That being said, for all Noor Takaful branches, we have
included their energy consumption since December 2021.

Energy Consumption

2021 Energy Consumption in GJ

Direct Energy - (Fuel) 734.81
Indirect Energy - (Electricity) 2,636.76
Total Energy Consumption 3,371.51

2021 Energy Intensity in G] per Employee

Direct Energy - (Fuel) 2.84

Indirect Energy - (Electricity) 10.55

Energy Intensity 13.06
38

Head Office: 0 -14 Tower - Business bay | Tel: +97143041500 | Fax: +97145530389 | P.0.BOX: 235353, Dubai, UAE info@dat.ae |
www.dat.ae | 800-Takaful (8252385)


mailto:info@dat.ae
http://www.dat.ae/

Jol Al jla
Dar Al Takafu

Premium Komic Insurance Jia gl yuelall =

GHG Emissions

Direct Energy — Scope 1 emissions 33.20

Indirect Energy - Scope 2 emissions 285.62

Direct Energy — Scope 1 0.12

Indirect Energy — Scope 2 1.10

2021 Energy Mix
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Water Consumption

2021 Water Consumption in m3
Total Water Consumption 1,289

Water Consumption per Employee 4.99

ETHICAL GOVERNANCE

Ethical Governance is about having strong ethical values within a company’s
processes, procedures, and offering. Corporate Governance instils in companies a
system of accountability and influences the way they operate. With good corporate
governance in place, companies can be managed sustainably, can reach their
objectives, and create value to all stakeholders. Benefits would include efficient
processes, controlling risk, ensuring compliance with regulations, and that all
stakeholders’ interests are being met.

When adding the element of ethics into a corporate governance structure, a
company instils ethical values and conducts in its DNA, thereby enhancing its
reputation, and building sustainable value over the short, medium and long-term.

The practice of Takaful promotes universal ethical values and hence is an enabler
of transparency, fairness, and shared value which form the basis of Dar Al
Takaful’s corporate governance structure.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Ownership Structure

We have a significantly large base of 1,575 shareholders rich in diversity and size.
That being said, the majority of our shares, or 68.43% are held through a total of
10 shareholders.
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1.07%

4.85% |‘|

Local

= Gulf

Individuals 71.03%
= Arab

Corporates  28.97%
= Foreign

86%

Board of Directors Structure

Our board of directors is composed of reputable individuals with a successful
business and leadership track record. Our board members have high-level skills,
competencies and the experience required to provide our company with the
necessary strategic direction and to protect all stakeholders’ interests.

We currently have seven members on the board of directors, all of which are non-
executive and independent. In addition, we are proud to be one of the few UAE
listed corporations with a woman presence on the board of directors for four years
now.

We have in place four committees that were established to strengthen our
corporate governance structure by providing the necessary support to the board
and by applying rigorous control on all key facets of our operation. More
specifically, the committees include an audit committee, a remuneration
committee, a risk committee, an investment committee, and insider trading
follow-up & supervision committee.
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Internal Control & Compliance

It is only through a robust compliance culture that a company can build customer
trust. Being in compliance means being in conformity with the set rules and
regulations determined by the law through the regulators. A company with a
strong compliance culture offers its employees the ability to conduct their work
with confidence and is a primary element that invites customers to remain with
the company that they associate with trustworthiness.

Dar Al Takaful has in place a strong internal control and compliance system that
follows a strict set of rules and procedures ensuring that the company is
consistently in line with the applicable legislations and to protect the company’s
assets and stakeholders from any depletion in value due to regulatory matters.
Should there be incidents of non-compliance, the internal control department
swiftly suggests an action plan, and upon management and board approval, when
necessary, executes the corrective measures.

The company regularly updates its policies and procedures to ensure they reflect
all applicable legislations. More specifically the company reviewed and updated
the following key policies:

The charter of duties of the Members of the Board and all Board committees
Enterprise Risk Management Framework

Internal Audit Management Framework
Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering Management Framework

Disclosure and Transparency Policy
Whistleblowing Policy

N Ul AW N| =

Conflict of Interest Policy

At the forefront of our compliance function is the Anti-Money Laundering and
combating the financing of terrorism policy and procedures which is essential for
the prevention of our employees and clients from being misused for money
laundering, financing terrorism or other financial crimes.
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In that regard, Dar Al Takaful has adopted a risk-based approach to identify,
assess, understand and mitigate the ML/FT risks. Risk is assessed during the initial
phase of the establishment of the business relationship and/or during the
onboarding process. Below is a list of the risk factors that are considered when
conducting the said assessment:

Client risk

Service/product risk
Industry risk
Geographical/jurisdiction risk
Delivery channel risk
Transaction risk

The document sets clear processes and procedures to be followed, as well as
outlines the AML training requirements to ensure understanding and applicability
of the policy. More specifically, we provide education and training for all staff in
relation to AML/CFT matters at least on an annual basis. Moreover, we introduce
a test element to the training with a minimum required pass rate so as to ensure
the attention and engagement of all our employees.

Fraud Prevention and Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy

This policy forms an integral part of our corporate governance. Dar Al Takaful
stands for ethical business behaviour which by default is a force against bribery
and corruption. As such, we are committed to combatting such behaviour within
our company and to instil the necessary controls and procedures to detect any
potential risks. In other words, Dar Al Takaful has zero tolerance for
fraudulent or dishonest conduct.

Based on the above, all our employees are responsible to report any suspicious
activity that may have come to their attention, and accordingly all reported
incidents are thoroughly investigated.

In order to ensure we establish the right internal environment that would
encourage early detection of such risks by means of prompt reporting, we have
introduced a Whistleblower policy. While we ask our employees to report
employment-related concerns through regular channels (e.g., line manager,
compliance, HR, etc.), we have established an independent manager reporting line
called Al Amanah for all sensitive matters. Through such hotline, an employee can
report any issue of incident anonymously via email or phone.

Finally, all employees who report concerns in good faith will be protected from any
dismissal, or any other form of detriment.
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Risk Management

The risk management function within an insurance company is essential in
identifying potential risks and applying the necessary mitigating measures to
protect the company and all its stakeholders.

Risk management oversight is done by our Risk Management Committee which in
turn directly reports to the board. Some of the committee’s duties include defining
our company’s risk profile and appetite, developing the necessary risk
management strategy and policies, and ensuring their proper implementation.

As such, we have in place a robust risk management policy to ensure that each
potential risk is managed efficiently to maximize possible opportunities and
minimize any adverse effects.

The risk management department is responsible for ensuring the said policy is
updated and approved by management and the risk management committee.

The primary objective of our risk management framework is to communicate an
unified commitment to risk management as well as formalize consistent processes
to managing such risk. In addition, it emphasizes on the importance of identifying
and assessing all possible risks and treating them by assigning different
departmental responsibilities based on the type of risk.

We regularly review and monitor the implementation and effectiveness of all our
policies including our risk management policy and related processes. In addition,
whenever there are regulatory changes, we perform a gap analysis and update
our policies accordingly.

Finally, we also ensure to instil the appropriate risk management culture across
Dar Al Takaful, primarily by means of regularly conducting specialized trainings
based on the sensitive functions. Such training is done at least three times a year.
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STAKHOLDER ENGAGEMENT OUTCOME

CUSTOMERS

MANAGEMENT &
EMPLOYEES

SHAREHOLDERS

GOVERNMENT

(Securities & Commodities
Authority, Central Bank,
Dubai Financial Market, Dubai
Health Authority, Abu Dhabi
Health Authority, Ministry of
Finance, Ministry of Economy)

BUSINESS PARTNER
(Reinsurers, TPAs,
Brokers)

RATING AGENCIES

COMMUNITY

Website

Marketing Material

Social Media

Online Reviews

Customer Care Centre

Insurance Authority/Central Bank complaint
portal

Training & Development Programs
Company Events

Company Internal Announcements
Performance Appraisals

Rewards & Recognition Programs
Exit Interviews

e Regular Communication
e Annual General Meeting

Corporate Regulatory Disclosures

Regular interactions through reporting
requirements

Regular interactions for new regulatory
requirements

Webinars

Regular interaction related to business
coordination, development, and agreement
renewal

Yearly interaction when conducting rating
review

e Local community-related initiatives

Sponsorships and donations
Volunteering activities
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GRI & DFM CONTENT INDEX

(GRI 102-55)

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

GRI REFERENCE
DISCLOSURE CONTENT DFM DISCLOSURE PAGE NOTES
Organizational profile

102-1 Name of the organization 2,7
102-2 Acti\_/ities, brands, products, and
services 7
102-3 Location of headquarters 2
102-4 Location of operations 2
102-5 Ownership and legal form 2,40
102-6 Markets served 7
102-7 Scale of the organization 7
. S4: Gender Diversity
102-8 wgSigztlon on employees and other SS:Temporary Worker 22
Ratio
G5: Supplier Code of
102-9 Supply Chain Conduct 7
102-10 Sign?ficant change_s to the organization
and its supply chain 7
102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach 40
102-12 External initiatives 7
102-13 Membership of associations 7

Strategy

102-14

Statement from senior decision-maker 5
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2021

Ethics & Integrity

Describe your organization's values,

102-16 principles, standards and norms of 7,22,40
behavior
G1: Board Diversity
102-18 Governance structure G2: Board 40
Independence
102-20% Exef:utlve-level respons!blllty for economic,  ES, E9‘: Environmental 13,36
environmental, and social topics Oversight
Stakeholder Engagement
102-40 List of stakeholder groups 13
102-41 G4: Collective Not applicable for companies
Collective bargaining agreements Bargaining operating in UAE
102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 13
102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 13
102-44 Key topics and concerns raised 13
Reporting Practice
Entities included in the consolidated
102-45 : i
financial statements 2
G8: Sustainability
102-46 Deﬂnlng_report content and topic Repor'tmg 2
boundaries G9: Disclosure
Practices
102-47 List of material topics 13
102-48 Restatements of information 2
102-49 Changes in reporting 2
102-50 Reporting period 2
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102-51 Date of the most recent report 2
102-52 Reporting cycle 2
102-53 Contact point for questions regarding
the report 2
102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with
the GRI standards 2
102-55 GRI content index 47
102-56 G10: External
External assurance Assurance 2
MATERIAL TOPICS
GRI REFERENCE
DISCLOSURE CONTENT DFM DISCLOSURE PAGE NOTES
GRI 200: Economic Standard Series
GRI 201: Economic Performance 2016
103-1 _Explanatlon of the material topic and 7.13
its boundary
103-2 The management approach and its 7.13
components
103-3 Evaluation of the management 7.13
approach

Refer to our

201-1 Direct economic value generated and 2020 Annual
distributed Report pages 32-
47

GRI 300: Environmental Standard Series
GRI 302: Energy 2016

Explanation of the material topic and

103-1 its boundary

13,36
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The management approach and its

103-2 13,36
components

103-3 Evaluation of the management E7: Env.ironmental 13,36
approach Operations

E3: Energy Usage
E5: Energy Mix 36
E6: Water Usage
E4: Energy Intensity 36

302-1 Energy co_nsumption within the
organization

302-3 Energy intensity

GRI 305: Emissions 2016

Explanation of the material topic and

103-1 . 13,36
its boundary

103-2 The management approach and its 13,36
components

103-3 Evaluation of the management 13,36
approach

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions E1: GHG Emissions 36

. Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG
305-2 emissions E1: GHG Emissions 36
305-4 GHG emissions intensity E2: Emissions Intensity 36

GRI 400: Social Standard Series
GRI 401: Employment 2016

Explanation of the material topic and

103-1 _ 15,2
its boundary

103-2 The management approach and its 1395
components

103-3 Evaluation of the management 15,25
approach
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401-1 New employee hires and employee

turnover S3: Employee Turnover 22
Benefits provided to full-time
401-2 employees that are not provided to 22

part-time employees
GRI 404: Training & Education 2016

Explanation of the material topic and

103-1 . 13,22
its boundary

103-2 The management approach and its 13,22
components

103-3 Evaluation of the management 13,22
approach

Average hours of training per year per

404-1 22
employee
Percentage of employees receiving

404-3 regular performance and career 22

development reviews
Diversity and Equal Opportunity 2016

GRI 405:

Explanation of the material topic and

103-1 . 13,22
its boundary
The management approach and its
103-2
components 13,22
103-3 Evaluation of the management
approach 13,22

S4: Gender Diversity

Diversity of governance bodies and S6: Non-Discrimination 22,40

405-1
employees
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405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration
of women to men S2: Gender Pay Ratio 22
GRI 417: Marketing & Labelling 2016

Explanation of the material topic and

103-1 . 13,33
its boundary

103-2 The management approach and its 33
components

103-3 Evaluation of the management 33
approach
Incidents of non-compliance concerning

417-2 product and service information and 33
labeling

417-3 Inadenlts of non—cor.nph.ance concerning 33
marketing communications

GRI 418: Customer Privacy 2016

103-1 !Explanatlon of the material topic and 13,33
its boundary

103-2 The management approach and its 33
components

103-3 Evaluation of the management 33
approach

Substantiated complaints concerning
418-1 breaches of customer G7: Data Privacy 33
privacy and losses of customer data
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Additional DFM disclosures

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2021

DFM DISCLOSURE

Environmental

Social

E10

S1

S6

S7

S8

S9

Head Office:

CONTENT

Climate Risk Mitigation

Total amount invested, annually, in climate-related
infrastructure, resilience, and product development

CEO Pay Ratio

Ratio: CEO total compensation to median Full Time
Equivalent (FTE) total compensation

Does your company report this metric in regulatory
filings?

Non-Discrimination

Does your company follow a sexual harassment
and/or non-discrimination policy?

Injury Rate

Percentage: Frequency of

injury events relative to total

workforce time

Global Health & Safety

Does your company follow an occupational health
and/or global health & safety policy?

Child & Forced Labor

Does your company follow a child and/or forced labor
policy?

REFERENCE
PAGE

Not Available

Not Available

Yes

Yes

N/A

N/A

N/A

NOTES

We will be including this metric in
our Environmental Policy

The CEOQO's salary along with that
of the executive team is currently
disclosed in our Corporate
Goverance Report

Non- Discrimination is covered in
our Code of Conduct and HR
Policies

The industry in which we operate
is not prone to injuries

Our HR Policies include Health &
Safety clauses

We are in full support of
combating child and/or forced
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If yes, does your child and/or forced labor policy also
cover suppliers and vendors? Yes/No

Human Rights
Does your company follow a human rights policy? Yes

N/A

S10
If yes, does your human rights policy also cover N/A
suppliers and vendors?
Nationalisation

S11 Percentage of national employees 29
Direct and indirect local job creation 29
Community Investment

S12 Amount invested in the community, as a percentage 37
of company revenues

Governance

Incentivized Pay

G3 Are executives formally incentivized to perform on No
sustainability?
Ethics & Anti-Corruption
Does your company follow an Ethics and/or Anti- Yes

G6 Corruption policy?
If yes, what percentage of your workforce has 100%

formally certified its compliance with the policy
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labor, this risk is less applicable to
the insurance sector

Or Code of Conduct and HR
Policies include Human Rights
clauses

This will be considered as part of
our Sustainability Strategy

Ethics and Anti-Corruption is part
of our Code of Conduct and HR
Policies
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